Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Company No: 3454611

Directors Report for the Year Ended 31st December 2014

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014

Principal activities, review of the business and future developments

The principal activity 1s that of a holding company and 1t 15 not envisaged that this will change 1 the
foreseeable future

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small compames exemption
provided by s 415A of the Companies Act 2006

Results and dividends

The profit for the year was £94 8m (2013 profit £180 1m) The Company released provisions against
mvestments of £94 8m (2013 £180 lm)

On 19 December 2014, the Company undertook a Capital Reduction (made under the provisions of
the Compames Act 2006, enabling the company to reduce 1its share capital by special resolution,
supported by a solvency statement made by the directors) which increased the Company’s
distnibutable reserves by £82m

The director does not recommend the payment of a dividend to the holders of ordinary shares
(2013 £ml)

Financial Instruments
The Company’s financial instruments comprise of balances with group undertakings and preference
shares The mam purpose of these financial instruments 1s to raise finance for the Company’s

operations and to provide funding for the Company’s subsidianes

It 15, and has been throughout the penod under review, the Company’s policy that no trading 1n
financial instruments shall be undertaken

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s transactions are all in sterling and therefore there 15 no foreign currency risk to the
Company

Interest Rate Risk

There 1s no interest on loans with fellow group undertakings, therefore there 1s no interest rate risk
Directors

The following served as directors during (and unless otherwise indicated, throughout) the year

E J Milner
B Pynnonen

THURSDAY

14/056/2015
COMPANIES HOUSE

HHVUAIA

#46




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Company No: 3454611

Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31st December 2014 (continued)

Disclosure of information to Auditors
In accordance with s 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006 each of the directors
¢ 18 not aware of any relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware,

and

e has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that information

On behalf of the Board
E.J.Milner

Director

Date: ) Mtj 2015




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inapproprate to presume
that the Company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FEDERAL-
MOGUL GLOBAL GROWTH LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2014 which comprise the Profit & Loss Account, the Statement of
Total Recognmised Gains and Losses, the Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 14 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
mught state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 3, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opmion on
the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material nusstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of,
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Directors Report to 1identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements  If
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements.

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2014
and of 1its profit for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

¢ have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FEDERAL-
MOGUL GLOBAL GROWTH LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companes Act 2006

In our opmion the information given n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you 1f, 1n our opimon

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption
from the requirement to preparc a Strategic Report or in preparing the Directors’
Report.

Comete Thiodse. U ¥

Stuart Muskett

Semor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Manchester

T rmpY 2015




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Notes 2014 2013
£m £m

Exceptional operating income — provisions against fixed asset investments 3 04 8 180 1
written back
Operating Income 94 8 180 1
Operating profit 94 8 1801
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 94 8 1801
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 5 - -
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 94 8§ 180 1

A reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds 1s given in Note 10 of the financial statements

All results have been denved from continuing operations

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

There are no recogmsed gains or losses other than the profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and profit for

the year ended 31 December 2013




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2014

FIXED ASSETS
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors falling due within one year
Cash at bank and n hand

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS — amounts falling due after more than one year
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Capital Redemption Reserve
Profit and loss account
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Notes

10
10
10

2014 2013
£fm £fm
982 9 8881
982 9 8881
333 333
333 333
1016 2 9214
(544 0) (544 0)
4722 3774
580 589
- 82¢
4133 2365
4722 3774
2015 and

The financial statements on pages 6 to 13 were approved by the Board of Directors on —1 Mﬁ

were signed on its behalf by

—

E J Milner
Director




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting polictes of the Company remain unchanged from previous years and are set out below
a)} Basis of Preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with apphicable UK Accounting Standards and under
the hustorical cost convention

b) Deferred tax

The taxation charge 1s based on the result for the penod and takes into account taxation deferred because of
timung differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred tax 15
recogmsed 1 respect of all tiing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result 1n an obligation to pay more, or nght to
pay less or to receive more, tax with the following exceptions

+  Provision 1s made for gains on disposals of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets
only where, at the balance sheet date, there 1s a commtment to dispose of the replacement assets

¢  Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that the director considers that it 1s more likely than not
that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying uming d:fferences
can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are excepted to apply n the penods 1n
which the timing d:fferences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

<) Foreign currencies

Transactions 1n foreign currency are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of transaction Any monetary assets
or liabilities denominated tn foreign currency are retranslated at the year end rate Exchange differences on
transactions 1n foreign currencies are included 1 the profit and loss account

d) Investments
Investments are held at cost less provision for impairment
2. Consohidation and related party disclosures

The Company’s ulumate parent undertaking 1s Icahn Enterprises L P | a company histed on the New York Stock
Exchange The Company 1s included in the consolhidated financial statements of Icabn Enterprises L P, which
are publicly available Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cash
flow statement under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 1 (revised 1996) The Company 1s also exempt
under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing related party transactions with entiies that
are part of the Icahn Enterpnises Group or investees of the Icahn Enterpnises Group

The Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings are included 1n consolidated accounts for a larger group,
Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation, drawn up to the same date in the same financial year and those accounts
are drawn up n accordance with the provisions of the Seventh Directive (83/34%/EEC) or in a manner
equivalent to consolidated accounts and consohdated annual reports so drawn up Accordingly the Company, in
accordance with the exemption in 5401 of the Compamies Act, has not prepared consolidated financial
statements The financial statements therefore contain information about Federal-Mogul Global Growth
Limuted as an individual company and not as a group




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2014

3 Operating profit

{a) Exceptional expense / income - provisions against fixed asset investments

Following an impairment review of the Company’s investments, it was decided that provisions of £94 8m
made 1n previous years were ne longer required and accordingly were released to the profit and loss account n
the current year (2013 £180 [m)

(b) Audit fees

The audit fees of £4,000 (2013 £3,850) were bomne by a fellow group company during the year There were
aucht fees and fees for other services payable to the Company’s auditor and 1its associates during the year n
respect of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings amounting to £0 4m (2013 £0 3m)

4. Directors and employees

The directors have not received emoluments 1n respect of thewr services as directors of the Company
(2013 £ml)

The Company has no employees (2013 ml)

5. Tax on profit on ordinary activities

(a) Analysis of charge mn the peried

There ts no tax charge or credit for esther the current year or prior year
(b) Factors affecting current tax charge for period

The tax assessed on the profit on ordinary activities for the year 1s lower than {2013 — lower than) the standard rate of
corporation tax n the UK of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) The differences are explamned below

2014 2013
im £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 94 3 180 1
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) 204 419
Effect of
UK UK transfer pricing adjustment 02 02
Group rehef claimed for nil payment 02) (02)

Non-taxable release of provision against investments (204) (419
Current tax charge for period (Note 5(a)) - -




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued)
5. Tax on profit on ordinary activities {continued)
(c} Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Company has no unrecogmized capital losses (2013 £ml)

No deferred tax has been provided for tax that may become payable if revalued assets were disposed of at their revalued
amounts

The Finance Act 2013 included changes which affect future tax charges The rate of corporation tax was reduced to 21%
from 1 Apnl 2014 and will reduce to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 The rate changes wall impact the amount of future cash tax
payments made by the Company

6. Investments Subsidiary undertakings Total

Shares

£m £m

Cost
At 31 December 2013 1,457 6 1,457 6
At 31 December 2014 1,457 6 1,457 6
Provisions
At 1 January 2014 (569 5) (569 5)
Provision released 94 8 94 §
At 31 December 2014 (474 7) (474 7)
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 9829 982 9
At 31 December 2013 8881 8881

Details of the mvestments in which the Company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are
disclosed below Advantage has been taken of the exemption 1n S410 of the Companies Act whereby, due to the large
number of undertakings n respect of which the Company would be required to make disclosure, disclosure has only been
made 1n respect of those undertakings whose results or financial positien principally affect the financial statements

Name of Country of Holding Proportion For the year Aggregate amount of Profit or Nature of
Company ncorporation of voting ending (*) capital and reserves at (loss) for business
1f outside nghts and the end of 1ts most the year

Great Britain shares held recent financial year
% £m £fm
Federal- Ordinary 100 31122014 686 1 144 Automotive
Mogul Ltd shares Components

All subsidiary undertakings incorporated in Great Britain are registered in England and Wales

(*) Financial information taken from the latest audited financial statements

Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value

In accordance with FRS11, the directors have compared the carrying value of investments to their value 1n use to the
Company The exercise undertaken at 31 December 2014 indicated that some investments were no longer impaired and
accordingly provisions of £94 8 m were released 1n the current year (2013 £180 1m)

The value 1n use has been denved from discounted cash flow projections using nomunal discount rates consistent with

each applicable global industry sector, ranging from 11 5% to 12 5% (2013 11% to 12 5%) on a pre-tax basis A long-
term growth rate of 2 5% has been assumed

10




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

7. Debtors 2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings 333 333
8. Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts owed to substdiary undertakings 08 08
Redeemable preference shares 543 2 5432
544 0 5440
Preference shares 2014 2013
£m £m

Authorised preference share capital

Redeemable preference shares of £1 each

Authonsed — 1,150,000,000 1,150 0 1,150 0

Called up preference share capital 2014 2013
£m £m

Redeemable Preference shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid - 543,222,114 (2013 543,222.114) 543 2 5432

Total called uwp preference share capital 5432 54312

The redeemable preference shares carry the following nghts

s prionty to any payment to the holders of any other class of shares on return of capital or winding up,
«  voting nights par passu with ordinary shares,

*  are redeemable at any time at the option of the Company

2014 2013
9. Share captal £fm £fm
Authorised share capital
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Authonsed — 100,000,000 100 0 1000
Called up share capital
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted and fully paid — 58,850,100 589 589

11




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

10, Reconcihation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Share Capaital Capital Redemption Profit & Loss Total
£m Reserve Account
£m fm fm
At 1 January 2013 58¢9 820 56 4 1973
Profit for the year 2013 - ~ 1801 180 1
At 31 December 2013 589 820 2365 3774
Capital Reduction (820) 820 -
Profit for the year 2014 - - 94 8 94 8
At 31 December 2014 589 - 4133 4722

11. Principal subsidiaries, associated undertakings and trade investments at 31 December 2014

Holding Compames
Federal-Mogul Limuted **

FDML Holdings Ltd
Federal-Mogul UK Investments Ltd
Federal-Mogul SAS

Powertrain

Federal-Mogul Bradford Ltd

Piston Rings (UK) Limuted
Federal-Mogul Operations France SAS -
Garennes

Federal-Mogul Powertrain Otomotiv A §
(50%) #

Federal-Mogul lzrmt (42 5%) #

Dongsuh Industnal Company Ltd (50%) #

Friction Products

Federal-Mogul Frniction Products Ltd
Federal-Mogul Fnction Productsa s +
Federal-Mogul Friction Products SA
K-B Autosys Co Ltd (33 61%) #

UK
UK
UK
France

UK
UK
France

Turkey

Turkey
South Korea

UK

Czech Rep
Spain

South Korea

Powder Metal Products
Federal-Mogul Sintered Products Ltd

Systems Protection

Federal-Mogul Japan KK
Federal-Mogul Systems Protection SAS
Federal-Mogul (Thailand) Limited

Bearings
Federal-Mogul Operations France SAS —
Orleans

Sealing Products
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems SAS

Aftermarket

Federal-Mogul Aftermarket UK Ltd
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket France SAS
F-M Motorparts Otomotiv A S (50%) #

UK

Japan
France
Thailand

France

France

France
Turkey

Apart from FDML Holdings Ltd and Federal-Mogul UK Investments Lid, the UK companies are constituted as
branches of Federal-Mogul Limited All UK companies are registered 1n England and Wales except for Federal-

Mogul UK Investments Lunited which 15 registered in Scotland

Investments 1n overseas companies are held by

subsichanes of Federal-Mogul Limited unless otherwise shown The compames are incorporated and operate
principally in the countnes indicated Equity capital are wholly owned, unless otherwise shown, and consist of

ordinary shares
# Associated undertakings

** Directly owned by the Company

+ Darectly owned by Federal-Mogul Limited

12. Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption 1n FRSS, para 3¢, not to disclose transactions with other group
companies which meet the cnitena that all subsidiary undertakings which are party to the transactions are wholly

owned by the ultimate controlling parent

There are no other related party transactions

12




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

13. Ulimate and immediate holding undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Federal-Mogul Global LLC, a company registered 1n the USA  The ultimate
holding undertaking and controlling party 1s Icahn Enterprises L P, which 1s registered in the USA  Financial
statements of this company may be obtained from Icahn Enterpnises L P, 767 Fifth Avenue, 47® Floor, New York,
NY 10153, USA

14, Composite Cross-Guarantee
Contingent habihties exist in respect of cross-guarantees given by the Company and certain of its fellow UK

subsidiaries to support some of the UK banking facihites At the year-end these facilities amounted to £rul (2013
£ml)

13
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained or mcorporated 1n this Annual Repert on Form 10-K which are not statements of historical fact constitute “Forward-Looking
Statements™ within the meaning of the Private Securittes Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Reform Act™)

Forward-lcoking statements give current expectations or forecasts of future events Words such as “anticipate,” "believe,” “estimnate,” ‘expect,” “wintend,”
“may™ “plan” “seek” and other words and tenms of strmlar meaning 1n connection with discussions of future operating or financial performance signify
forward-looking statements Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company ™) also, from time to time, may provide oral or wnitten forward-looking statements 1n
other matenals released to the public Such statements are made 1n good faith by the Company pursuant to the “Safe Harbor™ provisions of the Reform Act

Any orall forward-looking statements included 1n this report orin any other public statements may ulumately be incomrect Forward-looking statements may
v olve known and unknown nsks, uncertainuies and other factors, which may cause the actual results, performance, expertence or achievements of the
Company to differ matenally from any future results, performance, expenence or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-locking statements The
Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise

Listed below are some of the factors that could potentially cause actual results to differ matenally from histoncal and expected future results Other factors
besides these listed here could also matenally affect the Company’s business

. The Company's ability to separate 11s Powertirain and Motorparts divisions nto two independent, publicly traded companies may not be
completed on the terms or timeline currently contemplated, 1t at all

. Vanations in current and anticipated future production volumes, financial condition, or operational circumstances of the Company's significant
customers particularly the world's onginal equpment manufacturers of commercial and passenger vehicles

. The Company's ability to gencrate cost savings or manufactunng cfficiencics to offset or cxcced contractually or compennvely required price
reductions or price reductions to obtain new business

. The Company’s ability to obtain cash adequate to fund 1ts needs, including availability of borowings under its vanous credit facilities

. Fluctuations 1n the price and availability of raw matcrials and other supplics used in the manufactunng and distnbution of the Company's
products

. Matenal shortages, transportation system delays, or other difficultes 1n markets where the Company purchases supplies for the manufactuning of
1ts preducts

. Significant work stoppages, disputes, or any other difficulties in labor markets where the Company obtains matenals necessary for the
manufacturing of its products or where 1ts products are manufiactured, disinbuted or sold

- The Company’s amlity 1o merease 1ts development of fuel cell, hybnd-electnge or other altemative energy technologies

. Changes 1n actuanal assumputions interest costs and discount rates, and fluctuations n the global securittes markets which directly impact the
valuation ofassets and habilities associated with the Company's pension and other postemployment benefit plans

. Vanous warldwide economic, political and social factors, changes in economic conditions, currency fluctuations and devaluations, credit nsks
in emerging markets, or political instability 1n foreign countnes where the Company has significant manufactunng opemtions, customers or
suppliers

- Legal actions and clayms of undetenmined ment and amount wvolving, amoeng other things, product Liability, patent infitngement, warmanty,

recalls of products manutactured or sold by the Company, and environmental and safety issues involving the Company’s products or tacilitics

- Legislative activities ol governments, agencies, and simular orgamizations, both in the United States and 1n other countnes that may atfect the
operations of the Company

. Physical damage to, or loss of, significant manufactuning or distnbution property, plant and equipment due to fire, weather or other factors
beyond the Company’s control

. Possible terronst attacks or acts of aggression or war, that could exacerbate other nsks such as slowed vehicle production or the availability of
supplies for the manufactunng efthe Company’s products

. The Company's ability to effectively transition 1ts information system infrastructure and functions to newer generation systems




PART I

ITEM 1 BUSINESS
The Company

On Apnli 15, 2014, Federal-Mogul Corperation completed a holding company reorganization (the “Reorganization ”) As a result of the Reorgamzation, the
outstanding shates of Federal-Mogul Corporation common stock were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis into shares of Federal-Mogul Holdings
Cormporation common stock, and all of the stockholders of Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately pnor to the Reorgamization automaticatly became
stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation The nghts of stockholders of Federal-Mogu! Holdings Corporation are genemally govemed by
Delaware law and Fedeml-Mogul Holdings Corporation’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are the same in all matenal respects as those of
Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately pnor to the Reorgarization In addition, the board of directors of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation and its
Audit Committee and Compensation Commuttee are composed of the same members as the board of directors, Audit Committee and Compensation
Commuttee of Federal-Mogul Corpeoration pnor to the Reorganization

"o »

References herein to the “Company,” “Federal-Mogul,” “we,” “us,” “our” refer to Federal-Mogu!l Corporation for the perntod pnior to the effective time of the
Rcorganization on Apnl 15, 2614 and to Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation for the penod after the cffective me of the Reorganizanon

On September 3, 2014, the Company announced 1ts plan to sepamate s Powertrmn and Motormpans divisions inte two independent, publicly-traded
companies serving the global ongmal equipment and aftermarket industnies The planned separation will be implemented through a tax-frce distnbution of
Federal-Mogul’s Moterparts division to shareholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corpomtion Completion of the transaction 1s subject 1o customary
conditions, including among others, the Company’s receipt of an IRS ruling or opimion of counsel to the effect that the distnbution will qualify as a
transaction that 1s generally tax-free for US Federal Income tax purposes, as well as effectiveness of a Formn 10 Registration Statement to be filed with the
SEC On February 24, 2015, the Company announced that 1t would defer the previously announced spin-off ot 1ts Motorpants division to allow for the
mtegration of 1ts recently completed brake component, chassis and valvetrain acquisitions and to recognize the benefits of the strategic imtiatives n the
Motorparts division As a result of the deferral and the recent closing of the acquisition of TRW's valvetrain business, the Company will commence a
common stock nghts offenng to strengthen 1ts balance sheet The Company’s board of directors intends to revisit the timing of the spin-off prior to year-end
Meanwhile the company will continue to operate as two separate, independent divisions No assumnces can be given regarding the ultimate timing of the
separation or that it will be consummated

Business Overview

The Company 15 a leading global supplher of technology and innovanon in vehicle and industrial products for fuel economy, emussions reduction and safety
systcras The Company scrves the world’s foremest onginal equipment manutacturers {(“OEM™) and servicers ("OES”) (collectively “OE") of automotive,
Light, medium and heavy-duty commercial vehicles, off-road, agncultural, manne, rail, acrospace, power generation and industnal equipment, as well as the
worldwide aftermarket The Company seeks to participate 1n both of these markets by leveraging 1ts ongmal! equipment product engineenng and
development capability, manufactunng know-how, and expertise 1n managing a broad and deep range of replacement parts to service the aftermarket The
Company believes that 1t 1s umiquely posttioned to effectively manage the hife cycle of a broad range of products to a diverse customer base Federal-Mogul
15 a leading technology supplier and a market share leader in several product categories As of December 31, 2014, the Company had current OEM products
included on more than 300 global vehicle platforms and more than 700 global powertrains used 1n light, medium and heavy-duty vehicles The Company
offers premium brands, OE replacement and entry/mmd level products for all aftermarket customers Therefore, the Company can be first to the aftermarket
with new products, service expertise and customer support This broad range of vehicle and powertrain apphcations reinforces the Company's belief 1n its
unigue market pesition

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments The Powertrain segment focuses on onginal equipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industnal applications The Motorparts segment sells and distributes a broad portfolio of products 1n the global aftermarket, while also
serving onginal equipment manutacturers with products including braking, chassis wipers and other vehicle components This organizational model allows
for a strong product Iine focus benefitting both onginal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive
to customers’ needs for supenor products and to promote greater 1dentification with Federal-Mogul premuum brands Additionally, this ergamizational model
enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for organic or acquisition growth, profit improvement, resource utihzation and business model
optimization 1n hine with the unique requirements of the two different customer bases
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Powertrain offers 1ts customers a diverse array of market-leading products for OE applications, including pastons, piston nings, piston pins, cylinder liners,
valve seats and gurdes, igmition products, dynamuc seals, bonded piston seals, combusiion and exhaust gaskets, static gaskets and seals, ngid heat shields,
engine bearings, tndustnal beanngs, bushings and washers, plus element resistant systems protection sleeving products, acoustic shielding and flexible heat
shields Motorparts offers powertrain products manufactured by Powertrain, distnibuted through globallyrecogmized aftermarket brands to the independent
aftermarket and also effers brake disc pads, brake linings, brake blocks, brake system components, chassis products, wipers, and other product lines to OE and
aftermarket customers

The Company has manufactuning facilities and/or distnbution centers in 26 countnes and, accordingly the Company’s reporting segments denve sales from
both domestic and ntemational markets The attendant nsks of the Company’s international operations are pnmanly related to currency fluctuations,
changes 1n local cconomic and political conditions, extratermitonal cffccts of United States laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and changes 1n
laws and regulatiens

The following tables set forth net sales and net property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") by geographic region as a percentage oftotal net sales and net PP&E,
respectively

Net Sales Net PP&E
Year Ended December 31 December 31
. e 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013
United States B B 36% 3% _38%. 28% 27%]
Mexico 5% 5% 5% 7% 7%
Canada — % 1% 2% — —
Total North America 43% 43% 45% 35% 34%
o - - 7/ - T/ - T _’:t
Germany T T a0 T T T T T % 20% T a%
Fance T 5% 6% 6% 3% T aw)
Belgium 4% 5% 4% 1% 1%
Taly 4% 4% 4% 3% 4%
United Kingdom 3% 3% 4% 4% 4%
‘Other EMEA L 8% _ 6% 6% 13% 13%]
Total EMEA 44% 44% A% 44% 47%
| e ]
Chima 6% 5% 4% 11% 8%
. 3% 4% Te% )
South Amenca 2% 2% 2% ey
'Other - 2% 3% 3% 2% 2%
Total Rest of World 13% 13% 13% 21% 19%
o 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%]|

The following table sets forth net sales by reporting segment as a percentage of total net sales

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net salesby reporting segment . ] . E
Powertrain 57% 57% 56%
L Mewowans T T A as% aa)
100% 100% 100%




Strategy

The Company'’s strategy 1s designed to ¢reate sustainable global profitable growth by leveraging existing and developing new competitive advantages This
strategy consists of the following primary elements

. Provide value-added products to customers 10 all markets served through leading technology and innovation,

. Develop products to enable increased fuel economy and reduce vehicle emissions, plus enable the use of altemative energies,

. Utilize the Company’s leading technology resources to develop advanced and innovative products, processes and manufactunng capabilities,

. Extend the Company’s global reach to suppost 1ts OE customers, furthenng 1ts relationships with leading Asian OEs and strengthening market share
with U 8 and European OEs,

. Assess acquisition and investment opportunities that provide product line expansion, technological advancements, geographic positioning,
penetration of emerging markets (including the BRIC’ markets of Brazil, Russia, India and China) and market share growth,

. Leverage the strength of the Company’s global aftemmarket leading brand positions, product portfolio and range, marketing and selling expertise,
and distnbution and logistics capabilities, and

. Aggressively pursue cost competitiveness 1n all business segments by continuing to dnve productivity 1n existing operations, consolidating and
relocating manufacturing operations to best cost countries, utihzing the Company’s strategic aihiances, and rationalizing business resources and
infrastructure

The Company's strategy 15 to develop and deliver leading technology and innovation which results 1n market share expansion in the OE market and
aftermarket The Company assesses individual opportunitees to execute its strategy based upon estimated sales and margin growth, cost reduction potential,
intemal tnvestment returns, and other critena, and makes investment decisions on a case-by—case basis Oppoctunities meeting or exceeding benchmark retum
criteria may be underiaken through research and development activities, acquisitions, and other strategic alliances, or restructunng activities as further
discussed below

Research and Developmemt The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed to

. provide solutions for customers and bnng new, innovative products to market,

. integrate the Company’s leading technolegies into advanced products and processes,
. provide engineering support forall of the Company s manufacturing sites, and

. provide technological expertise 1n engineenng and design development

Federal-Mogul’s research and development activities are conducted at the Company’s research and development locations Within the United States, these
centers are located 1n Skokie, llhinois, Ann Arbor, Michigan, Plymouth, Michigan, $t Lows, Missourt, Exton, Pennsylvania and Waupun, Wisconsin
tnternationally, the Company's rescarch and development centers are tocated 1n Araras, Brazil, Aubange, Belgium, Noyon Codex, France, Chapel-ca-le-Fnth,
United Kingdom, Coventry, United Kingdom, Burscheid, Germany, Nuremberg, Gemmany, Wiesbaden, Germany, Bad Camberg, Germany, and Shanghai,
China

Each of the Company’s business units 15 engaged 1n engineenng, research and development efforts working closely with customers to develop custom
solutions to meet their nceds Total expenditures for research and development activaties, including product engincenng and validation costs, were $192
mullion, $173 mullion and $173 miihon for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Non-Consolidated Affiliates The Company forms certain affiliations, including joint ventures, to gain share in emerging markets, facilitate the exchange of
technical information and develepment of new products, extend cument product offenngs, provide best cost manufactunng operations, and broaden 1ts
customer base The Company believes that certain of these affihations have provided, and will conunue to provide, opportumities to expand business
retationships with Astan and other OEs operating in BRIC growth markets The Company 1s currently involved 1 29 such affiliations located in 14 different
countnes throughout the world, including China, India, Korea, Russia, Turkey and the United States Of these affihiations, the Company matntains a
controlling nterest 1 16 entities and, accordingly, the financial results of these entities are included n the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company The Company has a non-controlling interest in 13 of 1ts affiliates, of which & are accounted for under the equity method and 5 are accounted for
under the cost method The Company docs not consclidate any entity for whach 1t has a vanable intcrest based solely on power to direct the activitics and
sigmificant participation 1n the entity's expected results that would not otherwise be consolidated based on control through voting interests Further, the
Company’s affiliations are businesses established and maintained in connection with its operattng strategy
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Net sales for the Company’s 16 consohidated affiliates were approximately 5%, 8% and 9% of consolidated net sales for the years ended December 31,2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively The Company's investments 1 non-consolidated affiliates totaled $269 million and $253 mullion as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and the equity 1n eamings of such affiliates amounted to $48 mullion, $34 million and $34 mullion for the years ended December 31
2014,2013 and 2012, respectively

»

Acquisitions On February 6, 2015, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the TRW engine compenents business The business
was acquired through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of approximately $313 million, funded pnmaniy from the
available Replacement Revolver Facility, and subject to certain customary closing and postclosing adjustments The purchase of TRW’s engine valve
business adds a completely new product hine to the Company's portfolio, strengthens the Company's position as a leading developer and supplier of core
components tor engincs, and enhances the Company's ability to support its customers to improve fucl economy and reduce emissions

The assets acquired and habilities assumed will be recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinatrons The preliminary allocation of the purchase pnce will occur in the first quarter 0f 2015 There were no revenues or eamings related to TRW
mncluded in the Company's condensed consolidated statement of income

In July 2014, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business including two recently established
manufactunng facilities in China and Romania which substantially strengthens the manufactunng and engineenng capabihities of the Company's current
global braking pentfolio The business was acquired through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of $169 mllion and a
provisional estimate of §15 mullion subject to certain customary post-closing adjustments, centuigent consideration and other lrabihities

In May 2014, the Company complcted the purchase of the Affinia chassis business This business serves leading U S afiermarket customers with pnvate label
chassis product lines and will allow the Company to broaden 1ts product offening, provide operational synergies and better service customers globally The
purchase pnee was $149 million, net of acquired cash

See Note 3. Aequisitions, to the Consohidated Financial Statements 1ncluded in Item 8 of this report

Ivestitures In connection with its strategic planning process, the Company assesses 1ts operations for market position, product technology and capability,
and profitabihty Those businesses determined by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are considered non-core and may be
considered for divestiture or other exit activities Duntng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested its sintered components operations
located 1n France, 1ts connecting rod manufactunng facility located in Canada, its camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom and 1its fuel pump
business, which mncluded an aftermarket business component and a manufactuning and research and development facility located in the United States These
divestitures have been presented as discontinued operations in the consohdated statements of operations See Note 6, Discontinued Operations, 1o the
Consolhdated Financial Statements, included in [tem 8 of this report

Restructuring Activiies. The Company’s restructunng activities arc undertaken as necessary to execute management’s strategy and streamline operations,
consolidate and take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultmately achieve net cost reductions Restructunng activities include efforts to
integrate and rationalize the Company s businesses and to relocate manufactuning operations to best cost manufactunng locations

Dunng the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $86 nmllion, $40 mulhon and $26 mullion, respectively, in net
restructunng expenses

The Company’s restructunng activities are further discussed in ltem 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysts of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and Note 2, Resiructuring, to the Consolidated Finangial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

The Company’s Products
The following provides an overview of preducts manufactured and distnbuted by the Company’s reporting segments

Powertrain, The Powertrain segment pnmanly represents the Company’s OE business About 93% of Powertrain’s revenue 1s from OE customers, with the
remaining 7% of 1ts revenue being seld directly to the Company’s Motorparts segment for eventual distnibution, by Moterparts, to customers n the
independent aftermarket

Powertrain operates 66 manufactunng sites 1n 18 countnes, serving a large number of major automotive, heavy-duty manne and industnial customers
wortdwide Powertrain denved 34% of 1ts 2014 OE sales 1n North America, 48% 1n Europe, the Middle-East and Afnca ("EMEA™ and 18% in the rest of the
world (' Rest of World *or ROW')




Federal-Mogul 13 one of the world’s leading powertrain component and assembly providers Comprehensive design capability and an extensive preduct
portfohio enable effecuive delivery of a broad range of engine and dnveline components as wetl as engineered solutions to improve fuel economy, reduce
emussions or enhance vehicle performance and durability Products 1n this segment include pistons, piston rings, piston pins, cylinder hiners, valve seats and
gurdes, engine beanngs, industnal beanngs, bushings and washers, 1gniuon products, dynamic seals, bonded piston seals combustion and exhoust gaskets,
static gaskets and seals, ngid heat shields, element resistant systems protection sleeving products, flexible heat shields and Lighting products Powertran
products are used 1n autometive, motorcycle, hght truck, heavy-duty, industnal, commercial equipment {construction, agncultural, power genemation, manne
and railway), aerospace, and small air<ooled engine applications The following provides a description of the vanous products manufactured by Powertrain

Product

Pistons

Piston Rings

Piston Pins

Cylinder Liners

Valve Seats and Guides

Engine Beanngs

Description

The main task of the piston 1s to compress the awr and fiel mixture 1n advance of ignition Following combustion, the
piston relays the combustion energy into mechanical energy In thus process, substantial pressures are exerted on the
pistan, mmposing high demands on 1t in terms of ngadity and temperature reststance Product offenngs include Monostee!
and DuraBowl pistons, winners of the 2006 and 2010 PACE awards (Premier Automotive Suppliers’ Contnbution to
Excellence Award), respectively

The three main tasks of piston nngs 1n 1ntemal combustion engines include (1) sealing the combustion chamber, (2)
supporting heat transfer from the piston to the cylinder wall, and (3} regulating lubncation and ol consumption Products
nclude GDC and LKZ Rings, winners of the 2007 and 2011 PACE awards, respectively

Piston pins attach the piston to the end of the connecting red, allowing the piston to pivet 1n each cycle of the engine and
following the revolution of the crankshaft

Cylinder liners, or sleeves are specially engineered where surfaces formed within the engine block, working 1n tandem
with the piston and nng, as the chamber 1n which the thermal energy of the combustion process 1s converted into
mechantcal energy

Federal-Mogul designs and manufactures a wide vanety of powdered metal inserts used 1n engines and general industnal
applications, which are speeially designed to meet customer requirements for extreme hardness

Engine beanngs provide an intermediate surface between the connecting rod and crankshaft and between the crankshaft
and engine block Their purpose 1s to facilitate the converston of combustion energy 1nto mechanical energy by allowing
low-frichon movement of the connecting rods and crnkshaft when absortbing the power created 1n the combustion
chamber They operate pnncipally under hydrodynamic lubneation conditions

The Company’s beanng product line includes lead-free aluminum engine beanngs commonly used 1n gasoline engines
and bronze beanngs used 1n highly-loaded compression engines such as diesel or gasoline turbocharged models The
Company’s portfolio includes a full range of lead-free beanngs, winner of the 2014 PACE award, developed to meet EU
requirements and covers a range of clectroplated and sputter coated beanings These extremely high performance matenals
support the downsizing of engines and consequent improved fuel economy and CO; reduction The Company’s product
range also includes innovative polymer coated bearings (IROX®) for automotive engines, winner of the 2013 PACE
award These beanngs have a special polymer coated shell that helps to withstand high reciprocating mechanical loads
produced by heavily boosted engines The mnnovative IROX® beanng coating with embedded dry lubricant design
enables these beanngs to operate 1n low lubncation conditions found in hybnd or start-stop engines
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[ndustnal Bearings

Bushings and Washers

Ignition

Dynamc Seals

Bonded Piston Seals

Combustion and Exhaust Gaskets

Static Gaskets and Scals

Rigid Heat Shrelds

Element Resistant Sleeving

Flexible Heat Shuelds

Lighting

Sold under the Deva®and Glycodur?® brands, industrial beanngs are primanly dedicated to applications opembing in
mixed or low lubncation conditions Apphications are mainly diverse industnal motors or converters and include wand
turbines and hydroelectne power generation equipment

Bushings and washers are used 1n engines and transnussions to ensure low fnenon rotation or oscillation of shafis They
are made of bronze alununum or polymer matenal

igmtion products include spark plugs, glow plugs, 1ignition coils and accessories for automotive commercial and
mdusinal applications

Dynamic seals are used between a housing or body structure and mtating or moving shafls to contain lubncants, fluids
and pressure mnside the housing, while keeping out dust and other contamuinates There are numerous areas of application
including engine crankshaft, transmussion dnveshaft, pinion and axle, and wheel seals

Bonded pision seals use hydraulic pressure in transmussions to facilitate gearshift These products are used n automatic,
dual clutch transmussions and continuously vanable transmissions

Combustion and exhaust gaskets are used between two surfaces to contan gas and pressure produced from combustion
These gaskets are pnmanly used on internal combustion engine applications including cylinder head, exhaust mamifold,
exhaust takedown, exhaust gas recirculation and turbocharger gaskets

Static gaskets and seals create a bamer between two surfaces to contain fluids, pressure and gases while keeptng out dust
and other contaminants There are numerous areas of apphcation including engine covers, o1l pans, intake manifolds,
transmussion covers and differential covers

Rigid heat shields are designed to provide a heat and sound bamer to ermtting components These preducts cover a full
range of application on a vehicle from engine to tailpipe

Element resistant sleeving products provide protection of wares, hoses, sensors, and mechanical components and
assemblies from heat. electro-magnetic interference, dint, vibration and moisture Element resistant sleeving products
in¢lude

* automotive wire hamesses and hoses,

* abrasion protection and wire management of cable assemblies,
+ dielectne protection of electncal leads,

* thermal and mechanical protection of hose assemblies, and

+ acoustic insulating and sound-dampening matenals

Flexible heat shields are designed to provide a heat bamer and for thermal management usually in the engine
compartment

Automotive lighting products include power and hghting systems, and intenor and extenor lighting components

Moterparts Motorpants sells and distnbutes a broad portfolio of products 1n the global vehicle aftermarket Approximately 75% of Motorparts® sales are
denved from sales to customers in the attermarket and approximately 25% are attnbutable to sales to the OE market Motorparts operates 33 manufactunng
sites In 16 countries and 24 distnbution centers in 14 countnes Motorparts denved 55% of its sales through North Amenca, 39% in EMEA and 6% i Rest of

World

Motorparts’ products are designed to solve a problem, facihitate nstallation and improve safety, durability and vehicle performance Motorparts® products are
utihzed widely in vehicle braking systems and chassis, as well as in engine and sealing applications and general service Motorpants sells its products, which
total more than 570,000 SKUs, into the independent automotive, heavy-duty and specialty replacement markets Through global market msight, supply
chain expertise and brand and preduct Line management aftermarket and OE customers worldwide benefit from the Company's nnovative technotogy,
manutactunng, supply chain and distnbution expertise




The following table sets forth a descnptien ot the pnncipal products sold by the Company

Eroduct

Light Vehicle Disc
Pads

Commercial Vehicle
Disc Pads

Light Vehicie Drum
Brake Linings

Commercial Vehicle
Full Length Linmngs

Commercial Vehicle
Half Blocks

Railway Brake
Blocks

Chassis

Dnveline Universal
Joints

Combustion and
Exhaust Gaskets

Static Gaskets and
Seals

Wipers

Descniption
A light vehicle disc pad assembly consists of

friction matenal, which dissipates forward momentum by ¢onverting
energy mto heat,

underlayer, which 15 a layer of different fnction matenal placed between
the backplate and fhction matenal to improve strength, provide a thermal
barrier, corrosion resistance, noise pertormance or a combination of these
charactenstics,

backplate, to support and locate the friction matenal 1n the caliper; and

sham, which 1s a2 rubber/metal laminate developed to suppress noise

Commemial vehicle disc brake pads are a growing segment of the fnction market,
superseding drum brakes on trucks, buses, tractor units and trailers The basic
construction of a commercial vehicle disc pad 1s the same as a hght vehicle disc pad

Drum brake hnings are fnction matenal affixed to a brake shoe and fitted on the rcar
service brake, rear parking brake and/er tmnsmission brake apphication

Full length linings are the commercial vehicle equivalent of light vehicle drum brake
linings

Halt blocks arc segments of fnction material made to be nveted onto drum brake
shoes They are used on heavier vehicle applications where discs are not used

Railway brake blocks work by acting on the circumference of the wheel They are
lighter and quieter 1n operation than cast wron blocks However, fiiction performance
1s designed to replicate that of cast 1ron blocks

Chassis parts include ball joints, tie rod ends, sway bar links, 1dler arms, and pitman
arms These components affect vehicle steenng and vehicle nde quality

Dnvchine universal joints which provide a hinkage between a power unit and output
device such as a wheel end or service device

Combustion and exhaust gaskets are used between two surfaces to contain gas and
pressure produced from combustion These gaskets are pnmartiy used on 1ntemal
combustion engine applications including cylinder head, exhaust mamitold, exhaust
takedown, exhaust gas recirculation and turbocharger gaskets

Stauic gaskets and seals create a bamer between two surfaces to contam flnds,
pressure and gases while keeping out dust and other contamunants There are
numerous areas of application including engine covers, o1l pans, intake mamfolds,
shaft scals, transmssion covers and differential covers

Windshield wiper parts include cenventional and profile style wiper blades, blade
refills and wiper aims

Brands

Wagner®, Abex®, Ferodo®
Jund®, Stop®, QuickStop* and
ThermoQuiet®

Ferodo®, Beral®, Abex® and
Stop*

Ferodo® and Wagner®

Ferodo®, Beral®, Abex®and
Jund®

Ferodo®, Beral®, Abex® and

Jund®

Ferodo® and Jund®

MOOG® and Quick Steer®

MOOG* ‘

Fel-Pro*, Payen* and Goetze®

Fel-Pro®, PayenY, Goetze® and
Nattonal®

ANCQO® and Champion®




The main task of the piston 15 to compress the airand fuel mixture 1n advance of

Pistons

1gnition Following combustion, the piston relays the combustion energy into
mechanical energy In this process, substantial pressures are exerted on the piston,

Sealed Power®, Speed Pro®, FP
Diesel® and Nural®

imposing high demands on 1t 1n terms of ngidity and temperature resistance

The three main tasks of piston nngs 1n 1nternal combustion engines are (1) sealing the
combustion chamber, {2} supporting heat transfer from the piston to the cylinder wall

Piston Rings

Sealed Power®, Speed Pro®, FP
DMesel® and Goetze®

and (3) regulating lubnication and o1l consumption

Cyhnder Iiners, or sleeves, are speciaily engineered where surfaces form within the

FP Dhescl® and Goetze®

Champion® and Beru®

Cylindcer liners engine block, working 1n tandem wath the piston and ning, as the chamber 1a which
the thermal energy of the combustion process 1s converted into mechanical energy

lgnition Ignition products include spark plugs, glow plugs, 1gnition cot1ls and accessones for

g automotive, commercial and industnial appheations

Lighting

Replacement vehicle ighting products for automotive and commercial applications

Wagner®

Reporting Segment Financial Information. The following tables summanze net sales, cost of products seld, gress profit and total assets for each reporting i
segment Foradditional information related to the Company’s reporting segments, refer to Note 24, Operations by Reporting Segment and Geographic Area, !

to the Consolidated Financial Statements, mcluded i temn 8 of this report

Net sales
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
{Mullions of Doliars) .

Powertrin S 4430 4173 § 3,926 |
Motorparts 3,192 2935 2853
Tntersegment climmauons _ Teoh T Temy o)

Total $ 7317 % 6786 § G444

Cost of products sold

Year Ended December 31

014 2013 012
_ (Mullions of Dollars)
e _ 5 0B85 0656 5 3470)
Motomparts o ] (2.668) (2.432) "2,390)
:@glggigeﬁéi@wﬁallon; o o N _::' 305 322 —, T 335_'
Total Reporting Segment (6,260) (5,766) (5.525)
Copomatc o = = " @
Total Company 3 (6,260) § (5,766) $ (5.531)




Gross profit

Year Ended Decentber 31

20t4 13 2012
{Millions of Dollars)
Powertrin T § 533 s 517 s 456 |
Mororpans ) 524 503 463
" Total Reporting Segment - 1,057 1,020 919 |
Corporate — — (6)
: Tetal Company 3 1057 % 1,020 § 913 |

Total assets

December 31

2014 2013
{Mlliens of Dollars)
‘Powertrain S 3485 § “?;_3”73—]
Motorparts 3,355 3,055
{" 7 Total Reporng Segment 6,840 6423 |
Corporate 227 754
[ Total Company Assels s 7067 8§ 7,182 |

The Company’s Industry

The automotive light vehicle market, as well as the medium duty/heavy duty commercial market, 1s compnsed of two pnmary segments the OF market in
which the Company's products are used n the manufacture of new vehicles and OE dealer service parts, and the global aftermarket, in which the Company’s
praducts are used as replacement parts for all vehicles in operation on the road, including all previous models

The OFE Market Demand for component parts 1n the OE market 15 generally a function of the number ot new vehicles produced, which ts dnven by macro-
economic factors such as interest rates, fuel pnces, consumer confidence, employment trends, regulatory requirements and trade agreements Although OE
demand 1s t1ed to planned vehicle production, parts suppliers also have the opportunity to grow through increasing thetr product content per vehicle, by
mcreasing market share and by expanding info new or emerging markets Companies with a global presence, leading technology and innovation, and
advanced product engineenng, manufactunng and customer support capabilities are best positioned to tzke advantage of these opportunities

There are currently several sigmficant trends that are impacting the OF market, including the following

. Global Production — The global light and commercial vehiele production in developed markets during 2014 and 2013 was as follows

Global Light and Commercial Vehicle Production

2014 2013
Milhons of Vehicles
!Amenca_ 214 4]
EMEA . o 223 211
[asia - T - 457 439]

While global OE production increased at a moderate pace, the demand for pans, including parts produced the by Company also increased
moderately duning 2014 due to steady demand in the Amencas and EMEA and increased demand in Asia

. Automotive Supply Consolidation ~ Conselidation within the automotive supply base 1s expected to continue as the entire industry evolves and as
the industry responds to the need to achieve economes of scale and global capabilities to serve vehicle manufacturers who are increasingly global
1n theiwr production Suppliers will seek opportunuties to achieve synergies in thewr operations through consolidauon, while stnving to acquire
complementary businesses to improve global competitiveness or to strategically enhance a product offening to global customers
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Globalization of Automotive [ndugiry — OEs are increasingly designing global platforms where the basic design of the vehicle 1s performed 1n one
location, but the vehicle 1s produced and sold 1n numerous geographic markets to realize signihcant economies of scale by imiting vanations across
product designs and geographic regions While developed markets in North Amenica and Europe continue to remain impottant to OEs, mcreased
focus 15 being placed upon expanded design, development and productien within emerging markets for growth opportunities, especially i the
BRIC markets As a result, suppliers must be prepared to provide product and technical resources in support of their customers within these emerging
markets Furthermore, OEs are moving their operations to best cost gecographics outside the US and Western European markets and, accordingly,
OEs are increasingly requinng suppliers to provide parts on a global basis Finally, the Asian OEs continge to expand their reach and market share in
relation to traditional North American and European manufacturers As this trend 1s expected to continue 1nto the foreseeable future, supphers must
be geographically and technically positioned to meet the needs of the Asian OEs

Focus on Fuel Economy, Reduced Emissions and Altemative Fnergy Sources — Increased filel economy and decreased vehicle emissions are of great

importance to OEs as legislators and customers continue to demand more efficient and cleaner operating vehicles Increasingly stnngent fuel
cconomy standards and cnviroumental regulations are dnving OEs to focus on new technologies including downsized, higher output and
turbocharged gasoline engines, diesel and turbocharged diesel, bio-mass and hybnd diesel applications and hybnd, electnc and altemative energy
engines Asa result, the number of powertrin configurations will increase 1n response to the proliferation of commercially available energy sources
Suppliers offenng solutions to OEs related to numerous vehicle fuel and powertrain configurations possess a distinet competitive advantage, which
1s dnving accelerated new product development cycles

Focus on Vehicle Safety - Vehicle safety continues to receive industry attention by OEs as customers view safety as a tundamental dnver 1n
consumer purchasing decisions and legislation looks on improved vehicle safety as a public health 1ssue Accordingly, OEs are seeking suppliers
with new technologies, capabilities and products that have the ability to advance vehicle safety Suppliers that are able to enhance vehicle safety
through innovative products and technologies have a distinct competitive advantage

Pricing Pressures — OEs provide extensive pnicing incentives and financing altematives to consumers in order to generate sales of new vehicles and
retain or gain market share These actions, coupled with the increasing content required to meet regulations, have placed pressures on the OEs’
profits and, tn tum, the OEs expect certam recovery from their supply base Suppliers must continually 1dentify and implement product innovation
and cost reduction activities to fund customer annual pnce concession expectations in order to retain cument business as well as to be competitively
positioned fer future new business opportunities

Raw Matenal Cost Fluctuations — There have been significant fluctuations in recent periods 1n global pnces of aluminum, copper, lead, nickel,
platinum, resins, steel, other base raw matenals and energy Suppliers must continue to identify leading design and nnovative technologecal
solutions and matenal substitution options 10 order to retain a competiive advantage to the extent that cost increases are not passed on to
customers

Energy, Industral and Transport Mackets — Customers continue to develop altematives to histonc infrastructure 1n the energy, industrial and
transport markets This includes power gencrators and other power conversion devices as well as growth 1n the acrospace and high speed raillway
markets and ocean transport Suppliers with the capabihity to utihize automotive expertise to service these and other related markets have a
competitive advantage

The Aftermarket Business Products for the global vehicle afiermarket are sold directly to a wide range of distributors, retail parts stores and mass merchants
that distnbute these products to professional service providers, “do-it-yourself’ consumers and 1n some cases, dircetly to service chains Demand tor
aftermarket products histoncally has been dnven by three pnmary factors (1) the number of vehicles 1n operation, (11) the average age of vehicles, and
(1u) vehicle usage trends These factors, while applicable 1n all regions, vary depending on the composition of the car parc and other factors, which are
discussed 1n greater detail below

Number of Velucles in Operation The global car pare 15 expected to grow to over 1 5 billion by 2020 The car parc growth 1n certain emerging
markets, such as China, 15 increasing at the highest rate, while more mature markets are expected to continue to remain stable or to grow modestly
1n s1ze, indicating that new car sales are well beyond the replacement rate for scrapped vehicles

Increase tn Average 4ge of Fehicles The average age of vehicles on the road 1n the United States has increased since 2002 from 9 6
years to an estimated 10 7 years in 2014 and 1s projected to remain relatively constant at approximately 11 8 years through 2020, dnving the
need for mamntenance and repair work and thereby increasing the averall demand for aftermarket replacement parts in the Unuted States

11




More recent trends in the giobal aftermarket include

Channel Consolidation In the more mature markets of the United States and Western Euvrope, there has been increasing consolidation 1n
aftermarket distnbution networks wath larger, more sophisticated aftermarket distnbutors and retailers gaining market share These distnbutors
generally require larger, more sophisticated suppliers with product expertise, category management and supply chain services and capabilities, as
well as a global manufacturing and services footprint

Growth of Onlme Capabilities Reaching consumers dicectly through online capabilitics, including e-commerce, 1s expected to have an
increasing impact on the global aftermarket industry and how afiermarket products are sold Establishment of a robust online presence will be
cntical for suppliers regardless of whether they intend to participate directly 1n e-commerce

Inciease in Private Label Brands and Low-Cost Country Imports In the United States, there has been an increase in private label or store brands
sold by retailers and distnbutors at a lower pnice point than premum brands of the same preducts However, 1n many cases, retailers or wholesale
distnbutors creating private label brands will still rely on established supphers, like Motorparts, to manufacture thewr pnvate label products and,
In some cases, utihize co-branding to support their pnvate label offerings

Changes tn Consumer Behavior The aftermarket 15 impacted by changes in economic conditions volatility in fuel pnices, and expanding focus
on environmental and energy conservation For example, the number of consumers with the ability to purchase new vehicles in Europe has been
reduced due to adverse economuc conditions, which 1s likely to inerease demand for repanrs 1n order to keep older vehicles road-worthy Increased
environmental regulation will lead to additional replacement pans bemg required on a more frequent basis to meet more exacting standards
Recent lalling fuel pnces 1n the Unmited States are hkely to lead consumers to dnve more and to increase disposable income available for
consumers to purchasc aftermarket automotive parts and complete necessary repairs

The Company’s Customers

The Company supplies OEs with a wide vanety of technologically innovative parts, substantially all of which are manufactured by the Company The
Company’s OE customers consist of automotive and heavy-duty vehicle manufacturers as well as agncultural, off-highway, marne, railtoad, aerospace, high
performance and ndustnal application manufacturers The Company has well-established relationships with substantially all major Amencan, Eurapean and
Asian automotive OFs

The Company’s afiennarket customers include independent warehouse distnbutors who redistnbute products to local parts supphers, distnbutors of heavy-
duty vehicular parts, engine rebuilders, retail pars stores and mass merchants The breadth ef the Company’s product lines, the strength of its leading brand
narnes, marketing expertise, sizable sales force, and 1ts distribution and logistics capability are central to the success of the Company’s Motorparts operations

No individual customer accounted for more than 6% of the Company’s direct sales during 2014

The Company’s Competihon

The global vehicular parts business 1s highly competitive The Company competes with many independent manufacturers and distnbutors of component
parts globally In general, competition for sales 15 based on pnce, product quality, technology delivery, customer service and the breadth of products offered
by a given supplier The Company 1s meeting these competitive challenges by developing leading technologies, efficiently integrating its manufactunng
and distnbution opemtions, expanding 1ts product coverage within 1ts core businesses, restructuring 1ts operations and transfernng production to best cost
countries, and utilizing 1ts worldwide technical centers to develop and provide value-added solutions to 11s customers A summary of the Company’s pnmary
independent competitors by reporting segment 1s set forth below

. Powertrmin — Pnmary competuors include Aisin, Art Metal, BinZou, Bleistahl, Bosch, Daido, Dana/Reinz, Delfingen, Denso, DongYang,
ElnngKlinger, Freudenberg, GKN, Hella Hutachi-Automotive, Kolbenschmidt Mahle, Miba, NGK, NOK, NPR Osram, Pall, Riken, Sinteron, and
Stanley

. Motgpars — Pnmary competitors include Akebono Brake Corporation, Autelite, Brake Parts Inc , Bosch Group, Centric Parts, Crowne Group LLC,

Delpht Automotive LLP, Denso Corporation, Dorman Products, Inc , GRI Engincentng and Development LLC (MAT Holdings, Inc ), Mahle GmbH,
Mevotech Inc, NGK Spark Plug Co, Ltd, NTN Beanng Corporation, Neapeo Inc, Old World Industnes, LLC, Phllips Industnes, Pylon
Manufactunng Corporation, Rain-X (ITW Global Brands), SKF Group, Osram Sylvania Ltd, TRW Automotive Holdings Corp, The Tiumken
Company, Trico Products Corporation and Valeo Group
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The Company’s Backlog

For OE customers, the Company generally receives purchase orders for specific products supplied for particular vehicles These supply relationships typically
extend over the life of the retated vehicle, subject to tnterim design and techmical specification revisions, and do not require the customer to purchase a
minimum gquantity In addition to customary commercial terms and conditions, purchase orders generally provide for annual pnce reductions based upon
expected productivity improvements and other factors Customers typically retain the nght 1o terrminate purchase orders, but the Company generally cannot
terminate purchase orders OE order fulfillment is typically manufactured in response to customer purchase order releases, and the Company ships directly
from a manufactunng location to the customer for use 1n vehicle production and assembly Accordingly, the Company’s manufactunng locations tum
fimshed goods inventory relatively quickly, producing from on-hand raw matenals and work-tn-process inventory within relatively short manufactunng
cycles Significant nsks to the Company include a change in engine production, dnven by mix changes, for powertrain components (¢ g a change from diesel
to gasoline engines), lower than expected vehicle or engine production by one or more of 1ts OE customners or termunation of the business based upon
percerved or actual shortfalls in delivery quality or value

For its Global ARermarket customers, the Company generally establishes product line amangements that encompass all parts offered within a particular
product line These are typically open-ended atrangements that are subject to termunation by either the Company or the customer at any time Pricing 15
market responsive and subject to adjustment based upon competitive pressures, material costs and other commercial factors Global Aftermarket order
fulfillment 1s largely performed from fimished goods imventory stocked i the Company's worldwide distnbution network Inventory stocking levels in the
Company’s distnbution centers are established based upon historical and anticipated future customer demand

Although customer programs typically extend to future periods, and although there 1s an expectation that the Company will supply certain levels of OE
preduction and aftermarket shipments over such penods, the Company belicves that outstanding purchase orders and product hine amangements do not
constitute firm orders Firm orders are linted to specific and authonzed customer purchase order releases placed with 1ts manufactunng and distnbution
centers for actual production and order fulfillment Firm orders are typically fulfilled as promptly as possible after receipt from the conversion cof available
raw matenals and work-in-process inventory for OE orders and from cument on-hand fimshed goods inventory for aftermarket orders The dollar amount of
such purchase order releascs on hand and not precessed at any point in time 1s not believed to be significant bascd upon the timeframe involved

The Company’s Raw Materals and Suppliers

The Company purchases vanous raw matenals and component parts for use 1n 1ts manufactunng processes, including ferrous and nen-ferrous metals, non-
metallic raw matenals, stampings, castings and forgings The Company also purchases parts manufactured by other manufacturers for sale 1n the aftermarket
The Company has not expenenced any significant shortages of raw materials, components or finished parts and normally does not camy mmventones of raw
materals or finished parts 1n excess of those reasonably required to meet its production and shipping schedules In 2014, no outside supplier of the Company
provided products that accounted for more than 3% of the Company's annual purchases

Insight Portfolio Group LLC (formally known as Icahn Sourcing, LLC) - Related Party

Icahn Sourcing, LLC (“Teahn Scurcing”) is an entity formed and controlled by Mr Icahn m erder to maximmize the potential buying power of a group of
entities with which Mr [cahn has a relationship 1n negotiating with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services and tangible and 1ntangible property at
negotiated rates The Company was a member ofthe buying group 1n 2012 Prior to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay Icahn Sourcing any fees or
other amounts with respect to the buyimng group arrangement

In December, 2012, [cahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 1t would restructure 1ts ownership and change tts name to Insight
Pertfolio Group LLC (*Insight Portfolio Group™) In connection with the restructunng, the Company acquired a minonty equaty interest in Insight Portfolhio
Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group’s operating expenses in 2013 The Company's payments to Insight Portfolio Group were less
than $0 5 million dunng 2013 and 2014

Seasonality of the Company’s Business

The Company’s business 1s moderately seasonal because many North Amencan OE customers typically close assembly plants for two weeks in July for model
year changeovers, and for an additional week dunng the December holiday season OE customers in Europe histoncally shut down vehicle production dunng
portions of July and August and one week 1n December Shut-down penods 1n the Rest of World generally vary by country The aftermarket expenences
seasonal fluctuations in sales due to demands caused by weather and dnving patterns Histoncally, the Company’s sales and operating profits have been the
strongest in the second quarter For additional mfermation, refer to the Company’s quarterly financtal results contained in Note 25, Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudtited), to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n [tem 8 of this report
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The Company’s Employee Relations
The Company had 48,600 employees as of December 31 2014

Vanous umions represent approximately 31% of the Company’s US hourly employees and approximately 91% of the Company’s non-US hourly
employees With the exception of two facilities in the U S, most of the Company’s unionized manufactunng facilities have their own contracts with their
own expiration dates and, as a result, no contract expiranon date affects more than one facility

lmpact of Envirenmental Regulations on the Company

The Company’s operations, consistent with those of the manufactunng sector 1n general, are subject to numerous existing and proposed laws and
governmental regulations designed to protect the environment, particularly regarding plant wastes and emissions and sohd waste disposal Capuial
expenditires for property, plant and equipment for environmental control activities did not have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial position or
cash flows in 2014 and are not expected to have a matenial impact on the Company’s financial position or cash flows in 2015

The Company’s Intellectual Property

The Company holds in excess of 5,700 patents and patent applications on a worldwide basis, of which more than 1,160 have been filed 1n the United States
Of the approximately 5,700 patents and patent applications, approximately 30% are 1n production use and/or are licensed to third parties, and the remaining
70% are being considered for tuture production use or provide a strategic technological benefit to the Company

The Company does not matenally rely on any single patent, nor will the expiration of any single patent matenaily affect the Company’s business The
Company’s current patents expire over vartous periods 1nto the year 2036 The Company 1s actively inttoducing and patenting new technolegy to replace
formerly patented technology before the expimation of the existing patents In the aggregate, the Company’s worldwide patent portfolio 1s matenally
umportant to its business because 1t cnables the Company to achieve technological differentiation from its competitors

The Company also mantains more than 6,800 acuve trademark registrations and applications worldwide In excess of90% of these trademark registrations
and applications are in commercial use by the Company or are licensed to third parties

Interests Held by an Entity Controlled by Mr. Carl C lcahn

An enuty indirectly owned and controlled by Mr Icabn filed a Schedule 13D and amendments therein with the Secunties and Cxchange Comnussion
indicating that such entity has a beneficial interest of approximately 80 73% of the Company’s outstanding shares of cemmon stock As a result, Mr Icahn
has the mdirect ability to nominate and elect all of the directors on the Company’s Board of Directors Under applicable law and the Company’s certificate of
incorporation and by-laws, certain actions cannet be taken without the approval of holders of a majonty of the Company’s voting stock including, without
limitation, mergers, the sale of substantially all ofthe Company’s assets, and amendments to 1ts certificate of incorporation and by-laws So long as Mr {cahn
continues to control a majonty of the Company s outstanding capital stock, he will continue to have these govemance nights and the ability to control the
Company

The Company’s Web Site and Access to Filed Reports

The Company maintains an internet Web site at www federalmogul com The contents of the Company’s Web site are not incorporated by reference in this
report The Company provides access to its annual and penodic reponts filed with the SEC free of charge through this Web site The Company’s Integnty
Policy 1s also available on 1ts Web site The SEC maintains a Web site at www SEC gov where reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information about the Company may be obtained Paper copies of annual and pertodic reports filed with the SEC may be obtamned free of charge by
centacting the Company’s headquarters at the address located within the SEC Filings or under [nvestor Relations on the Company’s Web site
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ITEM 1 A RISK FACTORS

An 1nvestment n Federal-Mogul involves vanous nsks The nsks discussed below are not the only ones faced by the Company Please also read the
cautionary note regarding “'Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 2

The separatton of the Company's Powertrain and Motorparts divistons into twe independent, publicly traded companies may not be completed on the
terms or timeline currently contemplated, if at all. Further, the separation will require significant fime, resources and attention from management, which
may distract management from the operation of our business and the execunion of our other imitiatives On September 3, 2014, the Company announced 1ts
mtention to pursue the sepamation of 1ts Powertrmn and Motorpans divisions nte two independent, publicly traded companies (the “Sepamtion
Transaction™) Unanticipated developments could delay or negatively impact the Separation Transaction or increase the Company's expenses relating to the
transaction The Company cannot assure that 1t will be able to complete the Separation Transaction on the terms that were announced or on the anticipated
timeline, 1f at all  If the Company 15 upable to consummate the Separation Transaction, 1t will have mcurred costs without reahizing the benefits of such
transaction  Further, the Separation Transaction will require sigmficant time, resources and attention from management, which may distract management
from the operation of our business and the execution of our other inihatives Our employees may also be distracted due to uncertainty about their future roles
pending the completion of the Separation Transaction [fthe Separmtion Transaction 1s completed, such transaction may not achieve the intended resulis Any
such difficulties could have a matenal adverse effect on The Company's financial condinion, results ot operations or cash flows

The Company’s hquidity may be 1mpacted 1n the short term from its growth activities and strategic imtiatives- The Company 1s pursiing a number of
organic and norgamic growth activities, restructunng plans and strategic imitiatives to increase and improve the Company's business and profitabihty

Management behieves these activities will enhance the Company's long term shareholder value, however, the investment to effectuate these activities may
have an impact on the Company’s shont term hquidity and may create the need for additional borrowing which may be at higher interest rates given the
Company’s current level of indebtedness

The Company has substantial indebtedness, which could restrict the Company’s business activities and could subject the Company to sigmficant interest
rate risk- As of December 31,2014, the Company had approximately $2 7 billion of outstanding indebtedness The Company 1s permutted by the terms of uis
debt mnstruments te 1ncur additional indcbtedness, subject to the restrictions therein The Company’s mability to gencerate sufficient cash flow to satisfy its
debt obligations, or to refinance 1ts debt obligations on commercially reasonable terms, would have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial conditton and results of operations In addinon, covenants in the Company’s debt agreements could Iimet 1ts ability to engage in certarn
transactions and pursue 1ts business strategies, which could adversely affect Liquidity

The Company’s indebtedness could

. linut the Company’s ability to borrow money for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements or other corporate purposes,
guarantee additional debt or 1ssue redeemable, convertible of prefemed equity,

. limit the Company’s ability to make distnbutions or prepay its debt, incur liens, enter 1nto agreements that restnct distnbutions from
restricted subsidianies, sell or otherwise dispose of assets (including capital stock of subsidianes), enter into transactrons with affihates and
merger, consolidate or sell substantizlly all of 1ts assets,

. require the Company to dedicate a substantial portion of its ¢cash flow to payments on indebtedness, which would reduce the amount of cash
flow available to fund working capital, capital expenditures, product development and other corporate requirements,

. increase the Company's vulnerability to geneml adverse economuce and industry conditions, and

. limit the Company’s abilety to respend to business opportunities

A significant portion of the Company’s indebtedness accrues interest at vanable rtes To the extent market interest rates nse, the cost of the Company’s debt
would increase, adversely affecting the Company’s financial condition, results ot operations, and cash flows

The Company’s restructuning activities may not result tn the anticipated synergies and cost savings 1t 15 possible that the achievement of expected
synergres and cost savings associated with restructuring activities wall require additional costs or charges to eamings in tuture periods {1 15 also pessible that
the expected synergies may not be achieved Any costs or charges could adversely impact the business, results of operations, liquidity and financial
condition

15




The Company may pursue acqusitions or other affiliations that involve inherent risks, any of which may cause the Company not to realize anticipated
benefits, and the Company may have difficulty integrating the operations of any compames that may be acquired, which may adversely affect the
Company s resalts of aperations In the past, the Company has grown through acquisitions, and may engage 1n acquisitions in the future as part of the
Company’s sustminable global profitable growth strategy The full benefits of these acquisitions, however, require integration of manufacturing,
administrative, financial, sales, and marketing approaches and personnel If the Company 1s unable to successfully integrate 1ts acquisitions, 1t may not
realize the benefits of the acquisitions, the financial results may be negatively affected, or addinonal cash may be required to integrate such operations

In the future, the Company may not be able to successfully identify suitable acquisition or affiliation opportunities or complete any particular acquisition,
combmnation, affiliation or other transaction on acceptable terms The Company’s idenufication of sumtable acquisition candidates and affiliatron
opportunitics and the integration of acquired business operations involve risks inherent in assessing the valucs, strengths, weaknesses, nsks and profitability
of these opportunities This includes the effects on the Company’s business, diversion of management’s altention and nsks assoctated with unanucipated
problems or unforeseen liabilities, and may require sigmificant finan¢ial resources that would otherwise be used for the ongoing development of the
Company’s business

The difficuliies of integration may be increased by the necessity of coordinating geographically dispersed organizations, mtegrating personnel with disparate
business backgrounds and combiming different corporate cultures These difficulties could be further increased to the extent the Company pursues
acquisition or affiliation opportunities 1ntemationally The Company may not be effective 1n retatning key employees or customets of the combined
businesses The Company may face integration 1ssues pertaiming to the internal controls and operations functions of the acquired companies and also may
not realize cost efficiencies or synergies that were anticipated when selecting the acquisition candidates The Company may expenence managenal or other
conflicts with its affilhation partners Any of these items could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations

The Company’s failure to 1dentify suitable acquisition or )oint venture opportunities may restnct the Company's ability 1o grow 1ts business If the Company
15 successful 1n pursuing future acquisitions or other affiliations, the Company may be required to expend significant funds, incur additional debt and/or
1ssue additional secunties, which may matenally adversely affect results ofoperations [fthe Company spends sigmificant funds or tncurs addiional debt, the
Company’s ability to obtain financing for working capital or other purposes could decline and the Company may be more vulnerable to cconormc downtums
and competitive pressures

Adverse conditions in the automotive market adversely affect demand for the Company’s products and exposes the Company to credit risks of us
customers The revenues of the Company’s operations are closely tied to global OE automobile sales, production levels, and independent aftermarket parts
replacement activity The OE market 1s charactenzed by short-term volatility, with overali expected long-term growth 1n global vehicle sales and production
Automotive production n the local markets served by the Company can be affected by macto-econome factors such as interest rates, fuel pnces, consumer
confidence employment trends, regulatory and legislative oversight requirements and trade agreements A vanation m the level of automobile production
would affect not only sales to OF customers but, depending on the reasons for the change. could impact demand from aftermarket customers The Company’s
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected 1f the Company fails to respond 1n a timely and appropriate manner to changes in the
demand for its products

Accounts recetvable potentially subject the Company te concentrations of credit nsk The Company’s customer base mcludes virtually every sigmificant
global automotive manufacturer, numerous Tier | automotive suppliers, and a large number of distributors and installers of automotive aftermarket pans

Consolidation and increased market power of the Company’s independent afiermarket customers could negatvely affect the Company’s financial
performance: The Company’s independent afiermarket customers are contnuing to consohdate and gain purchasing power and the ability to demand
extended payment terms and other pncing concessions If these trends continue the financial results of the Company’s Motorparts business segment could be
negatively impacted

If the Company loses any of 1ts executive officers or key employees, the Company’s operattans and ability to manage the day-to-day aspects of s business
may be materially adversely affected The Company’s future performance substantially depends on 1ts ability to retain and motivate executive officers and
key employees, both mndividually and as a group It the Company loscs any of 1ts exccutive officers or key cmployces, which have many years of expencnce
with the Company and wathin the automotive industry and other manufactunng industnes, oris unable to recruit qualified personnel, the Company’s ability
to manage the day-to-day aspects of its business may be matenally adversely affected The loss of the services of one or more executive officers or key
employees, who also have strong personal ties with customers and suppliers, could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations

The Company does not currently maintain “key person’ life insurance




The Company’s operations in foreign countries expose the Company fo risks related to economic and political conditions, currency fluctuattons,
import/export restrictions, regulatory and other risks The Company has manufactunng and distnbution facihities 1n many countries Intemational
operations are subject to certain nsks inctuding

. exposure to local economic conditiens,

. exposure to local pohitical conditions (including the nisk of se1izure of assets by foreign govemments),

. currency exchange rate fluctuations (including, but not hmited to, matenal exchange mte fluctuations, such as devaluations) and cumrency controls
. export and import restnctions, and

. compliance with US laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and local laws prohabiting inappropnate payments

The liketihood of such occurrences and their potential effect on the Company are unpredictable and vary from country-tocountry

Certain of the Company's operating entities report their financial condition and results of operations 1n currencies other than the U S dollar (including, but
not hinuted to, Brazilian real, Bntish pound, Chinese yuan renminbi, Czech crown, euro, Indian rupee, Mexican peso, Polish zloty, Russian ruble, South
Korean won and Swedish krona) In reporting its consolidated statements of operations, the Company translates the reported results of these entitics into U S
dollars at the apphcable exchange rates As 8 result, fluctuations in the dollar against foreign cumrencies wall affect the value at which the results of these
entities are included within Federal-Mogul’s consolidated results

The Company 15 exposed to a nisk of gain or loss from changes in foreign exchange rates whenever the Company, or one of its foreign subsidiarnies, enters 1ato
a purchase or sales agreement 1n a cumrency other than 1ts functional currency While the Company reduces such exposure by matching most revenues and
costs within the same cumrency, changes 1n exchange rates could impact the Company’s financial condition or results of operations

The Company is subject to pessible insalvency of financial counterparties The Company engages in numerous financial transactions and contracts
including insurance policies, letters of credit, credit hne agreements, financial denvatives and investment management agreements involving vanous
counterparties The Company 15 subject to the nsk that one or more of these counterparties may become 1nsolvent and therefore be unable to discharge 1ts
obligations under such contracts

The automotive industry 1s highly competitive and the Company's success depends upon its ability to compete effectively 1n the market The Company
operates 1n an extremely competitive industry, dnven by global vehicle production volumes and part replacement trends Business 1s typically awarded to
the supplier offering the most favorable combination of cost, quality, technology and service In addinon, customers continue to require penodic prnce
reductions that require the Company to continually assess, redefine and improve its operations, products and manufactunng capabiltties to maintain and
improve profitability The Company’s management continues to develop and execute mitiatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve 1ts
strategy, however, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to compete effectively 1n the automotive market

The Company's pension obligatnons and other pastemployment benefits could adversely unpact the Company’s operating margins and cash flows The
automotive industry, like other industnes, continues to be impacted by the nsing cost of providing pension and other postemployment benefits In additien,
the Company sponsors certain defined benefit plans worldwide that are underfunded and will require cash payments If the performance of the asscts 1n the
pension plans does not meet the Company’s expectations, or other actuanal assumptions are modified, the Company’s required coninbutions may be higher
than 1t expects See Note 15, Penstons and Other Postemplovment Benefils, to the Consohidated Financial Statements, included 1n ltem 8 of this report

The price of the Company s common stock 15 subject to volatility Vanous factors could cause the market pnice ofthe Company’s common stock to fluctuate
substantially including general tinancial market changes, changes in governmental regulation, sigaificant automotive industry announcements or
developments, the introduction of new products or technologies by the Company or its competitors, and changes in other conditions or trends in the
automotive industry Other factors that could cause the Company’s stock price to fluctuate could be actual or anticipated vanations in the Company’s or its
competitors’ quarterly or annual financial results, financial results falling to meet expectations of analysts or investors, changes 1n secunities analysts’
estimates of the Company's tuture performance or of that ot the Company’s competitors and the general health of the automotive industry
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Mr Carl C Icahn exerts sigmificant influence over the Company and his interests may conflice with the interest of the Company’s other stockholders
Mr Carl C Icahn indirectly controls approximately 80 73% of the voting power of the Company s capital stock and, by virtue of such stock ownership, Is
able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, including

. the election of directors,

. business strategy and policies,

. mergers or other business combinations,

. acquisition or disposition of assets,

. future 1ssuances of common stock or other secunies,

. incurrence of debt or obtaming other sources of financing, and
. the payment of dividends on the Company's commeon stock

The existence of a controlling stockholder may have the effect of making 1t difficult for, or may discourage or delay, a third party from seeking to acquire a
majonty of the Company’s outstanding commen stock, which may adversely affect the market pnce of the stock

Mr Icahn’s interests may not always be consistent with the Company’s interests or with the interests of the Company’s other stockholders Mr Icahn and
entitics controtled by him may also pursue acquisitions or business epportunities that may or may not be complementary to the Company’s business To the
extent that conflicts of interest may anse between the Company and Mr Icahn and hus affiliates, those conflicts may be resolved 1n a manner adverse to the
Company or tts other shareholders

The Company’s stock price may deciine due to sales of shares by Mr Carl C Icahn Sales of substantial amounts of the Company’s common stock by
Mr Icahn and his affiliates, or the perception that these sales may occur, may adversely affect the pnce of the Company’s commen steck and impede 1ts
ability to rmise capital through the 1ssuance ot equity secunties tn the future Mr [cahn 15 contractually entitled, subject to certamn exceptions, to exercise
nghts under a registration nghts agreement to cause the Company to register his shares under the Secunties Act By exercising his registration nghts and
selling a large number of shares, Mr Icahn could cause the pnce of the Company’s common stock to decline No other shareholder has registration nghts

The Company 15 subject to the pension liabilities of all entities in which Mr. Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80% In July 2013
the Company completed a common stock nghts offering The purchases of shares of common stock 1n the nghts offenng icreased the indirect control of Mt
Carl C Icahn to approximately 80 73% of the voting power As a result of the more than 80% ownershup nterest in the Company by Mr Ieahn’s affiliates, the
Company 1s subject to the pension habilities of all entities 1n which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership 1uterest of at least 80% One such enuty,
ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the mimmum funding requirements of the Code and the Employee Retirement
Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2014 if the ACF plans were voluntanly temunated, they would be
underfunded by approximately $82 million as of December 31, 2014 These results are based on the most recent intormatton provided by the plans’ actuanes
These liabilities could increase or decrease, depending on a number of factors, including future changes n benefits, investment retums, and the assumptions
used to calculate the liability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be hable for any failure of ACF to make ongoing pension
contnbutions or to pay the unfunded habihities upon a termuinatton of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entities now or in the future within the
controlled group 1n which the Cempany 1s included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
lhable for any failure of such entities to make ongoing pension contributions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon termination of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of liens 1n favor of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
(“PBGC")against the assets of each member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans oFACF requires 1t to noufy the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1f the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certain extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the occumence of such reportable events

lcahn Enterpnses Holdings LP and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undertaken to indemnify Federal-Mogul for any and all Liability imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Etnployee Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulauion there under (“ERISA™) resulting from the
Company being considered a member of a controlled group within the meaning of ERISA § 4001(a)(14) ot which Amencan Entertainment Properties
Corporation 1s a member, except with respect to liability 1n respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), mamtained by the Company
lcahn Enterprises Holdings L P
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and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to maintain any specific net worth and there can be no guarantee Icahn Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM
Holdings LLC will be able to fund 1ts indemnification obligations to the Company

Certarn disruptions in supply of and changes in the competitive environment for raw materials could adversely affect the Company’s eperating margins
and cash flows The Company purchases a broad range of matenals, components and finished parts The Company also uses a signtficant amount of energy,
both electncity and natural gas, 1n the production of its products Asignificant disruption in the supply ofthese materials, supplies and energy or the failure
of a supplier with whom the Company has established a single source supply rclatnionship could decreasc production and shipping levels, matenally increase
operating costs and matenally adversely affect profit margins Shortages of matenals or intemruptions 1n transportation systems, labor stnkes, work stoppages,
or other interruptions te or difficuluigs in the employment of labor or transportation n the markets where the Company purchases matenal components and
supplies for the production of products or where the products are produced, distnbuted or sold, whether as a result of labor stnfe, war, further acts of terronsm
orotherwise, in each case may adversely affect profitability

In recent periods there have been significant fluctuanions in the pnces of aluminum, copper, lead, nickel, platinum, resins, steel, other base metals and energy
which have had and may continue to have an unfavorable 1mpact on the Company’s business Any continued fluctuations in the pnice or availlabihity of
energy and matenals may have an adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition To address increased costs associated with
these market forces, a number of the Company’s suppliers have implemented surcharges on existing fixed price contracts Without the surcharge, some
supplicrs claim they will be unable to provide adequate supply Competitive and marketing pressures may Linut the Company’s ability to pass some ot the
supply and matenal cost increases on to the Company’s customers and may prevent the Company from doing so m the future Furthermore, the Company's
customers are generally not obligated to accept pnce increases that the Company may desire to pass along to them This inability to pass on price increases to
customers when matenal pnces increase rapidly or to sigmficantly higher than histone levels could adversely affect the Company’s operating margtns and
cash flow, posstbly resulting 1n lower operating income and profitability

The Company’s hedging activities to address commodity price fluctuations may not be successful in offsetting future tncreases in those costs or may reduce
or eltminate the benefits of any decreases in those costs. In order to mitigate shert-term vartauon 1n operating results due 1o the aforementioned commodity
pnce fluctuations, the Company hedges a portion of near-term exposure to certain raw matenals used 1n production processes, pnimanly natural gas, copper,
nickel, un, zinc, high-grade aluminum and aluminum alloy The results of the Company’s hedging practice could be positive, neutral or negative 1n any
penod depending on pnce changes in the hedged exposures

The Company’s hedging activities are not designed to mitigate long-term commodity pnce fluctuations and, therefore, will not protect from long-term
commodity price increases The Company’s future hedging positions may not correlate to actual energy or mw matenals costs, which weuld cause
acceleration in the recogrition of unrealized gains and losses on hedging positions 1n operating results

The Company is subject to a vanety of environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and the cost of complying, or the Company’s fulure to
cemply with such requirements may have a material adverse effect on uts business, financial condition and results of operations The Company 1s subject to
a vanety of federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations relating to the release or discharge of matenals into the environment, the management,
use, processing, handling, storage, transport or disposal of hazardous waste matenals, or etherwise relating to the protection of public and employee health,
safety and the environment These laws and regulations expose the Company to liability for the environmental condition of 1ts cument facilities, and also
may expose the Company to hability for the conduct of ethers or for the Company’s actions that were 1n compliance wath all applicable laws at the time these
actions were taken These laws and regulations also may expose the Company to habihty for claims of personal ijury or property damage related to alleged
exposure to hazardous or toxic matenals in foreign countries Despite the Company’s intention to be in comphance with all such laws and regulations, the
Company cannot guarantee that 1t witl at all ttmes be 1n compliance with all such requirements The cost of complying with these requirements may also
increase substantially in future years If the Company vielates or fails to comply wath these requirements, the Company could be fined or otherwise
sanctioned by regulators These requirements are complex, change frequently and may become more stnngent over ume, which could have a matenal adverse
effect on the Company s business

The Company’s faillure to maintain and comply with environmental permuts that the Company 1s required to maintain could result in fines or penaities or
other sanctions and have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s operations or results Future events, such as new environmental regulations or changces
1in or modified interpretations of existing laws and regulations or enforcement policies, newly discovered information or further investigation or evaluation of
the potential health hazards of products or business activines, may give nse to additional comphance and other costs that could have a matenal adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial conditions and operations
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New regulations related to “conflict minerals” may force us to mncur additonal expenses and may make the Company’s supply chain more complex In
August 2012 the SEC adopted annual disclosure and reporung requirements for those companies who use certmin minerals known as “conflict minerals™
mined from the Democratic Republic of Congo and adjoining countries 1n their products These new requirements required due diligence efforts 1n 2013,
with 1nitial disclosure requirements beginning 1n 2014 There will be significant costs associated with complying with these disclosure requirements,
including for dihigence to determine the sources of conflict munerals used 1n the Company’s products and other potential changes to products, processes or
sources of supply as a consequence of such venfication activities

The Company is tnvolved from time to time in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes, which could have an adverse impact on the
Companys profitabiity and consoiidated financial position. The Company 15 involved in legal proceedings and commereial or contractual disputes that,
from ume to time, arc signficant These are typically claims that ansc i the normal course of business including, without limitation, commercial or
contractual disputes, mcluding disputes with suppliers, ntellectual property matters, personal imjury claims, environmental issues, tax matters and
employment matters No assurances can be given that such proceedings and claims will not have a matenal adverse 1mpact on the Company's profitability
and consolidated financial position

If the Company is unable to protect its intellectual property and prevent its improper use by third parties, the Company’s ability to compete 1n the market
may be harmed- Vanous patent, copyright, trade seerct and trademark laws afford only limuted protection and may not prevent the Company’s competitors
from duplicating the Company’s products or gaining access to 1ts proprietary mformation and technology These means also may not permit the Company to
gain or maintain a competitive advantage

Any of the Company’s patents may be challenged, invalidated, circumvented or rendered unenforceable The Company cannot guarantee that it will be
successtul should one or more of its patents be challenged for any reason and countncs outside the US may dimunush the protection of the Company’s
patents ifthe Company’s patent claims are rendered invalid or unenforceable, or narrowed 1n scope, the patent coverage afforded to the Company's products
could be impaired, which could significantly impede the Company's ability to market 1ts products, negauvely affect 1ts compelitive position and matenally
adversely affect 1ts business and results of operations

The Company’s pending or future patent applications may not result in an 1ssued patent Addinonally, newly 1ssued patents may not provide meanmngful
protection against competitors or against competitive technologies Courts in the United States and 1n other countnes may invalidate the Company’s patents
or find them unenforceable Competitors may also be able to design arcund the Company’s patents Other parties may develop and obtain patent protection
for more effective technologies, designs or methods If these developments were to occur, 1t could have an adverse effect on the Company’s sales If the
Company’s 1ntellectuat property nghts are not adequately protected, the Company may not be able to commercialize its technologies, products or services
and the Company’s competitors could commerciahize the Company’s technologies, which could result in a decrease 1n the Company’s sales and market share
and could matenally adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations

The Company s products conld infringe the intellectual property nghts of others, which may lead to htigation that could itself be costly, could result tn the
payment of substantial damages or royalties, and could prevent the Company from using technology that is essential to 1ts products The Company cannot
guarantee that its products, manufactunng processes ot other methods do not infiinge the patents or other intcllectuat property rights of third partics
[nfringement and other intellectual propernty claims and proceedings brought against the Company, whether successful or not, could result 1n substantial costs
and harm the Cornpany's reputation Such claims and proceedings can also distract and divert management and key personnel from other tasks important (o
the success of its business In addition, intellectual property litigation or claims could force the Company to do one or more of the following

. cease setling or using of any products that incorporate the asserted intellectual property, which would adversely affect the Company's
revenue,

. pay substantial damages for past use of the asserted intellectual property,

. obtain a license from the holder of the asserted intellectual propenty, which license may not be available on reasonable terms, 1f at all, and

. redessgn or rename n the case of trademark claims, products to aveid infringing the inteltectual property nghts of third parties, which may

not be possible and could be costly and time-consuming 1f 1t 1s possible to do
In the event of an adverse determination in an ntellectual property suit or proceeding, or the Company’s failure to license essential technology. the

Company’s sales could be harmed and 1ts costs could increase, which could matenally adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and
results of opermtions
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The Company may be exposed to certain regulatory and financial risks related 1o chimate change- Chimate change 1s conlinuIng 10 rece1ve ever mcreasing
attention worldwide Many scientists, legislators and others aunibute climate change to increased levels of greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide,
which could lead to additional legislative and regulatory efforts to Lumut greenhouse gas emussions The focus on enussions could increase costs associated
with the Company’s operations, including costs for raw matenals and transportation Because the scope of future laws in this area 15 uncertain, the Company
cannot predict the patential impact of such laws on 1ts future consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows
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ITEM 1 B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

ITEM2 PROPERTIES

The Company's world headquarters 1s located 1n Southfield, Michigan, which 15 a leased facility The Company had 174 manufactunng facilities, technical
centers, distnbutton centers, and sales and administration office facilities worldwide at December 31, 2014 Approximately 41% ot the factlities are leased,
the majonty of which are distnbution centers, and sales and admunistration offices The Company owns the remainder of the facilhities

North Rest of
Type of Facility America EMEA Waorld Total
:Manufaclunng facilities 31 41 27 99 |
Technical centers 8 5 1 14
'Distribution centers 11 9 4 24 I
Sales and admimistration offices 9 13 15 37
! 59 68 47 174 |

L

The facilities range 1n size from approximately 100 square feet to 700 thousand square feet Management believes that substantially all of the Company’s
tacilities are 1n good condition and that it has sufficient capacity to meet 1ts current and expected manutfactunng and distnbution needs

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company 1s involved 1n vanous litigation matters regarding environmental matters and other matters as descnbed below

Environmental Matters

The Company 1s a defendant in lawsuits filed, or the recipient of administrative orders 1ssued or demand letters received 1n vanous junsdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA") or other surmlar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws Thesc laws provide that responsible pantics may be liable to pay for remediating contamination resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of property they cumently own or operate, or by others to whom
they sent such subsiances for treatment or other disposition at third panty locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vanous provincial and state agencies that it may be a potentially responsible party (“PRP™)
under such laws for the cost of remedating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other natonal and state or provincisl eavironmental taws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subsequent remedial activities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costliest 1o remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous compames
sent wasles Despite the potential joint and several hiability which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining
to these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small Therefore, the Company believes its exposure for l1ability at
these sttes 18 himited

The Company has also identified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing environmental
contamination, i some cases as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 1s actively seeking to resclve
these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the issues, the
Company has accrued amounts corresponding to 1ts best estimate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractuat obhigations on the basis of
available information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Total environmental llabihties were $15 million and $14 milhion at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively Management believes that such accruals will
be adequate to cover the Company's estimated hability for its exposure 1n respect to such matters In the event that such habilities were to significantly
exceed the amounts recorded by the Company, the Company’s results of operations and financial condition could be matenally atfected At December 31,
2014 management estimates that reasonably possible matenial additional losses above and beyond management’s best estimate of required remediation
costs, as recorded, approximate $40 million
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Other Matters

The Company 15 1nvolved 1n other legal actions and claims, directly and through 1ts subsidianes that anse in the normal course of business Management
does not believe that the outcomes of these other actions or claims are likely to have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, operating
results, or cash flows

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s stock 15 listed on the NASDAQ Global Stock Market
There were approximately 56 stockholders of record of Common Stock as of February 19, 2015 including multiple beneficial holders at depositones, banks

and brokers listed as a single holder of record in the street name of each respective depository, bank or broker High and low sales pnces for the Company’s
common stock for each quarter in 2014 and 2013 are as follows

2014 2013
Qu_a_rter High Low High Low
First $ 2297 _$ 1582 3 988 S 598
Second ) 2051 8 1619 § 1039 8 4 84
{Third $ 2082 3 1487 § 1733 § 992]
Fourth $ 1639 § 1414 § 2115 § 1497

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2014 or 2013 The Company has certain restrictions under its debt facilities from paying dividends in the future

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder retum dunng the five year pened from December 31, 2009 to December 31, 2014 The graph
assumes that 3100 was invested on December 31, 2009, 1n each of the Company’s common steck, the stocks compnsing the S&P 500 Index and the stocks
compnsing the peer group The peer group 1s compnsed on the following companies BorgWamer Inc, Dana, Magna Intemational, Mentor, Tenneco and
TRW This performance graph shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this Form 10-K into
any filing under the Secunties Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this informauon by reference, and
shall not othermise be deemed soliciting matenal or filed under such Acts

Federal Mogul Stock Performance Chart
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents information from the Consolidated Financial Statements as of or for the five years ended December 31, 2014 This information
should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”™ and “Financial Statements
and Supplemental Data **

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
{Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

Consolidated Statementof OperaionsDaa_ ____  ~ ~ — ——— T o0 - T T
Net sales 3 7317 s 6,786 S 6444 S 6719 § 6045
Costofproductssold T T 6 060) (5.766)  (5531)  (5,640)  (5,049)]
Gross profit 1,057 1,020 913 1,079 996
Selh—x_xg ‘Ee_ggﬁja—nd ar.lrmmstrnuve expens;sﬁ o T _{'?7_61)7 i .{7 19) (i70_25“ o (6R0) h ___iélﬁ_)]
OPEB curtailment gains — 19 51 !
'Adjustment of asscts to fur value {144) (&) *Q“g:’)“ M; 279) (2)]
Interest expense, net B {120) (99) (128 1z _(129)
Restructunng expense,net i (86 " (a0) (26) 5 ®)
Amortization expense 49 (A7) @9 (48) (4%
E‘quny camings of ofnon-consohdaéﬁ?ﬁﬂatcs . N 443 34 34 37 32J
Loss on debt exungmshment 24) —_ I —_ —_
Other (expense) income net L (113 3) 26) (18) (17)—]
lncome tax (expcnse) benefit (56} (56) 29 (16) (11)
Ngi}ncoglgﬂgsﬂ_ﬁnm continuwng aperations {161) wr - @n (56) I§SJ
{Loss) inceme from discontinued eperatiens, net of tax — (52) {19 27)
l}-;;vrl;t:;zcgn:e ;t;;l;ﬂTéble to nougzaaiélﬁng interests - mwf‘]) B (8)— 0 ) (Gﬂ
Vet (loss) income attr1butahle to Federal-Mogul $ (168 $ 41 8 (17 s [CL) I 161
* |
Amounts atiributable to Federal-Mogul
Net (loss) {nm&)n;e'ﬁ'(;&ﬁc(;;nﬂmg opemuons s (E6‘-8"5w wmw@aﬁﬂf '_d@_s_) (63} *7__129_‘]
(Loss) ncome | from discontinued operations, net oftax — (52) {19) 27 2
Netmlgss)_incoinhenq o : o o $ (168) % 41 $ 117y § @90 S 161 a|
:a-)_m_gg—_ltl‘Share Summary Attributable to Federal-Mogul T d_:]
Net {loss) income per common shgre bas:g
Net (lggsmcbﬁl?hln CO_I!_t‘iIEl_l‘lg opemtlons . § (s 0715 3§ {099 8 m:_(_ﬁ(_)y_6:4i)__$:-_ 161 ]
(Loss) income from dlscommued | aperations, net of tax — (0 42} {0 19) 0z7n 002
Net (loss)income s (1) $ 033 § (18 §$ ©o1) $ 163 |
ET(IO:;}lncoElc;;r common s-hz;'e diluted T T T T _]
Net (loss) income from continuing operauons 3 (re2y s 075 3 099 § {064y § 1 60
(Loss) ncome fix fmm disconttnued operations, netoftax T _ 042} 09 027) Om
Net (loss) income $ {112) $% 033 $ (nig) s 091y $§ 162
U e |
Welghled average shares outstanding — basic {in rlhions) 1500 1234 989 98 9 989
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted Gnmilions) 15001234 994 994 994 |
Dividends declared per common share $ — % — — § — 3 —
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i - |

2014 2013 2012 2011 010

e
Other Financigl Information

Net cash pro_\;lded from (us;:i by) operating activittes b3 278 % 418 § 33 % 241§ 404
'Expenditures for property, plant, equipment @18) (380 (387) (348) 251}
Depreciation and amortization expense (334) (296} (289) (284) 333)

As of December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Millions of Dollars)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data ]
Total assets b3 7,067 § 7,182 % 6,927 § 7,029 § 7296
Short-term debt, mcluding current pottion of long-term debt 127 1,694 94 88 73 |
Long-term debt - 2,563 905 2,733 2,741 2,752
Federal-Mogul sharcholders’ equity 806 1490 725 953 1277

26




ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESUL TS OF OPERATIONS

The Company

On Apnl 15, 2014, Federal-Mogul Corporation cempleted a holding company reorganization (the “Reorganization™) As a result of the Reorgamization, the
outstanding shares of Federzl-Mogul Corporation common stock were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis into shares of Federal-Mogul Holdings
Corporation common stock, and all of the stockholders of Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately prior to the Reorganization automatically became
stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation The rights of stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation are genemlly governed by
Delaware law and Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are the same 1n all matenal respects as those of
Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately prior to the Reorganmization In addition, the board of directors of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation and 1ts
Audit Commuttee and Compensation Comnurtee are composed of the same members as the board of directors, Audit Commnitee and Compensation
Committee of Federal-Mogul Corporation prior 1o the Reorganization

»ow

References herein to the “Company.” “Federal-Mogul,* ‘we,” “us, " * our refer to Federal-Mogul Corporation for the penod prior to the effective time of the
Reorganization on Apnil 15, 2014 and to Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation for the penod afier the effective time of the Reorganization

On September 3, 2014, the Company announced 1ts plan to separate 1ts Powertrain and Motorparts divisions into two independent, pubhicly-traded
companies serving the global original equipment and aftermarket industnes The planned separation will be implemented through a tax-free distnibution of
Federal-Mogul’s Motorparts diviston to sharcholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation Completien et the transaction 1s subject 10 customary
conditions, including among others, the Company’s receipt of an IRS niling or opinion of counsel to the effect that the distnbution wall qualify as a
transaction that 1s generally tax-free for US Federal Income tax purposes, as wel! as effechiveness of @ Forrn 10 Registration Statement to be filed wath the
SEC On February 24, 2015, the Company anncunced that 1t would defer the previously announced spin-off of 1ts Motorpants division to allow for the
integration of its recently completed brake component, chassis and valyetrain acquisitions and to recognize the benefits of the strategic inttiatives i the
Motorparts division As a result of the deferral and the recent closing of the acquisition of TRW's valvetrain business, the Company will commence a
common stock nghts offenng to strengthen 1ts balance sheet The Company's board of directors intends to revisit the timing of the spin-off pnior to year-end

Meanwhile the company wtll continue to operate as two separate, independent divisions No assurances can be given regarding the ultimate iming of the
separation or that it will be consummated

Overview

Federal-Mogul Corporation 1s a leading globai supplier of a broad range of components, accessones and systems to the automotive, small engine, heavy-
duty, marnne, railroad, agricultural, off4vad, aerospace and energy, industnal and transpon markets, mcluding customers 1 both the orginal equipment
manufacturers and servicers (“OE”) market and the replacement market (“aftermarket™) The Company’s customers include the world's largest automotive OEs
and major distnbutors anrd retailers 1n the independent aftermarket Geographically, the Company denved 36% of its 2014 sales 1n the United States and 64%
intemattonally The Company has operations m established markets including Australia, Belgium, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Spain, Sweden, the United
Kingdom and the Umited States and emerging markets including Argentina, Brazil, China, Czech Republic, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico, Morocco,
Poland, Romania, Russia, South Afnica and Thailand The attendant nsks of the Company's international operations are pnimanly related to cumency
fluctuations, changes in local economee and political conditions, and changes in laws and regulations

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments The Powertrain segment focuses on orgnal equipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industnal applications The Motorparts scgment sclls and distnbutes a broad portfolie of products in the global afiermarket, while also
serving onginal equipment manufacturers with products :ncluding braking, chassis, wipers and other vehicle components This orgamzational model allows
for a strong product line focus benefitting both anginal equipment and aftenmarket customers and enables the global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive
to customers’ needs for supenor products and to promote greater identification with Federal-Mogul premuum brands Additionally, this organizational model
enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for organic or acquisition growth, profit improvement, resource uttlization and business model
optimuzation 1n hine with the unique requirements of'the two different customer bases

The Company operates in an extremely competitive industry, dnven by global vehicle production velumes and part replacement trends Business 1s typically
awarded to the supplier offering the most tavorable combination of cost quality, technology and service Customers continue to require penedic cost
reductions which drive the Company to conunually assess, redefine, and improve 1ts operations, products, and manufactuning capabilities 10 maintain and
improve profitability Management continucs to
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develop and execute initiatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve its strategy for sustainable global profitable growth, mcluding the
following ongomg imtiatives

. Best-Cost Production — The Company has established and expanded manufactunng operations m best-cost countnes in an effort to meet the cost
pressures snherent in the industry and ncrease profitability The Company has manufactuning operations or affiliations in Brazil, China, Czech
Republic, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico, Poland, Romania, Russia, South Afnica, Thailand and Turkey

. Global Organization — Recogmizing the ever-increasing globalization of the automotive industty, the Company organized its pnmary business units
on both a global and regional basis This allows each business to take advantage of best practices in product development, technology and
nnovation, manufactunng capability and capacity as well as adapt to regional customer preferences Furthermore, the Company continues to
develop and implement standardized processes and consolhidated systems to further the direction and petformance of the business

. Global Distnbution Optimization — The Company continued 1ts efforts to optimize 1ts aftermarket distnbution network 1n order to improve both the
efficiency of operations and customer order fulfillment and delivery performance, including imutiatives te streamline 1ts Amencan and European
aftermarket operations, and expand us aftermarket operations in Asia

. Global Delivery Perfprmance — In addition to the disinbution network consolidation effonts, the Company upgraded many of its remaining
distnbution centers with state-of-the-art warehouse management systems Furthermore, the Company has renewed 1ts focus on intemal logistics and

cxecutton of inventory “pull” systems throughout 1ts manutactunng operations and supphers to ensure prompt and accurate replenishment of 1ts
distnbution network

. Expand Asia Pacific Presence — The Company has invested 1n manufactunng operations, both wholly-owned and non-consolidated affiliate
relationships, 1n the Asia Pacific region and mamntains a technical center m Shanghai, China to support the Company's efforts 1 this region The
Company ntends to use these operations and technical center to strengthen 1ts cument, as well as 1o develop new, customer relationships in this
tmportant region

. Customer Valued Technology — The Company has significant engineenng and technical resources throughout 1ts businesses focused on creating
value for customers with innovative solutions for both product applications and manufactunng processes

Crifical Accounting Policies

The accompanying Consohidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this repont, have been prepared in conformity with US GAAP and, accordingly,
the Company’s accounting policies have been disclosed in Note 1, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Polictes, to the
Consolidated Financial Statements The Company considers accounting estumates 1o be ¢riucal accounting policies when

. the estimates involve matters that are highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate 15 made, and
. different estimates or changes to estumates could have a matenal impact on the reported financial position, changes in financial position, or results of
operations

When more than one accounting pnnciple, ot the method of its application, 1s generally accepted, management selects the prnciple or method that 1
considers to be the most appropriate given the specific cicumstances Apphcation of these accounting prineiples requires the Company’s management to
make estimates about the future resolution of existing uncertainties Estimates are typically based upon histoncal expenence, current trends, contractual
documentation, and other information, as appropnate Due to the inherent uncertainty involving estimates, actual results reported 1n the future may differ
from those estimates In preparing these financial statements, management has made 1ts best estimates and judgments of the amounts and disclosures included
n the financial statements, giving due regard to matertahity The following summanzes the Company’s cntical accounting policies

Penston Plans and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans ( Pension Benefits”) and postemployment health care and hife insurance benefits ( ‘Other
Postemployment Benefits” or “OPEB™) for certain employees and retirees around the world Using appropnate actuarial methods and assumptions, the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans and postemployment benefits other than pensions are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715,
Compensation — Retirement Benefits

Actual results that daffer from assumptions used are accumulated and amortized ever future penods and, accordingly, generally affect recognized expense and
the recorded obhgation in future penods Therefore, assumptions used to calculate benefit obligations as of the end of a fiscal year directly 1mpact the

expense to be recogmized 1n future penods The pnmary assumptions affecting the Company's accounting for employee benefits as of December 31 2014 are
as follows
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Long-terin rate of return on plun assets The required use of the expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets may result 1n recogmized retums that
are greater or less than the actual retumns on those plan assets in any given year While the development ofthe long-term rate of retum on assets gives
appropnate consideration te recent fund performance and hisioncal retums, the assumption 1s designed to approximate a long-term prospective rate
The expected long-term rate of return used to calculate net peniodic pension cost 156 95% for US plans and a weighted average of 4 18% for non-

US plans

Discount 1ate The discount rate reflects the effective yield on high quality fixed income secunues avairlable in the marketplace as of the
measurement date to settle pension and postemployment benefit obhigations The weighted-average discount rates used 10 calculate net penodic

benefit cost for the 2014 and year-end obligations as of December 31, 2014 were as follows

Pension Benefits

Other
United States Non-US Postemploy ment
3 Plans Plans Benefits
Used to calculate net penodic benefit cost 455% 349% 4 45%_:§
Used to calculate benehitobligations  385%  177% 3 84%]
. Health care cost trend For postemployment health care plan accounting, the Company reviews extemal data and Company specific histoncal

trends for health care costs to determine the health care cost trend mate The assumed health care cost trend rate used to measure next year's
postemployment health care benefits 1s 7 25% for health care and 7 25% for drug cost, both declining to an ultimate trend rate of 5 00% 1n 2022

The following table dlustrates the sensttivity 1o a change in certain assumptions for projected benefit obligations (“PB(”) associated expense and other
comprehensive loss (“OCL’™) The changes in these assumptions have no impact on the Company’s funding requirements

Pension Benefits

Other Postemployment

United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
Change Change Change
in 2015 Change in Change in Change in Change Change
Pension in Accumulated 2015 Pension in Accumulated m 2015 n
Expense PBO oCL Expense FBO OCL Expense PBO
o o - o (Multions of Dollafs) o .
25 basis point ("bp") decrease in
discountrate  ~ § (I} § 36 5 36 5 1 & 20 § _20) $§ - s 9
25 bp increase 1n dlscouante — &(34) 34 (1) (20) 20 —_ 9
25 bp decrease 1n retum on assets
me z = = o —— — - gt
25 bp increase 1n retumm on assets
rate 2) —_ — — — —_ — —

The assumed health care trend rate has a significant smpact on the amounts reported for non-pension plans The following table 1llustrates the sensitivaty to a
change in the assumed health care trend rate

Tota! Service and

Interest Cost APBO
(Millzens of Dollars)
:»E—O() bp wicrease 1n health care cost trend _lnte__ _ 3 _ w,..; 1 3 32 1
100 bp decrease in health care cost trend rate s (0 $ (28)
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Enwironmental Matters

The Company 15 a defendant 1n lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admunistrative orders 1ssued or demand letters received, 1n vanous junsdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liabihity Act of 1980 (“CERCLA”) or other similar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible partics may be lable to pay for remediating contamination resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants ot property they currently own or operate, or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vanous provincial and state agencies that 1t may be a potentially responsible party (“PRP™)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subsequent remedial actuvities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costliest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential joint and several hability which might be 1mposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining
to these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sttes has generally been smalt Therefore, the Company believes its exposure for liability at
these sites 1s himited

The Company has also 1dentified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing environmental
contarmnation, in some cases as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 1s actively seeking to resolve
these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the issues, the
Company has accrued amounts comesponding 1o 1ts best esumate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the basis of
available information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Recorded environmental habilities were $15 mullion and §14 milhien at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively These accruals are based upon
management’s best estimates, which requires management to make assumptions regarding the costs for remediation activities, the extent to which costs may
be borne by other Lable parties, the financial viability of such partigs, the time penods over which remediation activities will be completed, and other factors
Although management belicves its accruals will be adequate to cover the Company's estimated lability for its exposure 1n respect to such environmental
matters, any changes in the underlying assumptions could matenally impact the Company's future results of operations and financial condition At
December 31, 2014, management estimates that reasonably possible matenal additional losses above and beyond management’s best estimate of required
remediation costs as recorded approximate $40 million

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company rccords assct retirement obhigations (“ARO) in accordance wath FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement and Enviionmental Obligations The
Company’s pnmary ARO activities relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at 1ts factlwies The Company records an ARO at fair value upon
imitial recognition when the amount can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectation that an operating site may be closed orsold The Company
has 1dentified sites with contractual obligations and several sites that are closed or expected to be closed and sold In connection with these sites, the
Company has accrued $24 million and $26 mullion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, tor ARO, pnmanly related to anticipated costs of
removing hazardous building matenals, and has considered impairment 1ssues that may result from capitalization of an ARO

In determining whether the fair value of ARC can reasonably be estimated, the Company must determine 1f the obligation can be assessed i relation to the
acquisition price of the related asset or 1f an active market exists to transfer the obligation If the obhgation cannot be assessed 1n connection with an
acquisition price and 1f no market exists tor the transfer of the obligation, the Company must deterrming 1f it has sufficient information upon which to estimate
the obligation using expected present value techniques This determination requires the Company to estimate the mnge of settlement dates and the potential
methods of settlement, and then to assign the probabilities to the various potential settlement dates and methods

The Company has conditional asset retirement obligations (“CARO™), pnmanly related to removal costs of hazardous matenals in buildings, for which 1t
believes reasonable cost estimates cannot be made at this ttme because the Company does not believe 1t has a reasonable basis to assign probabihities to a
range of potennal scttlement dates tor these retirement obligations Accordingly, the Company 1s currently unable to detenmine amounts to accrue tor CARO
at such sites If new information were to become available whereby the Company could make reasonable probability assessments for these CARQ, the amount
accrued for ARO could change sigmificantly, which could matenally impact the Company s statement of operations and/or financial position Settlements of
ARO 1 the near-future at amounts other than the Company’s best estimates as of December 31, 2014 also could matenally impact the Company’s future
results of operations and financial condition
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Long-Lived Asset Impairment Testing

As a result of fresh-start reporting, long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment ("PP&E"™) have been stated at estimated replacement cost as of
December 31, 2007, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropnate Long-lived assets such as definmite-lived intangible
assets have been stated at farr value as of December 31, 2007 Depreciation and amort:zation 1s computed pnncipally by the straight-line method for financial
reporting purposes and by accelerated methods for income tax purposes Long-lived assets are penodically reviewed for impairment indicators If impairment
indicators exast, the Company performs the required analysis and records an impairment charge, as required, 1n accordance with the subsequent measurement
provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property Plant & Equipment The Company recogmized PP&E smpairments of $19 mutlion, $8 mullion and $43 mullion
for the years ended Decerber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively The 2012 propeny, plant and equpment impairment excludes $7 mitlion related 10
discontinued eperations Discontinued operations are further discussed in Note 6, Discontinued Operations, to the Consolidated Financial Staternents,
included in Item 8 of this report

Goodwill Impairment Testing

[n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, goodwll, and any other intangble asset having an indefinite useful life, must
be reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently 1f events and circumstances anse that suggest the asset may be impatred The Company conducts its
review for goodwitl impairments on October 1 of each year Goodwill impairment testing 1s performed at the reporting unit level The far value of each
reporing unit 15 determined and compared to the camying value If the cammying value exceeds the fair value, then possible goodwill impaimment may exist
and further evaluation 1s required Indefinite-lived mmtangible assets are tested for impairment by companng the fair value to the camrying value It the
carrying value exceeds the fair value, the asset 1s adjusted to fair value

In contemplation of its annual impaiment analysis, the Company noted impaimment indicators existed 1 one reporting umit within the Motorparts segment
inctuding lower than expected profits and cash flows resulting from decreases 1n volumes and pncing pressure from customers  As a result of these
impairment indicators, the Company concluded that there was also a potential impairment of 1ts long-lhived assets and definite-lived intangible assets These
impaiment tests were performed before the goodwill impairment test, and an impairment loss related to long-lived assets of $7 mullion was recognized pnior
to goodwill being tested for impairment The Company then tested goodwll for impaimment and determuned the carrying vatue of one reporting unst, within
the Motorpans segment, exceeded its far value  Accordingly, as part of a second step of the goodwill impairment test, the Company made a prelimunary
conclusion that the carrying amount of the reporting uauts’ goodwill exceeded the imphed fair value of that goodwill and an impawment loss of $120 mullion
was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2014 Due to the complexity of the second step of the goodwill impaiment test, the Company expects to
finalize its assessment of the of goodwill impaimment dunng the first quarter of 2015 Any resulting difference 1n the amount of the impairment will be
adjusted at that time

The Company has nine reporting unats that have goodwill The following table categonzes the Company's goodwill by reporting unit as of October 1, 2014
according to the level of excess between the reporting umit’s fair value and camrying value giving effect 1o the 2014 impairment charges

Fair Value
Exceeds
Carrying Value Goodwill
) L __A(bljﬂlom of Dollmls)
:_l_l_e_pior“t_l_ggmUmls 1-4 _ >15% 3 13B
Reporting Units 5 -9 >30% 570

| ] 701}

| ——— -

In order to ahign with 1ts regional focus, as of December 31, 2014, the Motorparts segment moved from a product<entered reporting structure to a regional
reporting structure The analysis above, reflects the regional reperting umits of the Motorparts segment

Orher Indefintze-Lived intangible Assets Imparrment Testing

The Company performs 1ts annual trademarks and brand names impairment analysis as of October 1, or more frequently 1f impaimment indicators exist, in
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Tepic 350, fnrangibles — Goodwill and Other This impairment analysis compares the
fair values of these assets to the related carrying values, and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of carrying values over fair values These fair
valucs are bascd upon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of retumn appropnate for
these intangible assets
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All of the Company's trademarks and brand names are associated with its aftermarket sales and are further broken down by product line The pnmary, and
most sensiive, mput utihzed i1n determining the fair values of trademarks and brand names is aftermarket sales by product line The Company performed a
sensiivity analysis on its trademarks and brand names and detenmined that a one percentage point decrease 1n 1ts projected future sales growth rates within
each aftermarket product line would result 1n a $2 million impaimment

Results of Impairment Testing Described Above
The Company recorded total impatrment charges for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Millions of Dollars)
Goodwll $ 120§ — 3 96 |
Property, plant and equipment 19 8 43
r__Ot_hEn_dc_ﬁ_mtc—hvcd‘ mtangible assets — e 4ﬂ
Investments 1n non-consclidated affiliates 5 — 2
I $ 144§ 8 % 187 |

Impairments of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are discussed further in Note 8, Faur Value Measurements and Note 11, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets

The 2012 property, plant and equipment impairment excludes $7 mullion related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed in
Note 6, Discontinued Operations

The Company’s adjustment of assets to fair value 15 further discussed 1n Note 3, Adjustment of Assets io Farr Value to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
included 1n Item 8 ofthis report

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation (“FASB ASC 718”),
which requires companres to expense the fair value of employee stock options and other forms of stock-based compensation Estimating fair value for shared-
based payments in accordance with FASB ASC 718 requires management to make assumptions regarding expected volatility of the underlying shares, the
nsk-free rate over the hfe of the share-based payment, and the date on which share-based payments will be settled Any differences in actual results from
management’s estimates ¢ould result in fair values different from estimated fair values, which could matenally impact the Company’s future results of
operations and financial condition Additional financial information related to the Company’s share-bascd payments 1s presented 1n Note 21, Srock-Based
Compensation to the Consohdated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report

Income Tuxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“FASB ASC 740™) The determination of the Company’s
tax provision 1s complex due to operations in many tax junsdictions outstde the United States Deferred tax assets and hiabihiies are recogmized for the future
tax consequences attnbutable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and hiabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and other tax loss and credit camyforwards The realization of deferred tax assets 1s dependent upon the Company's ability to generate future
taxable income The Company records a valuation allowance to offset 1ts deferred tax assets to the amount that 1t believes 1s more hikely than not to be
realized Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income 1n the years in which those temperary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled The Company records a valuation allowance that primanly represents operating and other loss
camyforwards for which utilization 1s uncertain Management judgment 15 required i determming the Company’s provision for income taxes, deferred tax
assets and liabilities and the valuation allowance recorded against the Company s net deferred tax assets
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The Company did not record taxes on 1ts undistributed earnings of $902 million at December 31, 2014 since these eamings are considered by the Company
to be permanently reinvested Ifat some future date, these eamings cease to be permanently reinvested, the Company may be subject to United States income
taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Determining the unrecogmized deferred tax Liability on the potennial distnbution of these eamings 1s
not practicable as such hiability, 1fany, 1s dependent on circumstances existing when remittance occurs

At December 31, 2014, the Company had deferred tax assets of $230 million, net of a valuation allowance ot $1,314 milhon, and deferred tax habilities of
3494 millicn At December 31,2013, the Company had defermred tax assets of $236 million, net of a valuation allowance of $1,151 million, and deferred tax
Liabilities of 3492 million

The Company 1s subject 1o income taxes tn the US at the federal and state level and numerous non-US junsdictions Sign:ificant judgment 1s required 1n
determining the Company’s worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assets and liabilinies In the ordinary course of business, there are
many transactions and calculauons where the ultimate tax determination 1s less than centain Accruals for income tax contingencies are provided for i
accordance with the requirements of FASB ASC 740 The Company’s U § federal and certain state income tax retums and certain non-U S income tax returns
are currently under varous stages of audit by applicable tax authonties Although the outcome of ongoing tax audits 15 always uncertain, management
believes that it has appropnate suppon for the positions taken on 1ts tax retums and that its annual tax provisions include amounts sufficient to pay
assessments, tf any, which may be propesed by the taxsng authonties At December 31,2014, the Company has recorded a liability for 1ts best estimate of the
more likely than not loss on certain of its tax positions, which 1s included in other non—current habihities Nonetheless, the amounts ultimately paid. if any,
upon resclution of the 1ssues raised by the taxing authorities may differ matenally from the amounts accrued for each year

On July 11, 2013, the Company became part of an affiliated group of cerporations as defined in Section 1504 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986 ("the
Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp (“AEP™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ieahn Enterprises, 1s the common parent The
Company subsequently entered 1nto a tax altocation agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP
and the Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax items The Company will join AEP in the filing of AEP's federal consolidated retum
and certain state consohidated retums In those yunsdictions where the Company 1s filing consolidated retums with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any
tax 1t would have owed had it continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce its tax Liability as a result of
including the Company 1n its consolidated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will camryforward
for 1ts own use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the 1tems that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax Benefits”) While a member of the AEP
affihated group the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, 1f the Company should ever
become deconsohidated from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax {iability 1n post<decensolidation years the Company would not have paid
had 1t actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-deconsohdation cannot exceed the
cumulative reductions in tax to the ACP group resulting from its use ot the Excess Tax Bencfits Scparate return methodology will be used 1n determmuning
income taxes

33




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Company’s results of operations should be read in connection wath Items 1, 3 and 7A of this Form 10-K, as well as “Forward-
Looking Statements™ and Item 1| A “Risk Factors " These items provide additional relevant information regarding the business of the Company, its strategy,
and the vanous industry dynamics in the OE market and the aftermarket which have a direct and significant impact on the Company's results of operations, as
well as the nisks associated with the Company’s business

Consolidated Results

Net sales
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

(Millions of Dollars)
Powertratn 5 4430 § 4173 % 3,926 |
Molorpanis 3,192 2,938 2,853
Intersegment eliminations (305) (322} (335)]

Total 3 7317 % 6,786 $ 6,444
Net sales by group and region
Powertrain Motorparts Tatal
! 2014 |
North Amenca 34% 55% 41%
‘EMEA 48% 39% 44%)
Rest of World 18% 6% 13%
r
! ]
203

;rNorlh Amenca 34% 57% 4@
EMEA 49% 37% 44%
Rest of World 17% 6% 13%

i 2012 ]

North Amenca 32% 61% 45%
EMEA 50% 32% 42%
Rest of World 18% 7% 13%

Cost of products sold

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{¥hlhons of Dollars)
Powertran $ (3.897) § (3.656) S (3,470)]
Motorparts (2 668) (2,432) (2,390)
flr;;ér-begment eliminations o 305 } R i 5_35—]
Total Reporting Segment {6 260) (5.766) (5,525)
Compmie T T - = @
Total Company 3 (6 260) $ (5,766) % (5,531
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Gross profit by reporting segment

Year Ended Decernber 31

2014 2013 2012
{Mullions of Dollars)
fgwg_ngm i o - $ 5331 % 517 % 4_5_§]
Motorparts 524 503 463
z"_"fof_aliﬂigoﬂqgﬁse_ggzr?_;— Uwiﬁ ﬁ; o ) 1,057 e 919
Gopome T T T e e T o
| TomlCompany "~ "~ " " T 1,057 8 1020 S 913 |

Consolidated Results — 2014 versus 2013

Consolidated net sales increased by $531 mullion, or 8%, t0 $7,317 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $6,786 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013 Excluding the impact of unfavorable foreign cumency of $51 million, sales increased by $582 million or 9% on a constant dollar basis
This increase 1s dnven by sales growth in the Powertrain diviston of $301 milhion or 8% and an increase 1n sales in the Motorparts division of $281 mullion or
10%, dnven by the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell brake component business acquisitions

The sales growth of the Company's Powentrain segment of $301 million 1s dnven by an increase 1n Powertrain's velumes of $330 mullion, partially offset by
customer price reductions of $29 mullion This increase comes from higher sales volumes and market share gains across all regions In Europe, Powertrain
sales increased by 6% or $108 milhion compared to an increase 1n European light vehicle production of4% and a decrease 1n commercial vehicle production
of 9% In North Amenca, Powertrain sales increased by 9% or $117 million compared to an increase in both light vehicle and commercial vehicle production
of 5% and 12% respectively In ROW, as Powertrain's presence 1n the emerging light vehicle market continued to grow, Powertrain sales increased by $76
mullion or 12%, compared to an increase i light vehicle production of 1% and a decline 1n commercial velucle production of 2% When taking into account
Powertrain's regional and market mix, its sales therefore grew in excess of underlying market demand

Net sales in the Motorparts division increased by 3281 million or 10% as a result of the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell brake component acquisitions
This increase was partially offset by a decrease in sales in North Amenca of 2% pnmanly due to the exit of certain unprofitable business In Europe,
Motorparts base sales decreased by 3% largely dnven by Eastem European sales decline Sales in the ROW increased by 4% dnven by stronger aftermarket
demand 1n the China and India

Cost of products sold increased by $494 mullion to $6,260 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $5,766 million for the year ended
December31,2013 Including acquisitions, the increase 1n matenals, labor and overheads as a direct result of the increase in extemal and inter-segment sales
volumes was $507 million The impact from Motorpars strategic imitiatives and project costs and unfavorable productivity of$38 million, as well as the
increase in depreciation of $26 million were partiatly offset by savings tn matenal costs of $34 rmllion and foreign currency of $43 million

Gross profit increased by $37 mullion to $1,057 mullion, or 14 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $1,020 million or15 0% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 The favorable impact on gross profit due to sales volumes/mix was $107 million, including acquisitions
Favorable matenals and services soutcing savings of 334 million were offset by unfavorable customer pricing of $3¢ mullion, project costs and costs related
1o Motorparts sirategic iitiatives of $27 mullion, increased depreciation of $26 miilion, and unfavorable productivity of $11 million

Consohdated Results - 2013 versus 2012

Consoclidated net sales increased by $342 mullion, or 5%, to $6,786 nullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $6,444 mutlion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 with a favorable foretgn currency impact of $24 million Excluding sales directly related to the acquusiton of the spark plug business
from BorgWamer, Inc ("BWA") of $43 multlion and sales from the European distnibution agreement for tgnition products of $112 mullion, sales organically
increased by 5163 milhon, which 1s net of $19 million from customer price decreases This organic growth 1s compnsed of Powertrain increases of $202
mullion partially offset by Motorparts decreases of $39 muillion
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Given Powertrain's weighted market presence in the Light vehicle, commercial vehicle and industnial markets and the year-over-year changes in production
rates for those markets, the expected Powertrain sales change would be negligible compared to the pnor year However. Powertrain sales increased by 5%,
excluding the impact on sales from the acqusition of the spark plug business from BWA - reflecting growth m excess of the underlying market This was
dniven by an increase in sales in North Amenca of 10%, an increase 1n sales in ROW of 12% and an increase (n sales tn Europe of 1%

In the Motorparts segment, extemnal sales volumes decreased by $39 milhion excluding the impact of sales from the European distnbution agreement for
igmtion preducts of $112 mallion This was matinty attnbutable to the decrease in sales in North Amenca of3% Thus reflects the exit of selected non-strategic
business contracts as well as a softening in the export business, mainly into Venezuela as a result of a tightening in exchange rate control 1n the country
However this was partly offset by an increase in sales in Motorparts Europe of 4% resulting from aftermarket volume gains and improved market conditions

Cost of products sold increased by $235 million to $5,766 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $5,531 mulhion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 The mcrease in matenals, labor and overheads as a direct result of the ncrease in external and inter-segment sales volumes was §249
mullion along with an increase of $33 milhien directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business rom BWA Matenals and sourcing savings of $71
million and favorable productivity of $2 rmullion were partly offsct by currency movements of $20 mullion

Gross profit increased by $107 mullion te $1,020 million, or 15 0% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $913 million, or 14 2% of
sales for the year ended December 31, 2012, driven mainly by matenals and services sourcing savings of $71 mullion As well, the product nux issues
expenenced 1n the first half of the year due to commercial vehicle production declining te a greater extent than Lhight vehicle production has stabilized
Theretore, the 1mpact on gross profit due to volume increases was an mcerease of $57 million Other factors contnbuting to the increased profit were $10
million from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA, reduced pension expense of $6 mtlion, $4 million of cumrency movements, and favorable
productivity of 32 mullion These increases were partially offset by unfavorable customer pncing of $19 mullton, $12 mithion of increased depreciation, and
unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $12 milhion
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Reporting Segment Results 2014 versus 2013

The following table provides a reconcihiation of changes 1n net sales, cost of products sold,

gross profit and operational EBITDA for the year ended

December 31, 2014 compared with the year ended December 31, 2013 for each of the Company’s reporting segments Operational EBITDA 15 defined as
eamings from continuing operations before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain items such as restructunng and impawment
charges, Chapter 11 and U K. Adminisiration related reorganization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of businesses, the non-service cost components of

the US based funded pension plan, OPEB cunailment gains or losses, the income statement

impacts associated with stock appreciation nghts, loss on

extinguishment of debt and costs assoctated with acquisitions, legal separation and headquarters relocation

Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total
(M:llions of Dellars)
2013 Sales $ 4173 S 2935 §  (322) S 6786 S — § 6,786 |
Extemal sales volumes 330 282 — 612 — 612
Inter-segment sales volumes —— G = = =]
Customer pricing 29 (1) — 30y I —_(30)
Foreigncurrency E) @4 — Sn — . Gy
2014 Sales $ 4,430 § 3,192 % (305) § 7317 § — § 71317
p e mm e e it e e -
o e - _— ]
Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Maotorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total
2013 Costof Products Sold S (3,656) S (2432) S 322 S (5766) S _— §_(5,766)]
Extemal sales volumes / mux (252) (253) - (505) — (5035)
enseginent saisovolume - TS () N NS}
Productivity, net of intlation @) (7N —_ (1) _— "“(l 1)
j’;&]fgt}ovsul;(_saegla;ﬁlalwes . B o _"_(j 75_- B (10) — . @n o (27ﬂ
Matenals and scrvices sourcing 1 23 — 34 — 34
Deprecration ae) (10) — (26) — 26)]
Foreign currency 22 21 — 43 — 43
2014 Cost of Products Sold 5 (3.897) 3 (2,668) 3 305 8 (6,260) S — $ (6260}
Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total
2013 Gross Profit 5 517§ 503§ — 5 100 s — § 1,020 |
Extemal sales volumes / mix 78 29 — 107 — 107
inter-scgment sales volumes 7 — —_ — _ —]
Unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales {2) — —_ (2) — 2)
Customer prcing 29) (1) — 30) —~ w0
Productivity, net of inflation (4) (7) — (11) _ (11}
:?P_r?]cct costs / strategic mihalves (17} (10) — (2N — (27_)_|
Matenals and services sourcing I 23 — 34 — 34
Depreciation 16 ) - 76) - 63
F_'(‘)!til_g_n-currcncy (5) {3) — (8) — (8)
2014 Grass Profit s 533 8 s s — 5 1057 s — 51057
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Toatal

Inter-segment Reporting

Powertraln Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total
2013 Operational EBITDA _ - s 378§ 213§ — § 591§ — 8 591]
External sales volumes / mix 82 12 — 94 — 94
Unabsorbed fixed costs on mter-segment sales 2) - —_- @ — @)
Customer pricing (29 n — (30) — (30)
Productvity, net of inflation - (8) — _8) — @)}
Project costs / strategic initiatives (18) (32) — (50) — (30)
'Sourcing, cost of producis sold 11 23 — 34 — 34
Sourcing, SG&A — 2 — 2 — 2
‘Equity eamnings of non-consolidated affiliates 10 2 o 12 e ___LZ_J
Foreign cumency 3) (7 — (10) — (10)
Other — O — ®) — )
2014 Operational EBITDA 5 429 8 195 % —  § 624 § — 8 624
fbetn
1D'.epJ:vecmEl:in and amortization mgy_ﬂ
Adjustment of assets to fair value (144)
@ercst expense, net (120}
Restructunng expense, net (86)
'Loss on debt extinguishment (}_‘Tﬂ
Acquisition related costs B o (16)
Lliggal separation costs {1 Oﬂ
Headquarters relocation costs (6}
iNen-service cost components associated with U S based
funded pension plans 6
Stock appreciation nghts 4
—
Income tax expense (56ﬂ
Other 1
—
INet income s (161)]

Powertram

Sales increased by $257 million to $4,430 rmillion for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $4,173 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2013
Excluding unfavorable foreign currency impact of $27 mulhion, external sales volumes increased by $301 million, including the impact of customer price
reductions of $29 million This increase 1s dniven by higher sales volumes and market share gains across all regions In Europe, Powertrain sales increased by
6% or $108 million compared to an increase i European hight vehicle production of 4% and a decrease in commercial vehicle production of 9% In North
Amenca, Powertrain sales increased by 9% or $117 million compared to an increase in both light vehicle and commercial vehicle production of 5% and 12%
respectively In ROW, as Powertrain's presence in the emerging hght vehicle market continued to grow, Powertrain sales increased by $76 million or 12%,
compared to an increase 1n light vehicle production of 1% and a decline 1n commercial vehicle production of 2% When taking into account Powertrain's
regional and market mix, its sales theretore grew in excess of underlying market demand

Cost of products sold increased by $241 million to $3,897 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $3,656 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013 The increase 1n matenals, labor and everhead as a direct result of extemal and inter-segment sales volumes/mix was $237 million The
1ncrease from project costs of $17 mullion, increased depreciation of $16 mullion, and unfavorable productivity of $4 million, were partially offset by foreign
currency impacts of $22 million and savings in matenals and services sourcmg costs of $1 1 million
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Gross profit increased by $16 mulhion to $533 mullion, or 12% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $517 nullion, or 12 4% of sales,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 Gross profit increased by $78 mitlion due to the increase 1n extemal sates volumes/mux, representing a conversion of
24% on the incremental sales However, this was partly offset by unfavorable customer pricing of $29 mullion and increased depreciation of $16 mllion In
addition, gross profit was further impacted by project cost spending of $17 nullion related to 1 continued expansion and improvement of Powertrain's
manutactunng footprint in order to meet customer demand and improve the cost structure

Operational EBITDA increased by $51 mullion to $429 mullion or ¢ 7% of sales for the year ended December 31,2014 from $378 mullion or 9 1% of sales for
the year ended December 31, 2013 The increase 1n Operational EBITDA was dnven by market share gains and volume increases across all regions which
umproved Operational EBITDA by $82 mullion Addiuonally, Operational EBITDA increased from savings from materials and services sourcing of $11
mullson and a $10 mulhion increase in eamings from non-consohidated affiliates These increases were partially offset by unfavorable customer pricing of $29
million and project costs of $18 mullton

Motarparts

Sales increased by 8257 million, or 9%, to $3,192 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014, from $2,935 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013
Excluding unfavorable toreign currency impact of $24 milhion, sales increased by $281 mullion or 10% dniven by the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell
brake component business acquisitions This increase was partially offset by a decrease 1n sales tn North Amenca of 2% pnmanly due to the exat of certan
unprofitable business In Europe, Motorparts base sales decreased by 3% largely dnven by Eastem European sales decline Sales in the ROW 1ncreased by 4%
dnven by stronger aftermarket demand 1n the China and India

Cost of products sold increased by $236 million to $2,668 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $2.432 million for the year ended
December 31,2013 Including acquisitions the mcrease 1n matenals labor and overheads volumes was $253 mllion Cost of products sold further increased
due to increased depreciation of $10 nullion, project costs of $10 million and $7 million of unfavorable productivity These increases were partially offset by
matenals and services sourcing savings of $23 mullion and currency movements of $21 mallion

Gross profit increased by $21 mullion to $524 million, or 16 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $503 million or 17 1% of sales,
for the year ended December31,2013 The increase in gross profit of $23 mitllion includes the additional volume from the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell
brake component business acquisition Gross profit further increased by $23 mullion from matenals and services sourcing savings, but was offset by increased
depreciation of $10 million, project costs of $10 mullton and $7 muthon of unfaverable productivity Gross margin percentage was negatively impacted by
the inclusion of the Honeywell brake component business which 1s operating with a lower gross margin percentage than the Company's existing business
(Honeywell was 1 the process of completing 1ts restructunng and ramping up production at 1ts two new low=cost facilities in Romama and China when
acquired) Excluding the impact from the Honeywell bmake component business acquisition, gross margin tncreased to 17 4% for the year ended
December 31,2014

Opcrational EBITDA decreased by $18 nmullion to $195 mulhon for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $213 mullion for the year ended December 31,
2013 EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes costs related to strategic intiatives of $21 million and integration costs related to the Affima
chassis and the Honeywell brake component business acquisition of $14 milhion In addition, Operational EBITDA was negatively impacted by unfavorable
foreign currency, other reductions pnmanly related to weaker performance tn the wiper business, offset by savings in matenals and sourced products for a net
impact of $9 mulhion

Selling, General and Adminstrative Expense

Selling, general and admunisirative expenses (“SG&A™) were $776 mullion, or 10 6% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to $719
million, or 10 6% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 This $57 mullion increase was pnmanly dnven by SG&A costs related to the Affima
chassis and the Honeywell brake component business acquisitton of $36 million Additionally, the Company incurred during the year $39 mullion of
acquisition and integration related costs pnmanly related to the Affinia chassis and Honeywell brake acquisitions, as well as costs related to strategic
mitiatives in Motorpars

The Company maintans technical centers throughout the world designed to 1ntegrate the Company's leading technologies into advanced products and
processes, to provide engineenng support for all of the Company’s manufactunng sites, and to provide technological expertise n engineenng and design
development providing solutions for customers and brnnging new, innovative products to market Included in SG&A were research and development
("R&D"} costs, including product and validation costs, of $192 muilion and $173 million for the ycars cnded December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively

39




OPEB Curtailment Gain

Duning the second quarter of 2013, the Company ceased operations at one of its U $ manufactunng locations As this location participated in the Company's
US Welfare Benefit Plan, the plan was re-measured due to 1ts curtailment imphcations The resulting reduction 1n the average remamning future service
penod to the full eligibility date of the remaining active plan participants in the Company’s US Welfare Benefit Plan tnggered the recognition of a $19
million OPEB curtallment gain, which was recognized In the consclidated statements of operations dunng the second quarter 0f 2013 The calculation of the
curtaslment excluded the newly created priot service credut

Interest Expense, Net

Net mnterest expense was $120 muilion in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $99 milhion for the year ended December 31, 2013 The increasc 1s
prmanly due to the increased interest rates after the refinancing ofthe Company's term loans tn Apnl 2014

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net was §11 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $3 mullion for the year ended December31,2013

Foreign currency exchange The Company recogmzed 37 mullion 1n fereign currency exchange losses during the year ended December 31, 2014, compared
to $10 million in foreign currency exchange losses dunng the yearended December 31, 2013
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Reporting Segment Results 2013 versus 2012

The following table provides a reconcithiation of changes 1n net sales, cost of products seld, gross profit and operational EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared with the year ended December 31, 2012 for each of the Company’s reporting segments Operational EBITDA 1s defined as
eamings from continuing operations betore 1nterest, (ncome taxes, deprectation and amortizaton, and certain items such as restructunng and impairment
charges, Chapter 11 and U K. Administration related reorganization expenses, gams or losses on the sales of businesses, the non-service cost components of
the US based funded pension plan, OPEB curtailment gains or losses, the income statement impacts associated with stock apprecration nights, loss on
extinguishment of debt and costs associated with acquisitions, legal separation and headquarters relocation

Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Matarparts Elimnation Segment Corporate Total
{Millions of Doltars)
20028akes T TS 3936 8 38S3 S (335) 5 A 8 — 5 6ddd]
Extemal sales volumes 209 85 -— 294 — 294
Intersegmentsalesvolumes (9 __ 6 13 - o= =]
Customer pncing (7 (12) — {19) _ 19
Acqusions T a3 i S -
Foreign currency 21 3 —_ 24 — 24
2013 Sales s 4173 S 2935 § (322) § 6786 $ — 5 6,786 |
- - - o - Total —’
! Inter-segment Reporting
L B Powertrain Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total
2012 Cost of Products Sold $ 3470 % 2.390) § 335 § (5525) § %) §$ (5531)
Extemal sales volumes fmx ey op e~ @D — @)
Inter-segment sa[es volumes :I__“ (6) (13} (l%l — i (12)
Productivity, net of inflation ~ N 3 =2 = 2]
Matcnals and scrvices sourcing 41 30 —_ 71 — 71
Pension ‘ - - = — 6 _ 8]
Deprectation o (1) (1) — (12) — (12)
Acqusmtions ~ @ e — (33) — )
!:'Er_f‘:lign_cgrfeﬂsy 24) 4 —_ 20 _ 20)
ﬂl_l)!.’lf_‘ejt {Jffll)ducts Sold $ (3.656) 3 (2.432) § 322 8§ (5,766) S — 5 (5.766)E
Total
Inter-segment Reporting
. Powertrain Motorparts Elimnation Segment Corporate Total
2012 Gross Profit_ e e 8 456§ 463 S —. 5. _9_§ © s _ 93]
Extemal sales volumes / mix o _ s 13 - . .7 = =y
J_r;te;-segg_naep—t‘sags nglﬂu_rggs% e —_— e - — ,._”ﬁj—_ ﬂm__wt:—_n_m '_“. “““_]
Unalg'iox:ly)e(‘inQXed_Eosts on mtti:;-segme‘rultjillfi o UZ)_ . — T _ _(“LZJ — ) _(12)
Customerprowmg ] 2 = (19 _ = 9]
Productivity, net of inflation 1) 3 — 2 —— 2
Matenals and servicessowremg 4l 0 T — T = 71 ]
Pension ) e —_— - - = 6 B 6
Depreciation B an 0y — (12) — (1))
Acquisitions - o . 10 — —_ 10 _ (o
l;o'relgn‘cune;l'cx :Y___h:_—:m:'iiwj o (3f - 7 o m:wT7 T 4 —_ 4 ]
2013 Gross Profit $ 517 % 503 % — § 1,020 s — $ 1,020
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Total

Inter-segment Reporting

Powcertrain Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total
2012 Operational EBIIDA $ 285 8 200 s — § 48 5 — 5 48]
Extemal sales volumes / mix 46 ) —_ 41 — 41
[l}gilgsorbcd_ﬁxcd costs on mnter-segment sales . ™ — (12) B — (lZﬂ
Customer pricing N a2 _ (19) — (19)
ZPE)ducnwty — Cost ot products sold (1) 3 —_ 2 — ~ _2]
Productivity - SG&A 4 (36) — (32) — (32)
Productivity — Other 1 3 — 14 — 14
Sourcing — Cost of’p‘;;ducls sold 41 30 — 71 — 71
Soucwmg-SGEA 2 3 — S T 5
Sourcing — Other 2) — — 2) — 2
;quityleamlngs of non-consohdated affiliates 3 @) _— (1} — (1)}
Foreign currency 2 5 — 7 — 7
Other 2 26 — 28 — 28 |
2013 Operatonal EBITDA ] 378 § 213§ — § 591 § — 3 591
P_ilzrecmtlon and amortization (2?fﬂ
Interest expense, net (99
:61‘;‘:8 ntinued operations T . @
Restructuning expense, net ~ 40)
'Adjustmentofassetsto fawrvalue - - @)
OPEB curtailment gain 19
‘Non-service cost co;'nponents associated with the U S —l
Jbased funded pension plan 2)
Acquisition related costs (5)
@Gck appreciation rights _@
Income tax benefit {56)
& loss $ 49 [
Powertrain

Sales increased by $247 million to $4,173 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $3,926 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, of
which $43 million of this increase resulted trom the acquisiticn of the spark plug business from BWA. External sales volumes increased by $202 million net
of customer pnce decreases of $7 million This was driven by an ncrease 1n sales in North Amenca of 10% or $117 mullion, an increase n sales in ROW of
12% or $73 mullion and an increase 1n sales 1n Europe of 1% or $12 mithon Given PT's weighted market presence in the light vehicle, commercial vehicle
and industrial markets and the year over year changes 1n production rates for those markets, the expected PT sales change would be negligible compared to
the prior year However, PT sales increased by 5%, excluding the impact on sales from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA - reflecting

growth 1n excess of the underlying market The Powertrain segment generated approximately 70% ofits revenue outside the United States and the resulting
currency movements imcreased reported sales by $21 mullien

Cost of products sold increased by $186 million to $3,656 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $3,470 million for the year ended
December 31,2012 The increase in materials, labor and overheads as a direct result of the increase tn external and inter-segment sales volumes/mix was $158
mullion along with an increase of $33 milhion directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA and matenals and sourcing savings of
$41 mullion These increases were partially offset by currency movements of $24 nnllion, increased depreciation of $1 1 mullion and unfavorable productivaty
of $1 million
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Gross profit increased by $61 mullion to $517 million, or 12 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31,2013 compared to $456 milhon, or 11 6% of sales,
for the year ended December 31, 2012 This increase consists of a net favorable sales volumes and regional mix impact of $44 rmllion, matenals and services
sourcing savings of $41 mullion and a $10 million increase in gross profit directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA partially
offset by unabsorbed fixed costs on nter-segment sales volumes of $12 nulhon, increased depreciation of $11 milhon, $7 million of unfavorable customer
pricing, currency movements ot $3 million. and unfavorable productivity of $1 mullion

Operational EBITDA increased by $89 million to $378 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 fom 3289 million for the year ended December 31,
2012 This increase was caused by net favorable external sales volume and mix of $46 million, matenals and services sourcing savings of $41 million,
favorable productivity of $14 million, an 1ncrease 1n equity eamings of non-censolidated affibates of $3 mullion, cumrency movements of $2 mllion and
other increases of $2 mullion, partially offset by unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-scgment sales volumes of $12 million and unfavorable customer pricing of
$7 mullion

Motorparts

Sales mcreased by $82 nullion to $2.935 mmllion for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $2,853 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012,
mcluding $112 nullion from the European distnibution agreement for ignition products The organic extemal sales volumes change was therefore a decrease
of $39 million, including the impact of customer price decreases of $12 nullion This was driven by a decline 1n North Amenca of $51 mullion or 3% This
reflects the cessation of selected non-strategic business contracts as well as a softening in the export business, mamnly into Venezuela as a result of a
tighteming in exchange rate control 1n the country Sales in ROW decreased by $21 million or 11% However, this was offset by an increase 1n sales in Europe
of 833 millien or 4%, excluding the impact on sales from the European distnbution agreement for ignttion products, due to strong aftermarket volume gains
as market conditions 1n this region continued to 1mprove

Cost of products sold increased by $42 mullion to $2,432 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $2,390 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 This increase was due 1o $72 mullion directly associated with cxternal sales volumes/mix, pattially offsct by favorable matenals and
services sourcing savings of $30 milhion, cumrency movements of $4 mullion, and efficiencies of 33 milhion

Gross profit increased by $40 mullion to 3503 mulhon, or 17 1% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to 3463 million or 16 2% of sales,
for the year ended December 31,2012 Thus 15 the result of matenals and services sourcing savings of $30 mullion, favorable external sales volume/mux of $13
milhon, currency mevements of $7 million and favorable productivity of $3 mullion, parually offset by unfavorable customer pncing of $12 tmllion and
increased depreciation of $1 million

Operational EBITDA increased by $13 million to $213 millien for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $200 million for the year ended December 31,
2012 Faverable matenals and services sourcing of $33 mullion and other increases 0f $26 mullion, mclusive of a year-gver-year improvement as 2012
operaticnal EBITDA was negatively impacted by a 39 million legal and contractual settlement, were partially offset by unfavorable productivity of $30
mullion including labor inflation, increased year-over-year incentive compensation and project costs, customer price decreases of $12 million and a decrease
11 equity earnings of non-consohdated affibates of $4 million

Selling, General and Admimstrative Expense

Selling, general and admumistrative expenses (‘SG&A”y were $719 mullion, or 10 6% of net sales, tor the year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to $702
million, or 10 9% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 This 317 mulhion increase was due to costs related to acquisitions ot $14 mulhon,
increased costs 1 excess of labor and benefits inflation of $9 mulhion, and $3 milhion due 1o cumrency movements, parhally offset by matenats and services
sourcing savings of $4 mlhion and decreased depreciation of $2 million

The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed to integrate the Company’s leading technologies into advanced products and
processes, to provide engincenng support for all of the Company’s manufactunng sites, and to provide technolegical expertise 1n cngineenng and design
development providing solutions for customers and bnnging new, mnovative products to market Included in SG&A were research and development
{' R&D ) costs, including product and validation costs, of $173 nullion for both the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31,2012
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OPEB Curtailment Gain

Dunng the second quarter of 2013, the Company ceased operations at one of 1ts U S manufacturning locations As this location participated in the Company’s
US Welfare Benefit Plan the plan was re-measured due to its curtallment implications The resuiting reduction 1n the average remawning future service
penod to the full ehigibilny date of the remarning active plan pamicipants 1n the Company's US Welfare Benefit Plan tnggered the recognition of a $19
million OPEB curtailment gain, which was recognized in the consoltdated statements of operations dunng the second quanerof 2013 The calculanon of the
curtailment excluded the newly created pnor service credit

in July 2012, as a result of contract negotiations with a union at one of the Company’s U8 manufactunng locations, the benefits under the US Welfare
Benefit Plan were ehiminated for the Jocation’s active parucipants Since this plan change reduced benefits attnbutable to employee service already rendered,
it was treated as a negative plan amendment, which created a $13 mullion prior service credit in accumulated other comprehensive loss The comresponding
reduction 1n the average remaining future service penod to the full eligibihity date also tnggered the recogmition of a $51 muliion OPEB curtailment gain
which was recogmzed in the consolidated statements of operations dunng the third quarter of 2012 The calculation of the cunailment excluded the newly
created prior service credit

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense was $99 million in the year ended December 31,2013 compared to $128 mallion for the year ended December 31, 2012 The decrease 1s
pnmanly due to the expiration of unfavorable interest rate swaps

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net was $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $26 milhion for the year ended December 31,2012
Foreign currency exchange The Company rccogmzed $10 million 1n foreign cumrency exchange losses dunng the yecar ended December 31, 2013 The
Company recognized $18 million in foreign curmency exchange losses dunng the year ended December 31, 2012, $10 million of which relates to unrealized

losses associated with outsianding foreign currency hedge contracts that settle dunng 2013

Adjustment of Assets to Fair Value
The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Millions of Dollars)
Goodwiil $ 120§ — % 96 |
Property plant and equipment 19 8 43
finvestments 1n non-consolidated affiliates 5 — 2
Other indefinite-lived intangible assets — — 46
1 $ 144§ e 187 |

Impairments of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets arc discussed further in Note 8, Farr Value Measirements and Note 11, Goodw:ill and
Other Intangible Assets to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report

The Company recorded impairment charges to adjust propernty plant and equipment to their fair values in accordance with the subsequent measurement

provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property Plant & Equipment Adjustments of property, plant and equipment te fair value are discussed fiirther 1n Note 8,
Fair Value Measurements to the Conselidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report

The impairment of the Company's investment 1n non-consohdated affiliates 1s discussed further in Note 12, fuvestment in Non-consolidated Affiliates 10 the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report
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The 2012 PP&E impairment excludes $7 million related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed 1n Note 6, Discontinued
Operanions to the Consohdated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 ofthis repornt

Restructuring Activities

The following table 15 a summary of the Company’s conselidated restructunng habilities and related activity for 2014, 2013 and 2012 by reporting segment

Total
Reporting Total
Powertrawn Motorparts Segment Corporate Companv
(Millions of Dollars)
Balanceat fonvary 2012 T s 6_s L_$ 78 I 8 ]
Provisions 6 16 22 4 26
T Reversals - o - () — W]
Payments (7) (6) (13} (2) (15)
:_EEE;MQP.S_EQ penston hability o — 6) _ ] (6) - (6 ]
Balance at December 31,2012 L 3 4 5 9 3 12
L Povsons 0 20 40 4 44 ]
Reversals . 3 _- Gy - )
T paymems ~ T (13) (1) @4) @ (28) |
Balance at December 31,2013 8 14 22 2 24
T bovsens TR 27 6 T e
Reversals — () N —_ (4)]
7 Payments _" @n (24) (51) @ TGy ]
" Fore 1En éurrency 4) — 4) — CH)]
'Balance at December 31 2014 s 6 S 16 S 52§ 1§ 53 ]

Income Taxes
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For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded an income tax expense of $56 miltion on a loss from continuing operations before income
taxes of $105 mullion, compared to income tax expense of $56 mullion on a income from continuing uperattons before income taxes of $157 million for the
year ended December 31, 2013, and compared to an income tax benefit 0f$29 million on a loss from continuing operations before 1ncome taxes of $120
million for the year ended December 31,2012

The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 differs from the US statutory rate due prmanly to goodwill impairment, pre-tax mcome taxed
at rates lower than the US Statutory rate, recording a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets that are believed to be not more likely than not to be
realized, income in junsdictions with no tax expense due to offsetting valuauon allowance release, partially offset by pre-tax losses with no tax benefits and a
tax benefit recorded related to special econonuc zone tax incentive

The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2013 differs from statutory rates due pnmanly to a goodwitl tmpairment with no tax benefit and pre-
tax losses with no tax benefit, partially offset by pre-tax income taxed at rates lower than the US statutory rate, income 1n junsdictions with no tax expense
due to offsetting valuation allowance releases, release of uncertain tax positions due to audit settlements, valuation allowance release and a tax benefit
recorded related to a special economic zone tax incentive

The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 differs from the U S statutory rate pnmanly due to a goodwill impairment with no tax benefit
and pre-tax losses with no tax benefit, partially offset by pre-tax income taxed at rates lower than the US statutory rate income 1n junsdictions with no tax
expense due to offsetting valuation allowance releases, tax refund from prior years, release of uncertain tax positions due to audit settlement and a tax benefit
recorded related to a special economic zone tax incentive

The Company believes that 1t 1s reasonably possible that its unrecognized tax benefits in multiple junsdictions, which pnmanly relate to transfer pricing,
corporate reorgamizatien and various other matters, may decrease by approxumnately $3 miilion 1n the next 12 months due to audit settlements or statute
expirations, of which approximately $2 milhon, if recogmzed, could impact the effective tax rate

On July 11, 2013, Federal-Mogu! Corporation became pant of the Icahn Enterpnscs affiliated group of corporations as defined in Section 1504 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp {“*AEP™) 15 the common parent The Company
subsequently entered into a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the

Company have agreed to the allocation of certain mncome tax ttems The Company will join AEP 1n the filing of AEP s federal consolidated return and certain
state consolidated retums In those junsdictions where the Company 15 filing consolidated retums with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax 1t would
have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce its tax Liability as a result of includmg the
Company 1n 1ts consolidated group AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carryforward for its own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax Benefits”) While a member of the AEP affihiated
group the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, 1f the Company should ever become
deconsolidated from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax bability 1n post-consolidatton years the Company would not have paid had it
actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-consolidation cannot exceed the cumulative
reductions in tax to the AEP group resulting from 1ts use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate return methodology will be used in determining income taxes

The Company’s income taxes are turther discussed 1n Note 16, fncome Taxes, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

Discontinued Operations

In conpection wath 1ts strategic planming process, the Company assesses its operations for market position, product technology and capabihty, and
profitability Those businesses determined by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are considered non-core and may be considered
for divestiture or other exit activities

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested 1ts sintered components operations located 1n France, 1ts connecting rod manufactunng
facility located 1n Canada, its camshaft foundry located 1n the Umited Kingdom and s fuel pump business, which inctuded an afiermarket business
component and a manufactunng and research and development facility located in the United States These divestitures have been presented as discontinued
opcrations in the consolidated statements of opcrations

The Company’s discontinued operations are further discussed in Note 6, Discontinued Operanions, to the Consohidated Frnanctal Statements, included 1n
Item 8 of thus report

46




Lugquidity and Capital Resources
Operating Actrvilies

As summanzed in the table below, net cash provided from (used by) operating activities was $278 mullion $418 mullion and $(53) nullion for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Mllllnns of Dollars)
Operational cash flow before changes in operating assets and habilities % 2% 3 318 3§ 72;02
(_Ihprl_é:_s méggr‘ajmg_;s;ets and h_::bjil_nes __:i i __“,,::_k e - }
Accounts receivable @n 1 (197}
[ wemores " _ Gy ey 03
Accounts payable 7 79 (2}
Other assets and abshiles 41 41 36 |
Total change 1n operating assets and liabilities (18) 100 (256}
D e e e e e et -
Net Cash Provided From (Used by) Operating Activities $ 278 % 418 3% {53)

Operating cash flow before changes in operating assets and habilines

Cash flow from operations before changes in operting assets and lhiabalities was $296 mulhion, $318 mullion and $203 nulthion for the ycars ended
December31,2014,2013 and 2012, respectively

Cash flow from operations before changes in operating assets and habilities was $22 million lower for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013 The decrease mainly relates to higher interest expense, net of $21 mullion, the increase in restructunng payments of $25
million as well as the timing of cash dividends received from affiliates, partially offset by the change 1n deferred taxes

Cash flow from operations before changes in eperating assets and liabilities was $115 mulbon lugher for the vear ended December 31, 2013 compared to the
year ended December 31,2012 This was dnven by the improvement in eamings in 2013 compared te 2012

flow oW chan opcrating assct: abilitie

The cash inflows (outflows) from changes 1n operating assets and habilities were $(18) mulhion, $100 milhon and $(256) million for the years ended
December31,2014 2013 and 2012 respectively

The cash outflow due to changes 1n accounts receivable for the year ended December31, 2014 was $47 mullion dnven by the sales increase in the Powertrain
division

The cash inflow due to changes 1n accounts recervable for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1 million as term extensions with certain customers 1n the
North Amencan aftermarket reached plateau near the end of 2012

The cash outflow due to changes in accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2012 of $197 mulhion was pnmanly the result of terms extensions
with certain customers in the North American aftermarket

The cash outflow due to changes in inventory of $84 muillion for the year ended December 31, 2014 was dnven by an outflow of $43 nulhion related to
increased volumes within Powertrain and a $41 milhon investment in inventory made as part of the strategic mtiatives within Motorparts 1o improve
customer service and delivery times

The cash outflows due te changes 1n inventory of $2 1 mutllion and $93 mullion for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively, are largely in
support of increased customer service and delivery
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Investing Activities

Cash flow used by investing acuvines was $735 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 which mcluded $321 mllion of payments to acquire
businesses, net of cash zcquired, which included $15 million to acquire the DZV beanngs business, $140 rmulhon to acquire the Affinia chassis business,
exclusive of $9 million of contingent consideration classified within financing activities, $156 million to acquire the Honeywell brake component business
and other mvestments of $10 mullion The Company assumed $10 mullion of pre-cxisting debt associated with the DZV bearings business acquisition
Capitat expenditures of $4 18 million were required to support future sales growth and productivity improvements

Cash flow used by investing activitics was $355 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company
divested 1ts sintered components operations located in France, its connecting rod manufacturing facility located in Canada, its camshaft foundry located 1n
the United Kingdom and us fuel pump business, which included an aftermarket business component and a manufactunng and research and development
faculity located in the United States The Company recognized net proceeds of $26 mullion associated with these divestitures Capital expenditures of $380
million were required to support future sales growth and productuvity improvements

Cash flow used by snvesting activities was $427 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012 During the year ended December 31, 2012 the Company
entered 1nto a definitive agreement to purchase the spark plug business trom BorgWamer, Inc The purchase was completed in September 2012 for $52
milhion, net of cash acquired Also dunng the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company received $30 nullion 1n msurance proceeds directly assoctated
with the Thailand manufactunng facility flood Of the total proceeds, $13 million was classified as investing Capital expenditures of $387 million were
required to support future sales growth and productivity improvements

Excluding acquisitions and divestitures, the expenditures for property, plant and equipment were $418 mutlion, $380 mulhion and $387 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively The increase 1n 2014 versus 2013 was all in the Motorparts division for the investment 1n 1ts'
strategic growth iniiatives

Financing Activities and Liquidin,

Cash flow provided from (used by) financing activities was $35 mullion, $242 mullton and $(22) mullion for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and
2012, respectively

The cash flow from financing activities 1n 2014 was pnmanly from the financing of the term loan facilities

On Apnl 15,2014, Federal-Mogul Heldings Corporation entered into a new tranche B term loan facility (the “New Tranche B Facihity™) and a new tranche C
term loan facility (the “New Tranche C Facility,” and together with the New Tranche B Facility, the “New Term Facilities”), which were arranged by
Citigroup Global Markets Inc and Credit Suisse Secuntics (USA) LLC (the "Term Armangers”), and assumed all of the obligations of Federal-Mogul
Corporation with respect to the Replacement Revelving Facility under the Credit Agreement (both defined below) The New Ternm Facilities were entered
into, and the Replacement Revolving Facility was assumed, by Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation pursuant to an amendment dated as of Apnl 15,2014 to
the previously existing Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 27, 2007 among Federal-Mogul Corporation, the lenders party thereto,
the Term Arrangers, Cifibank, N A, as Revolving Admimstrative Agent, Citibank, N A, as Tranche B Term Admunistrative Agent, Credit Suisse AG, as
Tranche C Term Admunistrative Agent, Citigroup Global Markets Inc, Credit Suisse Secunties (USA) LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, N A, as Joint Lead
Amangers and Joint Bookrunners with respect to the Revolving Facility and Wells Fargo Bank, N A | as sole Documentation Agent with tespect to the
Revelving Facility (as amended, the "Credit Agreement™)

Immediately following the closing of the New Term Facilities, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation contnibuted all of the net proceeds from the New
Facilities to Federal-Mogul Corporation, and Federal-Mogul Corperation repaid its existing outstanding indebtedness as a borrower under the tranche B and
tranche C term loan facilities

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 405, Extinguishments of Liabilires, the Company recognized a $24 million non-cash loss on the exhnguishment of

debt attnbutable to the write-off of the unamortized fair value adjustment and unamortized debt 1ssuance costs which 15 recorded 1n the Line 1tem * Loss on
Debt Extinguishment™ 1n the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
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The New Term Facilities, among other things, (1) provides for aggregate commutments under the New Tranche B Facility of $700 milhion wath a matunty date
of Apnl 15, 2018, (n) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche C Facility of $1 9 bilhon with a matunty date of Apnl 15, 2021, (1)
increases the interest rates applicable to the New Facilities as described below, (1v) provides that for all outstanding letters of credt there 1s a comesponding
decrease 1n borrowings available under the Replacement Revolving Facility, (v) provides that 1n the event that as of a particular determination date more
than $700 rullion aggregate pnncipal amount of exasting term loans and certain related refinancing indebtedness wilt become due within 91 days of such
determination date, the Replacement Revolving Facility will mature on such determination date, (vi) provides for additional incremental indebtedness,
secured on a pan passu basis, of an unlimited amount of additional indebtedness 1f the Company meets a financtal covenant incurrence test, and (vu) amends
certatn other restnctive covenants Pursuant to the New Term Facilities, Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation assumed all of the obligations of Federal-
Mogul Corporatton with respect to the Replacement Revelving Facility under the Credit Agreement

Advances under the New Tranche B Facility generally bear interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 00% or
(1} the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 00%, subject, in each case, to a floor of | 00% Advances under the New Tranche C Facihty genemlly bear
interest at a varable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 75% or (11} the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 75%,
subject, 10 each case, to a munimum rate of | 00% plus the applicable margin

The 2013 cash inflow was pnmanly the result of a 3500 million nghts offering tn July 2013, partially offset by a $250 million prepayment on the Company’s
tranche B term loan 1n November 20(3

On December 6, 2013, the Company entered 1nte an amendment (the “Replacement Revelving Facility™) of s Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of December 27, 2007 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement™), among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as Admimstrative
Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A., as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, as Ce-Documentation
Agents, to amend us existing revolving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credit facility (the “Replacement Revolving Facility”) The
Replacement Revolving Facility, among other things, (1) increased the aggregate commutments availabie under the Replacement Revolving Facility from
$540 muthon to $550 mullien, (11) extended the matunty date of the Replacement Revolving Facility to December 6, 2018, subject to certain hmited
exceptions descnbed below, and (1in) amended the Company's borrowing base to provide the Company with additonal hquidity

Advances under the Replacement Revolving Facility generally bear interest at a vaniable rate per annum equal to {1) the Altemate Base Rate (as defined in the
Credit Agreement) plus an adjustable margin of 0 50% to 1 00% based on the avetage monthly availability under the Replacement Revolving Facility or
(1) Adjusted LIBOR Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus a margin of 1 50% 1o 2 00% based on the average monthly availability under the
Replacement Revolving Facility An unused commitment fee of 0 375% also 1s payable under the terms of the Replacement Revolving Facility

The Company s ability to obtain cash adequate to fund 1ts needs depends generally on the results of 1ts operations, restructunng 1mitiatives, and the
availabihity of financing Management believes that cash on hand, cash flow from operations, available borrowings under 1ts New Facilities and 11s
Replacement Revolving Facility and ability to secure additional borrowings will be suffictent 1o fund capital expenditures and meet 11s operating obligations
through the end 0f2015 In the longer term, the Company believes that its base operating potential supplemented by the benefits from 1ts announced
restructunng programs, will provide adequate long-term cash flows However, there can be no assurance that such initiatives are achievable in this regard

Off Balance Sheer Arrangements

The Company does not have any matenal off-balance sheet arrangements
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Cannactual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The Company has the following contractual obligations and commercial comrmutments outstanding at December 31, 2014

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
{Miihons of Detlars)
‘Debt obligations § 127 s 28 $ 29 S 69 S 19 § 1801 § 2,700 |
Interest pa;'ments . 129 121 121 121 93 93 678
;Let&ers_of credit 34 — — — — — 34—]
Peasion and other postemployment benefit plans 135 85 83 70 64 318 155
Operating leases B 44 30 31 20 17 44 193 |
Total b 466 § 274 % 264 § 907 § 193 3 2256 § 4360

In addiuion, the Company estimates its 2015 capital expenditures to be 1n the range of $450-5530 mullion

50




Other Liquidity and Capital Resource ltems

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $332 mllion of cash and cash equivalents, of which $138 million was held by foreign subsidiartes In
accordance with FASB ASC 740-30-25-17 through 19 the Company asserts that these funds are indefinitely reinvested due to operational and investing
needs of the foreign locations Funthermore, the Company will accrue any apphcable taxes in the penod when the Company no longer intends to indefinttely
reinvest these funds The Company would expect that the impact on cash taxes would be immatenal due to the availabihity of net opemtion loss
carryforwards and related valuation allowances, earnings considered previously taxed, and applicable tax treaties

The Company maintains investments in several non-consolhidated affibates, which are located 1n China, France, Gemmany, Korea, Turkey, Indiz and the
Untted States With the exception of the deconsolidated business discussed below, the Company generully equates control to ownership percentage whereby
investments that are more than 50% owned are consohdated

As part of the regulatory approval related to the acquusition of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business, the Company commutted
to divest, or procure the divestuure of the commercial vehicle brake pads business relating to the ongmal equipment/onginal equipment services
(' OEM/OES’ ) market 1n the European Economic Area (“EEA™), based at the manufactunng plant in Manenheide, Germany and light vehicle brake pads
business relating to the OEM/OES market in the EEA, based at the manufactunng plant in Noyon, France (collectively, the * Divestment Business™)
Furthermore, to the extent possible, the Company commtted to keep the Divestment Business separate from the business(es) it 1s retaining, and unless
exphicitly permitted commutted to ensure (1) management and staff have no involvement in the Divestment Business, (11) certain key personnel of the
Divestment Business have no involvement in any business retained by the Company and do not report to any individual outside the Divestment Business As
such, the Company deconsolidated its subsidianes or group of assets which are subject to regulatory commitments and recorded an investment 1n
unconselidated subsidiary, which will be accounted for as an equity method investment until disposition

The Company does not hold a controlling interest 1n an entity based on exposure to economic nsks and potential rewards (vanable interests) for which 1t 1s
the pnmary beneficiary Further, the Company s affiliations are businesses established and maintained 1n connection with 1ts operating strategy and are not
special purpose entities

The following represents the Company's aggregate investments and direct ownership in these affiliates

December 31

2014 1013
_ (E\_’I_ﬂ_h?nﬂf_g)ollars)
lln_vestments in non-conschdated affiliates ) $ 269 % 253
———— _ e o e e e e+
Drrect ownership percentages N 2% to 100% 2% to 50‘3@]

The following table represents amounts reflected 1n the Company’s financial statements related to non-consolidated affiliates

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 1012
(Millions of Dallars)
i‘_”_quny camings of non-consolidated affiliates s a8 s 34 8 E
Cash dividends received from noh-consolldated affibates T 25 13 —"—31

The Company holds a 50% non-controlling interest in a joint venture located in Turkey (“Turkey JV"} The Turkey JV was established 1n 1995 for the
purpose of manufactunng and marketing automotive parts, mncluding pistons, piston nngs, piston pms, and cylinder hners to onginal equipment and
aftermarket customers The Company purchases/sells inventory from/to the Turkey JV Purchases from the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 were §180 million, $152 milhion and $150 mulhion, respectively Sales to the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 were $45 mullion $44 mullion and $45 million, respectively The Company had net accounts payable balances with the Turkey JV of $5 million and $6
nullton as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
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Federal-Mogul subsidianes in Brazil, France, Germany, Italy and the United States are party to accounts receivable factonng and secuntization facilities
Amounts factored under these facilines consist of the following

December 31

2014 2013
(Millions of Dollars)
;Gmss accounts recervable factored T 5 306§ 271 |
Gross accounts receivable factored, qualifying as sales 293 258
{Undrawn cash on factored accounts receivable 2 —--J

Proceeds from the factoring of accounts receivable qualifying as sales and expenses associated with the factoning of accounts recervable are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Millions ¢f Dollars)
:P!DE&EE‘_@T_faCtonﬁAaualll‘ylng as sales $ 679 § 1482 § 1,475 ]
Losses on sales of account receivables {6) (63} (N

Accounts receivables factored but not qualifying as a sale, as defined 1n FASB ASC Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing, were pledged as collateral and
accounted for as secured borrowings and recorded in the consolidated balance sheets within “Accounts receivable, net” and “Shont-term debt, including the
cument portion of long-term debt ™

The losses on sales of accounts receivable are recorded n the consolidated statements of operations within “Other expense, net ™ Where the Company
receives a fee to service and monitor these transferred recervables, such fees are sufficient to offset the costs and as such, a servicing asset or liability 1s not
recorded as a result of such activities

Certain of the factlities contan terms that require the Company to share in the credit nsk ofthe sold receivables The maximum exposures to the Company
associated with these certain facihities’ terms were $17 mullion and $21 mullion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively The fair values of the
exposures to the Company associated with these certain facilities’ terms were determuned to be immatenal

Subsequent Events

On February 6, 2015, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the TRW engine components business The business was acquired
through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of approxumately $313 milbon, funded pnmanly from the available
Replacement Revolver Facility and subject to certain customary closing and post<closing adjustments The purchase of TRW's engtne valve business adds a
completely new product line to the Company's portfolio, strengthens the Company's position as a leading developer and supplier of core components for
engines, and enhances the Company's ability to support its customers to improve fuel economy and reduce emissions

The asscts acquired and habilitics assumed will be recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date in accordance with FASB ASC Topic No 805, Business
Combinations The preliminary allocation of the purchase price will eccur 1n the first quaner of 2015 There were no revenues or eamings related to TRW
ncluded in the Company's condensed consohdated statement of income

On February 24, 2015, the Company announced that 1t intends to launch a registered nghts offenng on or about March 6, 2015 In the nghts offening, each
holder of the Company’s common stock as of the close of business on the record date of March 6, 2015 wiil be 1ssued, at no charge, one transferable
subscniption nght for each whole share ot common stock owned by that stockholder on the record date (the “basic subscniption pnivilege™ The nghits
offering will also include an over-subscription pnvilege, which will entitle stockholders who exercase all of thear subscniption nghts in the basic subscnption
prvilege the nght to purchase additional shares of common stock 1n the nghts offenng, subject to availability and pro rata allocation of shares among nghts
holders exercising such aver-subscaption privilege
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The Company wall offer a number of shares of its common stock 1n the nghts offering, inclusive of the over-subscnption privilege, representing
approximately $250 million of gross proceeds The Company plans to use the proceeds from the nghts offening to strengthen 1ts balance sheet

ITEM 7A, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Referto Note 7 Frnancial Instruments, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item & of this repert, for information with respect to interest rate
nisk, commodity pnice nsk and toreign currency nsk

The translated values of revenue and expense from the Company’s intemational operations are subject to fluctuattons due to changes 1n cumrency exchange
rates Dunng the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company denved 36% of its sales in the United States and 64% intemationally Of these intemational
sales, 57% are denominated 1n the euro, with no other single currency representing more than 10% To rmimmize foreign cumency nsk, the Company
generally maintains natural hedges within its non-U § activities, including the matching of operational revenues and costs Where natural hedges are not 1n
place, the Company manages centain aspects of 1ts foreign currency actuvinies and larger transactions through the use of foreign currency options or forward
contracts The Company estimates that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement of all foreign currencies in the same direction aganst the US dollar over the
year ended December 31, 2014 would have increased the net loss from continuing operations attributable to Federal-Mogul by approximately $9 mullion
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ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

MANAGEMENT'S REFORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting, as such term 1s defined 1n Rules 13a-15(f)} and
15d-15(f) under thc US Secuntics Exchange Act of 1934 Under the supervision and with the participation of the pnncipal executive and financial officers
of the Company, an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting was conducted based upon the framework n Internal Control
— Integrated Framework (2013)1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoring Orgamzations (the "'COSO 2013 Framework™) of the Treadway Commussion Based
on the evaluation performed under the COSO 2013 Framework as of December 31, 2014, management has concluded that the Company's 1ntemal control
over financial reporting was cffective

The Company may omit an assessment of an acquired business's internal control over financial reporting from its assessment of intemal contrel Accordimgly,
the Company's management excluded the Honeywell brake component business acquisition from 1ts assessment of the effectiveness of intemal control over
financeal reporting as of December 31, 2014, however, the exclusion may not extend beyond one year from the date of acquisition, nor may such assessment
be omatted from more than one annual management report on mternal control over financial reporting The total assets of $375 mullion and total net sales of
3250 million associated with the Honeywell brake component business acquisition are mcluded n conselidated financial statements or the Company tor the
year ended December 31,2014

Grant Thomton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting as of
December1, 2014, as stated in their report which 1s included herem
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation

We have audited the intemal control over financial reperting of Federal-Mogul Holdings Comoration (a Delaware corporation) and subsidianes {the
“Company”) as ot December 31, 2014, based on entenia established m the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commuttec of
Sponsenng Organizations of the Treadway Comnussion (COS0) The Company's management 1s responsible for maintaiming effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, ncluded 1n the accompanytng Management s
Report on Intemal Centrol over Financial Reporting Our responstbility 1s to express an opimon on the Company's intemnal control over financial reporting
bascd on curaudit Our audit of, and opinton on, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting does not include the intemal control over financial
reporting of the Honeywell brake component business acquisition, whose financial statements reflect total assets and revenues constituting 5 and 3 percent,
respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 As indicated 1n Management’s Report,
the Honeywell brake component business was acquired dunng 2014 Management's assertion on the effectiveness of the Company’s mternal control over
financial reporting excluded internat control over financial reporiing of the Honeywell brake component business

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintained in all matenal
respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and opemting effectiveness of intermnal control based on the assessed nsk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary 1n the circumstances We believe that our audtt provides a reasonable basis for our opmion

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting 1s a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles A company’s intemal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 1n reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements i accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only 1o accordance with authonzations of management and ditectors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
nimely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also, projections of any evaluation of
cffeetiveness to future penods are subjcct to the risk that controls may become 1nadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may detenorate

In our opinion the Company maintmined, in all matenal respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 based on cnteria
established in the 2013 Intemnal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by COSO

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Umited States) the consohidated financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and our report dated February 26, 2015 expressed an ungualified opimion on
those financial statements

/s/ GRANT THORNTONLLP

Southfield, Michigan

February 26, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Bouard of Directors and Shareholders
Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsidianes {the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes n
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended December 31, 2014 Our audits of the basic conselidated financial
statements included the financial statement schedule listed 1n the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) These financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our andits

We conducted our audits in accerdance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemnents are free of matenal misstatement An audit includes
exarning, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting
prnciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opimion

In our opmion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all matenal respects, the financial positten of Federal-Mogul
Holdings Corporation and subsidianes as of December 31, 2014 and 2613, and the results of their operations and their cash flows foreach of'the three years in
the pertod ended December 31, 2014 1n conformity with accounting prnnciples generally accepted 1n the United States of Amenca Also in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered 1n relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, 1 all
matenal respects, the information set forth therein

We also have audited, in aceordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the Company’s intemal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, which did not include an audit of intemal control over financial reporting of the Honeywell brake

component business acquired in 2014, based on cntena established n the 2013 Intemal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commuttee of
Sponsonng Orgamzations of the Treadway Commussion (COS0), and our report dated February 26, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield, Michigan

February 26,2015
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Conselidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Mltions of Dollars,
o » Except Per Share Amounts)
Netsales - s 317§ 6786 $ 6,444 |
Cost ¢ ofpmducls sold (6 260) (5.766) (5,531)
e . _ ]
GrDss pmﬁt 1,057 1,020 913
o _ _ _ ]
Sellulg 'ge_neral and admmlstrahve expenses (776) (719) (702)
OPEB curtailment gatn L o . _ — 19 51 _J
Adjustmem c{fassets to falr value B B o _(I4-’1)_u_ o gS) (l87)
Imen:st t expense, net _ N (120) (9?) (l”SJ
Reslructunng expense, net . (86) (40) (26)
Amumzauun }expense . o 4%y {41) (4@
Equny camings ofnon-consohdalcd affihates L 48 34 34
Los.s on debl cxlmgunhmem ) 24) - __..:‘-:]
Othggcrfgeg_sg._nei_ L o o (in (3) {26)
3 j
(Loss) income from contmumg operations before income taxes {103) 157 (120)
Jncome lax {expense)benefit 0 _ (56) (56) 29 |
‘(},(is‘ﬁ)“lgggtwgifrom continuing operations (161) 101 (9__1_)__'
Loss from discontimued operations, net of tax — (52) (19}
Net(los)meome — e e (161) 49 (110)]
Less net income aitnbutable to noncontroiling nterests o UM @®) ol
Net (loss) imncome attnbutable to Federal-Mogul b3 (168) % 41 8 (117
; — e
iﬁi}fﬁgl:ﬁ_t;al-t;butabie to Federal Mo;z:lw t__m o o _*kw o _;—MW‘ T —]
Net (loss) imncome from continuing operations i o 5 ) B 7(]68)_'3% ___9_} $ L (98)
Lms from discontmued operations, net of tax - (52) (1 9)]
Net (loss) income $ (168) § 41 § (117)
! - - - - T s e e/ T Tem e T e = - _J
Net-{[os;)'lﬁ—c‘om;—oer common share atmbut.lble to Fedeml-M;:zEl_ o : o . ‘:;
Basic and daluted e ] ]
Net (loss) income from ¢ conlmumg opemuons o A 3 (l 12) $ 075 §$ (099)
Iioisf_'ron_ld_:_scqntmuec_‘]_clp_ei'a_t_m_gs_t_1_e_tif tax _ —_ 042) © l9ﬂ
Net (loss) tncome $ (112 3 033 § (118)

See accompanying notes to consolidated tinancial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consohidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss}

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Millons of Dollars)
Net (loss) income - $ (161) _$ 49 (10)]
pthcr comprchensive (loss) income i
: Foreign currency translation adjustments and other (248) r_ (11) Sﬂ
! Postemployment benefits J
Net unrealized postemployment benefits (costs) credits ansing dunng year 314) 246 (211)
, Reclassification of net postemployment benetits (credits) costs included 1n net (loss)
} income dunng year 7 (14) 29)
Reclassification of net postemployment benefit losses ot deconsolidated affiliates 3 — —
1 Income taxes 22 9} 27 |
Postemployment benefits, net of tax (282) 223 213)

,___..
i
i
4
L

Hedge instruments

! __N_e!_yllgﬂlgeﬂleg_gmg (losses) gains ansing dunng year — (N 1 l
Reclassification of net hedging losses included 1n net (loss) income during year — 14 47

L Income taxes (n 1 @]
Hedge instruments, net of tax 1)) 8 46

} = = e

o }

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (531) 220 (1)

Comprehensive (loss) iIncome (692) 269 221)

| |

Less comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests & 4) )

r

; )

Comprehensive (loss) income attnbutable to Federal-Mogul 3 (684) § 265 8 (228)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consohdated Balance Sheets

December 31

2014 013

{Millions of Dollars)

]

Currcnt asscts

§ __ Cashand equivalemts i ) _ 3_252;__5 l‘i]
Accounts recelvable net i 1419 1,324
:m: [n\engo}xc;;, net T : T T T N l,2i5_ 1,068:]
Prepa!d expenses and or.her currentassets o L L 225 224
“Total current assets 3191 3,377 |
Pm;g!y pla;l:;& ::;;uapment net u o _:“H T B 2,160 2 03?:]
Goodw1l1 and other imdefinite-lived mmnglblc asscls 928 1,017
vDeﬁmte-iwcd m!angﬂ';l;: a_sge_t; net - T __:_ _ ?_5-4 356_]
Investments n non-cousohdated afﬁhates 269 253
:O__;f;j% I;E:I;E:_Ml_l;e;lﬂt assets o Ti6s 14—1_1
7067 § 7.182
:__ o LIABILITIES AEP%S}LAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY J
Current habilittes
Ej@-t_eﬁiﬁ including current portion of long-term debt 127 % 1,694
Accounts payable 926 799
Accrued habihties T méfmé 45ﬂ
(.urrent portton of pensions and other postemployment benefits llablllty 46 44
__Other current liabihities. 186 147 |
Total current liabilities 1831 3,138
L.Dng-ierm debt i ) 2,363 ] _S’—(ﬂ
Pensions and other postemployment benefits liability 1,282 1028
iéﬁé—lem portion of deferred 1ncome taxes S T T T389 385‘]
Other accrued Ilabliltles 93 127

Sharehoiders equny . e e e

e iy

Preferred sloclc ($O 01 par value 90,000,000 authonzed shares, none |ssued)

| outstanding shares as of both December 31, 2014 and 2013)

. Common stock (50 01 par valuc 450100 00, 000 authorized shares, 151,624, 744 1ssucd shares and 150.029 244

Additional p'ud-m capltal mcludmg warmnls

Accumulated deﬁcu

Accumulated other comprehcnswe loss

L Treasury stock at cost

Total Federal-Mogul sharcholdcrs S’ equity

: Noncontmllmg mtcresm

(- T [ ——

Total shareholdcrs cqulty

b

1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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2,649 2,649
~ (686) 518)]
_____ (1 142) (626)
_un (7]
o 806 1,490
N 103 111 |
o 909 1,601
$ 7067 § 7,182 |




FEDERAL-MQOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Mithans of Dellars)
:pnsh Provldfd From (USE By)_(lgegting Actlvities - o Mw—]
Net (loss) ncome S (sl 3 49 % {110
EKd]ustmems 10 reconcile nef {loss) wcome to net cash provided trom {used by) operating activities - I
Depreciation and amortization 334 296 289
{ Adjustment of asscts w far valuc 144 8 194 J
Restructuring expense net 86 40 26
‘L,, E’a:.rr:m:ritsw against restructuring liabilitics (53) (28) ( "52‘}
Change 1n postemploymem benefits, excluding curtarlment ent guns (75) (72 (66)
L_ Equity carmings of of non-consuhdated affihates (48) I ) w(34)
Cash dividends recetved from non-consohdated affiliates 25 33 31
L Loss on debt extingushment 24 . — A_m
OPEB curtailment gain — 9 6y
[ Deferred tax expense (benefit) 20 @ Qsﬂ
th Ioss from busincss dispositions — 47 —_
; Insurance proceeds o relate;imm—fha]]and flood —_ — l7:i
Changcs 1N operating asscts and habilitics
E——A::couns recervable - T ) i _{LF.:‘) i 1 {197'1]
{nventones (84) Qn (93)
L Accounts payable 72 79 [2—)_1
Other assets and habihites 4] 41 36
{ Net Cash Pr’o'y‘jggd_]_"“r_om {Used by) Operating Activities 278 418 @H
Cash Provided From (Used By) Investing Activities
,r Expendrturcs for property, pjanignd oqupment (418) {330) {ig‘:’)
Payments to acquire businesses, net of cash acquired {321) — (52)
{__ Net proceeds assoctated with busmness dispositions — 26 t]
Net procecds from sales of property plant and equipment 4 3 5
[__ Insurance prncecds related to Thialand flood — —_— 13 }
Capna] mvestment i non-consehdued affiliate — 4} 6)
" Net Cash Used By lnvesting Actvities (735) {355) (427
Cash Provided From (Used By) Financing Activines
lr_.. " Proceeds thaﬁ term Eouns net of ongnal 1ssue discount 2589 — — 1
Prmmpal paymcnls on term loans (2 544) (275) (3%
[ Debt 1ssuance costs (12} {4} ::]
Contingent consideration to acquire busmess &) —_ —_
%m equity nghts Bﬁe‘r;g, net of related fees T — 500 e I
Increase m other long-term debt 12 2 —_
L Increase i short-term debt e T _— 23 ﬁ
Net (renittances) proceeds on servicing of factoring an-angemenm 1)) (4) 2
' _ _Picz_(_f_asil Prondcd From (Used By) Financing Activitics - 35 242 (22)f
:E_igfa-;t_ of ffir_;éx; \-:ul;e—r:cm;:e_z(‘c;h:n—g-e rate fluctuatrons en cash ‘;__"_i*j ; o ) {7 _ o {n u_ . m
(Decrease) Incroase i cash and equnvalenss - o @ 94 (a86)
Cash and equvalents at beginning of year T 761 T 953
Cashand cquivalenss atendotyear T T Ty 32§ 761 3 467 |

See accompanymg notes to consohdated ﬁnnncml statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consohdated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Adcumulated

Additienal nher Treasury
Common Paid<dn Retnined Comprehensive Stock Noancentrolling
Stock Capial Deflcit Income {Loss) atCost Total interests
{Millions of Dollars)

‘Balance at January 1,2012 - o $ 1 $ 2150 5 (#42) § (739} § (7 § 953 § 100 |
th  {loss) income —_ — (10 — — 11y 7
Lcss net income aitnbutable to noncommllmg T
mterests . = O LY ——
Other comprehenswe Ioss net of tax —— —_ —_ {111) amn —
[Balance at December 31,2012 - 1 2150 (559) (850) (17 725 107_|
Net et income o — — 49 = — 49 8
Less net income attributable to ¢ nonconlroihng T -
‘Interests —_— — (8) — — (8} —
Qther comprehenswe loss, net oftax - — — — 224 — 224 4)
Equny  nghts offenngm___ o _ i i 1 499 —_ — — 300 — ]
Balance at December 31,2013 ) i 2 2,649 (E)lg) (63 6) an 1,490 111
Net (loss) mncome T T T T Tasn — = a6l 7 |
Less net income attrnibutable to noncontrolling
interesis — — 1€)) — — 1N —
O’(hcr r comprehensive lass, net oﬂa{_ﬂuh . — — ——__ _—Eiﬁ) — (516} - 61-5-)—]
Ba]ance at December 31, 2014 $ 2 % 2649 $ (686) % (1,142) § (A7 $ 806 3§ 103

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Holding Company Reargamzation On Apnl 15, 2014, Federal-Mogul Corporation completed a holding company reorganization {the “Reorgamzation™) As
a result ef the Reorganization, the outstanding shares of Federal-Mogul Corporation common stock were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis into
shares of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation common stock, and all of the stockholders of Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately prior to the
Reorgamzation automatically became stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation The nghts of stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings
Corporation are generally govemned by Delaware law and Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are the same
in all matenal respects as those of Federml-Mogul Corporation tmmediately prior to the Reorgamzation In addition, the board of directors of Federal-Mogul
Holdings Corporntion and 1ts Audit Commttee and Compensation Committee are composed of the same members as the board of directors, Audit Comnuttee
and Compensation Commuttee of Federal-Mogui Corporation prio: to the Reorganization

References herein to the ' Company, * * Federal-Mogul,” “we,” ‘us,” * our” refer to Federal-Mogul Corporation for the penod prior to the effective tume of the
Reorganization on Apnl 15, 2014 and to Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation for the penod after the effective ume of the Reorgamization

Funancial Statement Presentation The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared 1n accordance with accounting
pnnciples generally accepted in the United States (“U S GAAP™)

Prineiples of Consolidation The Company consolidates into its financial statements the accounts of the Company, all whelly-owned subsidiaries, and any
partially-owned subsidtary that the Company has the ability to control Control generally equates to ownership percentage, whereby investments that are
more than 50% owned arc consolidated, mvestments in affiliates of 50% or less but greater than 20% arc accounted for using the equity method, and
investments 1n affiliates of 20% or less are accounted for using the cost method See Note 12, /nvestment tn Non-consohdated Affiliates for discussion
regarding the Company's subsidianes that are subject to regulatory control

The Company does not consolidate any entity for which 1t has a vanable interest based solely on power to direct the activities and significant participation tn
the entity’s expected results that would not otherwise be consohdated based on control through voting nterests Further, the Company’s affibates are
businesses established and maintained in connection with the Company’s operating strategy All intercompany transactions and balances have been
ehminated

In 2012, the Company began exiting substantially all its activities in Venezug¢la with only residual cash and de minimis adnunistrative costs remasning in
2014 In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company concluded that the inability to freely exchange currency between the Venezuelan bolivar currency and the
US dollar coupled with the significant government regulations and restnietions currently 1n place, which are expected to continue or worsen, severely bimits
its abihity to manage and control its Venezuelan operations As a result, the Company's Venezuelan subsidiary was deconsohdated as of December 31, 2014
The impact of the deconsolidation was a $2 mullion dollar charge included in the results of operations for the year ended December 31,2014

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conforrmty with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumnplions that affect
the amounts reported therein Due to the mnherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported 1n future penods may be based upon
amounts that differ from these estimates

Controlling Ownership As of December 31,2014 Mr Carl C Icahn indirectly controls approximately 80 73% of the voting power of the Company’s capital
stock and, by virtue of such stock ewnership, is able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, including the election of directors, business
strategy and policies, mergers or other business combinations, acquisition or disposition of assets, future 1ssuances of common stock or other secunties,
mcurrence of debt or obtaining other sources of financing, and the payment of dividends on the Company’s commeon stock The cxistence of a controlling
stockholder may have the effect of making 1t difficult for, or may discourage or delay, a third party from seeking 1o acquire a majenty of the Company’s
outstanding common stock, which may adversely affect the market price of the stock

Mr lcahn’s interests may not always be consistent wath the Company’s interests or with the interests of the Company's other stockholders Mr Icahn and
cntitics controlled by him may also pursue acquisitions or business opportunities that may or may not be complementary to the Company’s business To the
extent that conflicts of interest may anse between the Company and Mr Icahn and his affiliates, those conflicts may be resolved 1n a manner adverse to the
Company or uts gther shareholders
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Related Partv Icahn Sourcing, LLC (“Icahn Sourcing™) 1s an entity formed by Mr Icahn 1n order to maximize the potential buying power of a group of
entittes with which Mr Icahn has a relationship 1n negotiating with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services and tangible and intangible property at
negotiated rates The Company was a member of the buying group 1n 2012 Prior to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay Ieahn Sourcing any fees or
other amounts with respect to the buying group amingement

In December, 2012, [cahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 1t would restructure its ownership and change 1ts name to Insight
Ponfolio Group LLC (“Insight Portfolio Group™) In connection with the restructunng, the Company acquired a minonty equity interest in Insight Porttolic
Group and agreed to pay a portion ot Insight Portfolio Group’s operating expenses n 2013 [n addition to the minonty equity wnterest held by the Company,
certain subsidianes of Icahn Enterpnses Holdings, including CVR, Tropicana, ARI, Viskase PSC Metals and WPH also acquired minonty equity interests in
Insight Portfolio Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Porifolio Group's operating expenses A number of other entities with which Mr Icahn has a
relationship also acquired equity interests in Insight Portfolio Group and also agreed to pay certain operating expenses

The Company’s payments to Insight Portfolio Group were less than $0 5 million for both of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 The Company
anticipates s 2015 payments to Insight Porttolio Group to be simelar to the amounts pad in 2014

Cash and Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with matunties of 90 days or less from the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents

Divestitures In connection with 1is strategic planning process, the Company assesses 1ts operations for market position, product technology and capability,
and profitability Those businesses determined by management not to have a sustainable competiive advantage are considered non-core and may be
considered for divestiture or other ¢xit activities Duning the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested 1ts sintered components operations
located in France, its connecting red manufactunng facility located 1in Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom and its fuel pump
business, which included an aftermarket business compenent and a manufactunng and research and development facility located in the Umited States These
divestitures have been presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operatuons See Note 6, Discontinued Operations, for further
details

Tiade dccounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubiful Accounts Trade aceounts recervable 1s stated at net realizable value which approximates fair value
The Company does not generally require collateral for its trade accounts recervable Accounts receivable 1s reduced by an allowance for amounts that may
become uncollectible in the future This estimated allowance 15 based pnmanly on management s evaluauen of specific balances as the balances become past
due, the financial condition of its customers and the Company’s histoncal expenence of wrte-o{fs The Company’s general policy foruncollectible accounts,
if not reserved through specific examination procedures, 1s to reserve based upon the aging categones of accounts recervable and whether amounts are due
from an onginal equipment manufacturer or servicer (“OE") or aftermarket customer Past due status 1s based upon the mvoice date of the oniginal amounts
outstanding Included 1n selling, general and administation (“SG&A™) expenses are bad debt expenses of §5 mutlion, $3 mullion and $2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively Account balances are charged off against the allowance afier all means of collection have been
exhausted and the potential for recovery 1s considered remote The Company's allowance for doubtful accounts was $11 million at both December 31, 2014
and 2013

Federal-Mogul subsidianes in Brazil, France, Germany, Italy and the Un:ted States are party to accounts receivable factonng and secuntization facilities
Amounts factored under these facilities consist of the following

December 31

2014 1013
(Millions of Dollars)
:G”mqi:gg%tsygglv%factomd L N __§ (306§ 2_7_1_]
Gross accounts recervable factored, qualifying as sales 293 258
Undrawn cash on fagtored avcounts recenvable _ T T T T Ty

Proceeds from the factonng of accounts receivable qualifying as sales and expenses associated with the factoning of accounts recervable are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
&ncccd;ﬁa.rﬁ-f;@)nngguﬂfy_lpg assales : T:M__w m_'_ Mj;_ o ) 1 6]_5 B S;: e “I_.:ismim ;) 1,475 I
Losses on sales of account receivables (ﬁ)m 7 )

63




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Accounts receivables factored but not qualifying as a sale, as defined 1n FASB Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing, were pledged as collateral and accounted
for as secured borrowings and recorded in the consohdated balance sheets within “Accounts receivable, net” and “Short-term debt, including the cument
portion of long-term debt ™

The losses on sales of accounts recervable are recorded in the consolidated statements of operations within “Other cxpense, net” Where the Company
recerves a fee to service and monitor these transferred receivables, such fees are sufficient to offset the costs and as such, a servicing asset or liability 15 not
recorded as a result of such activities

Certamn of the facilities contain terms that require the Company to share 1n the credit nisk of the sold receivables The maximum exposures to the Company
associated with these certain facihities® terms were $17 mullion and $21 muillion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively The fair values of the
exposures to the Company associated with these certain facilities” terms were determined to be immatenal

Inventortes The Company values inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on a first-mm, first-out (“FIFQ’) basis Cost of inventory
includes direct matenals, labor and applicable manufacturing overhead costs The value of inventones are reduced for excess and obsolete 1nventones based
on management’s review of on-hand inventones compared to historical and estimated future sales and usage

Long-Lived Assets Asaresult of fresh-start reporting, long-lived assets such as property. plant and equipment (PP&E™} that were purchascd pnor to January 1,
2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropnate PP&E purchased since
that ume are recorded at cost Definite-hved intangible assets have been stated at fair value established at emergence and at cost thereafter Long-lived assets
are penedically reviewed for umpairment indicators If impaiment indicators exist, the Company performs the required analysis and records an imparment
charge, 1t required, 1n accordance with the subscquent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant & Equipment 1f the camying value
of a long-hved asset 1s considered impaired, an impairment charge 1s recorded for the amount by which the camrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its
fair value Depreciation and amortization 1s computed pnneipally by the straight-line method for financiat reporing purposes and by accelerated methods for
INCOMe tax purposes

Goodwill As of December 31, 2007, in accordance with fresh-start reporting, goodwill was detenmined as the excess of reorganization valug over amounts
attributable to specific tangible and ntangible assets, including developed technology and customer relationships Goodwtll 1s reviewed for impaimment
annually as of October 1, or more frequently 1f imparment indicators exist, in accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic
350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other This impairment analysis compares the fawr values ofthe Company’s reporting units to their related camrying values If
a reporting unit’s camrying value exceeds ts fair value, the Company must then calculate the reporting unit’s implied fair value of goodwill and mmpairment
charges arc recorded for any cxcess of the goodwall carrying value over the tmplied farr value of goodwill The reporting umts’ farr values are bascd upon
consideration of vanous valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the nsks involved. guideline
transaction multiples, and multiples of current and future eamings

Trademarks and Brand Names As of December 31, 2007, trademarks and brand names were stated at fair value as a result of fresh-start reporting These
indefimte-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impawrment annually as of October 1, or more frequently 1f impairment indicators exist, in accordance with
the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 330, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other This impairment analysts compares the fair values of
these assets to the related camying values, and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of camrying values over fair values These fair values are based
upeon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropnate for these intangible
assets

Penston and Other Postemployment Obligartons Pension and other postemployment benefit costs are dependent upon assumptions used mn calculating such
costs These assumptions include discount rates, health care cost trends, expected returns on plan assets and other factors In accordance with US GAAP,
actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future penods and, accordingly, generzlly affect recogmized expense
and the recorded obligation 1n future penods

Revenue Recognition The Company records sales when products are shipped and the risks and rewards of ewnership have transferred to the customer, the
sales price 1s fixed and determinable, and the collectability of revenue 1s reasonably assured Accruals for sales returns and other allowances are provided at
point of sale based upon past experience Adjustments to such returns and allowances are made as new information becomes available

Rebates The Company accrues for rebates pursuant to specific amangements with centain of its customers pnmanly in the aftermarket Rebates generally
provide for price reductions based upon the achievement of specified purchase volumes and are recorded as a reduction of sales as eamed by such customers
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Sales and Sales Reiated Taxes The Company collects and remits taxes assessed by vanous govemmental suthonties that are both 1mposed on and
concurrent with revenue-producing transactions with 1ts customers These taxes may include but are not hinmted to, sales use, value-added, and some excise
taxes The collection of these taxes 1s reported on a net basis (excluded from revenues)

Shipping and Handling Costs The Company recognizes shipping and handling costs as incurred as a component of cost ot products sold in the consolidated
statements of operations

Engineering and Tooling Costs Preproduction tooling and engingenng costs that the Company will not own and that will be used in producing products
under long-term supply arrangements are expensed as incurred unless the supply amangement provides the Company with the noncancelable nght to use the
tools, or the reimbursement of such costs 1s agreed to by the customer Pre-production tooling costs that are owned by the Company are capitalized as part of
machinery and equipment, and are depreciated over the shorter of the tool’s expected life or the duration of the related program

Research and Development The Company expenses research and development (“R&D"} costs as incurred R&D expense, including product engineenng and
validation costs, was $192 milhon, $173 milhon and $173 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively R&D expense 1s
recorded 10 the consolidated statements of operations within “Selling, general and administrative expenses

Advertising Costs Advertising and promotion cxpenses for continuing opcranons arc cxpensed as incurred and were $47 mullion, $41 million and $37
mullion for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively Advertising and promotion expenses are recorded 1n the consolidated
statements of operations within  Selling, general and admemistrative expenses ™

Restructuring The costs contained within “Restructunng expense, net” in the Company's consolidated statements of operattons are compnsed of two types

employee costs (pnncipally termination benefits) and facility closure costs Termination benefits arc accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topie 712,

Compensation — Nonretrrement Postemployment Benefits and are recorded when 1t 1s probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts
can be reasonably estimated Estimates of termination benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the similanty of benefits under the
current plan and pnior plans, and the existence of statutory required mimimum benefits Termination benefits are also accounted for in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 420, Et or Disposal Cost Obligations (“FASB ASC 4207), for one-ime temmnation benrefits and are tecorded dependent upon future service
requirements Facility closure and other costs are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 420 and are recorded when the hability 15 incurred

Foreign Currency Translation Exchange adjustments related to intemational cummency transactions and translation adjustments for intemnational subsidianes
whose functional currency ts the United States dollar (principally those located in ghly inflationary economies) are reflected in the consolidated statements
of opemtions Translation adjustments of intermational subsidianes for which the local currency 15 the functional currency are reflected 1n the consolidated
balancc shects as a component of "Accumulated other comprehensive loss  Deferred taxes are not provided on translation adjustments as the camings of the
subsidianes are considered to be permanently reinvested

Environmental Liabiliies The Company recognizes environmental habilities in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obfigatrons when a loss 15 probable and reasonably estimable Such liabilities are generally not subject to insurance coverage Engineenng
and legal specialists witlun the Company estimate each environmental obligation based on current law and existing technologies Such estirnates are based
pnmanly upon the estimated cost of investigatton and remediation required and the likelihoed that other potentially responsible parties will be able to fulfill
their commitments at the sites where the Company may be jointly and severally Liable with such parties The Company regularly evaluates and revises its
estimates for environmental obligations based on expenditures against established accruals and the availabihity of additional information

Asset Retirement Obligations The Company records asset retirement obligations ( ARO™) n accordance with FASB ASC 410, Asver Retirement and
Environmental Obligattons The Company’s primary ARO activines relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at 1ts faciliies The Company
recards ARO when amounts can be reasonably estumated, typically upon the expectation that fa¢ilities may be closed or sold

Derwvative Financtal mstruments The Company uses interest mte swaps, commodity forward contracts and currency swaps to manage volahility of
underlying exposures The Company recognizes all of its denvative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair value The accounting for changes 1n the
farr valuc (1 ¢ gans or losses) of a denvative instrument depends on whether it has been designated, and s cffective, as a hedge and further, on the type of
hedging relationship For these denvative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging nstruments, a company must designate the hedging
mstrument, based upon the exposure being hedged as a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation Gains and
losses melated to a hedge are erther recogmized 1n income immediately to offset the gain or loss on the hedged 1tem or are deferred and reported as a
component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” and subsequently recogmized 1n earmings when the hedged item affects
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eamings The change in fair value of the ineffective portion of a financial instrument, determined using the hypothetical denvative method, 1s recogmized in
eamings immedtately The gan or loss refated to finaneial instruments that are not designated as hedges are recogntzed immediately in carmings Cash flows
related to hedging acuvities are included 1n the operating section of the consolidated statements of cash flows The Company does not hold or issue

denvative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes The Company’s objectives for holding denvatives are to minumize nsks using the most
effective and cost-effictent methods available

New Accounnng Pronouncements

In Apnl 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 20148 Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property Plant and Equipment (To pic 360)
Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity This ASU 1s effective for disposals that occur within annual
penods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and intenim penods within annual penods beginning on or after December 15, 2015 This ASU elevates the
threshold for a disposal to qualify as discontinued operations and significantly expands the disclosure requirements for transactions that meet the cntena for
discontinued operations The Company 1s currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of
operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and/or disclosures

In May 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2014-9, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Toprc 606) This ASU 1s effecuve for annual reporting penods
begianing after December 15, 2016, including intenm perrods within that reporting penod This ASU clanfies the pnnciples for recognizing revenue and
provides a common revenue standard for US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™) The Company 1s currently evaluating the
impact that the adoption of thus guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and/or disclosures

In June 2014, the FASB 1ssucd ASUNo 2014-12 Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718) Avcounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of
an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period This ASU 15 effective for annual penods and intenm
penods within those annual penods, beginning after December 15, 2015 The Company 1s cumently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance
will have on its financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and/or disclosures

In August 2014 the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Gotng Concern (subtoprc 205-40) This ASU s effective for
annual penods ending after December 135, 2016, and for annual penods and interim periods thereafter, and defines management’s responsibility to evaluate
whether there 1s substantial doubt about an orgamzation’s ability to continuc as a going concem and to provide related footnote disclosures The Company

expects the adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and
disclosures

In November 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASUNo 2014-16 Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815} Determuning Whether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financial
Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akan to Debt o1 to Equity This ASU 1s effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2015, including interim periods within that reporting penod The Company expects the adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company's
financial position, results of operations, comprchensive income, cash flows and disctosurcs

In November 2014, the FASB 1ssucd ASU No 2014-17 Business Combinatians (Topic 805) Pushdown Accounting This ASU 15 effective on November 18,
2014 and provides an acquired entity with an option to apply pushdown accounting in 1ts separate financial statements upon occurrence of an event in which
an acquirer obtains control of the acquired enuity The Company expects the adoption of this gmidance will have no impact on the Company's financial
position, resulits of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and disclosures
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? RESTRUCTURING

The Company’s restructunng activities are undertaken as necessary to execute management’s strategy and streamline operattons, consohdate and take
advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions Restnuctunng activities include efforts to integrate and rationalize
the Company'’s businesses and to relocate manufactunng operations to best cost manufactunng locations

The costs contained within * Restructuring expense, net” tn the Company s consolidated statements of operations contain two types employee costs
(pnncipally termination benefits) and facility closure and other costs Termination benefits are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 712,
Compensation — Nonretirement Postemplovment Benefits, and are recorded when 1t 15 probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts
can be reasonably estimated Estimates of termination benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the similanty of benefits under the
current plan and pnor plans, and the existence of statutory required mimimum benefits Termination benefits are also accounted for in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 420, £t or Disposal Cost Obligations { FASB ASC 4207), for one-time termination benefits and are recorded dependent upon future service
requircments Facilny closure and other costs are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 420 and are recorded when the hability 1s imcurred

Estimates of restructuning charges are based on infermation available at the time such charges are recorded In centain countries where the Company operates,
statutory requirements include involuntary termination benefits that extend several years into the future Accordingly, severance payments continue well past
the date of termination at many 1ntemational locations Thus, restructunng programs appear to be ongoing when, in fact, terminations and other activities
have been substantially completed

Restructunng opportumties include potential plant closures and employee headcount reductions in vanous countnes that require consultation with vanous
parties including, but not limuted to, untons/works councils, local governments and/or customers The consultation process can take 2 significant amount of
time and 1mpact the final outcome and uming The Company's policy 15 to record a provision for qualifying restructuring costs 1n accordance wth the
apphcable accounting guidance when the outcome of such consultations becomes probable

Management ¢xpects to financce s restructuring programs through cash gencrated from 1ts ongoing operations or through cash avaitable under its existing
credit facility. subject to the terms of apphicable covenants Management does not expect that the execution of these programs will have an adverse impact on
1ts hquidity position

The following table 1s a summary of the Company s consolidated restructunng liabilities and related activity for 2014, 2013 and 2012 by reporting segment

Total
Reporting Total
Powertram Motorparts Segment Corporate Cempany
o {Mulions of Dollars)
Balance at January 1,2012 $ 6 § 1§ 7 8 1§ 8 |
ﬁ\(lsi}gs 6 16 22 4 26
 _ Revemals (1) - N0 - ey
_ Paymemis e ) o 6 asx @ {s)
[_:m Reclagsifications to pension habibty — (&) (6) — (6}
Ba!qr‘\“c“:g“at Qeg(zmbcr 31,2012 o 4 5 9 _3_ 12
[ Pravisions - ) 20 a0 4 44 |
Reversals _ R {3) = (3) L mm_(l)" (4)
T Paymems a3 an @4 ol 28) ]
Balance at December 31 2013 8 14 22 2 24
L Powsens % __ 27 B 1 87 ]
__Reverals L o = (ay M =
| Payments o T en . e s @y 6y
~ ForegnCumettey #) — ) — )
[Balance at December 31,2014 s 36§ 16 3 52§ 1 3 53 |
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The following table provides a summary of the Company's consohdated restructunng habilies and related activity for each type of exst cost for 2014, 2013
and 2012 As the table indicates, facility closure costs are typically paid within the year of incurrence

Employee Facility Closure and
Costs Other Exit Casts Total
(dhlhons of Dollars)
:Balance at January 1,2012 3 8 — 8 |
Provisions 25 1 26
L Reversals ) e ) i — (m
Payments (14) (1) {15)
i Reclassification to penston hability (6) —_ (gﬂ
Bealance at December 31,2012 12 — 12
[ Provisions _ A3 w]
Reversals 4) — )
[ __Payments _ (25) @ @8]
Balance at December 31,2013 24 — 24
[ Provisions 77 10 —"é',i—]
Reversals (1) — (1)
r Payments 43) ‘W(S) W(Sfj ﬂ
Foreign Currency 4) — 4)
ZBalance at December 31 2014 $ 51 § 2 3 53|

Due to the inherent uncertainty mvolved 1n estimating restructuring expenses, actual amounts pad for such activities may differ from amounts imtially
cstimated Accordingly, the Company reversed $1 mullion, 34 mmllion and $1 millien ot previously recorded habilitics 1n 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively
Such reversals result from changes 1n estimated amounts to accomplish previously planned acuvities, changes in expected (based on histonical practice)
outcome of negotiations with labor untens, which reduced the level of oniginally commutted actions, newly implemented govemment employment programs,
which lowered the expected cost, and changes 1 approach to accomplish resttuctunng activities

Activities under Restructuring Programs

The Company has initiated approved restructunng activities as part of a broader imitiative 1o improve operating performance and reduce cost

The following table provides a summary of the Company's restructunng activinies which commenced 1n the first quarter of 2013 and through December 31,
2014 The Company will continue to evaluate 1ts activities and opportunities to align 1ts business with executive management’s strategy

Total Esttmated
Expected Costsin Costsin Additiortal
Costs 1013 2014 Costs
(Millions of Dollars)
:Employee costs _ _ _ N N Y 1A % & 16 % !3J
Factlity closure and other exit costs ) 7 | 6 —
! s 134§ 39 % 82 § 13 |

L e — R PR .
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3. ADJUSTMENT OF ASSETS TO FAIR VALUE
The Company recorded total impaiment charges for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 as follows

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 012

(Millions of Dollars)

Goodwll ____ o . §_ 12 s —'5 %]

Property plant and equ:})ment 19 8 43
,-[l;\;e;tr;l;:n;s m——n;)—;o;lso—l:(_i:;t—;d ;}t—illgth?_ ~;___;_ . “___ _ T } 5 *-W::—: ~:mmh :a
thg; E;ljcinewﬁnl}g:lﬁgii '_;fi‘ﬂgli’l"’:{;;j“L _ i—m o o —_ — Y
) ) B T T T 144 S G 187 |

Impairments of goodwill and other indefinste-lived mtangible assets are discussed further in Note 8, Fair Value Measurements and Note 11, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets

The Company recorded impairment charges to adjust property, plant and equipment to their fair values in accordance with the subsequent measurement

provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property Plant & Equipment Adjustments of property, plant and equipment to fair value are discussed further in Note §,
Faw Value Measurements

The impaiment of the Company's investment in non-consolidated affiliates 1s discussed further in Note 12, fnvestment 1n Non-consohidated Affiliates
The tmpairment of property, plant and equipment by reporting segment for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Millions of Dollars)
rPowenfa;;I B $ 7 8 5 5 B m
M.o;(-;lp;ts 12 ) 23

Comporate_ —

o | —ir
:
t
I
:
:J

The 2012 property, plant and equipment impaimment excludes 37 million related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed 1n
Note 6, Discontunued Operatrons
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4 OTHEREXPENSE,NET

The specific components of “Other expense, net” are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 z012

3 {Milkons of Dollars)
Cegal e soms T T T ey T
Foreign currency exchange ) (10) (18)
‘Losses on sales of account recetvables T o 6) W(i)‘w i N aﬂ
Tl;;rdwpany royalty income T B T 7 8 3
Unisahized g on edge it S W=
Adjustment of Chapter 1 I:ccruai — 4 —
Other — — ~ " o - _ 4 2 @)l

s (1) § 3) 8 (26)

Foreign currency exchange The Company recogmzed $7 mullion, $10 million and $ 18 mullien 1n toreign currency exchange losses dunng the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively Of the $18 milhion in foreign currency exchange losses duning the year ended December 31, 2012,$10
million related to unrealized losses associated with outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts that settled dunng 2013 See Note 7, Frnancial Instruments,
for further details

5. ACQUISITIONS

On May 1,2014, the Company completed the Affima chassis business acquisition This business serves leading US aftermarket customers with private label
chassis product lines and will allow the Company to broaden 1ts product offering, provide operational synergies and better service customers globally The
purchase pnice was $149 mullion, net of acquired cash The Company patd $140 mullion 1n the second quarter of 2014 and $9 nullion 1n the third quarter of
2014

A valuation of the assets from the Affima chassis business acquisition resulted i $71 mullion allocated to tangible net assets, $26 mulhon allocated to
goodwill, and 851 million allocated to other intangible assets based on estimated fair values as of the acquisition date as determuned by third panty valuation
specialists The valuation of assets was performed utihizing cost, income and market approaches

On July 11, 2014, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business including two recently
established manufactunng facilities in China and Romania which substantially strengthens the manufacturing and cngincenng capabilities of the Company's
current global braking portfolio The business was acquired through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnice of $169 million and
a provisional estimate of $15 million subject to certain customary post-closing adjustments, contingent consitderation and other habilities

Avaluation of the assets from the Honeywell brake component business acquisition was performed utilizing cost, income and market approaches resulting 1n
$184 mullion allocated to tangible net assets

The following table summanzes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and habilities assumed at the acquisition date The Company 15 1n the process
of finahzing certain customary postclosing adjustments which could have an effect on the third-party valuations of certain tangible assets, thus, the
provisional measurements of net assets are subject to change
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Prebmmary Measurement Perod Estimated Fair Value as
Estimated Fawr Value Adjustments of December 31, 2014
{Millions of Dollars)

Cash, net of assumed debt 3 6 3 — $ 6
kA;counts receivable, net - 108 — H)ﬂ
Inventory, net W 77 (2} 75
Me_r_:_y;plam and equipment, net T 164 25 [89 ]
Accounts payable ~ (107} — (o7
'Acquired post-cmployment benefits (60} 1) @]
(_)Lhez net assets 4) 2) (6)
(LTotal identifiable net assets 3 184 % o 3 184 |

The imitizl allocations of purchase price were recorded at the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon the best information
available to management The measurement peniod adjusiments reflect additional information obtained to record the tair value of certain assets acquired and
liabalities assumed based on facts and circumstances existing as of the acquisition date

The tollowing proforma results for the years ended December 31 2014 and 2013 assumes the Affinia chassis business acquisition and the purchase of
Honeywell's brake component business already occurred as of the beginming of 2013 and 1s inclusive of provisional purchase price adjustments The
proforma results are not necessanly indicative of the results that actually would have been ebtained

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
(Millions af Dollars, kxcept Per Share

Amounts)

Unaudited
o - ]
'__,_ — — - ———
Net sales S 7673 8 7510
Net income (loss) atinbutable to Federal- Mogul B T s Tamy s T
E_a;n'lnnés- (k)_ss;;a;;a}e attnbut;;i;t(v)ﬁl:—;iﬂé};ljl‘;i;;ul -basic and diluted s (-1--1—-4_1)——3——— 009

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded $1 mullion n transaction related expenses associated with the Affinia chassis business
acquisitton and $6 mullion m transaction related expenses associated with the Honeywell brake component acquisition Dunng the year ended December 31,
2013, the Company rccorded $1 mullion 1n transaction related expenscs associatcd with the Affinia chassis business acquisition and $3 million in transaction
related expenses associated with the Honeywell brake component acquisition All of these transaction related expenses are recorded 1n selling, general and
administrative expenses within the consolidated statement of operations

6 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In connection with 1ts strategic planming process, the Company assesses 1ts opertions for market position, product technolegy and capabihty, and
prefitability Those businesses not core to the Company's long-term portfolio may be considered for divestiture or other exit activities

Dunng March 2013 the Company’s Powertrain Segment completed the divestiture of its sintered components operations located 1n France This disposal
resulted 1 a $48 mullion net loss (no income tax mpact), which 1s included 1n “Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax” dunng the year ended
December 31, 2013
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Dunng Junc 2013, the Company’s Powcrtratn Segment completed the divestiture of 1ts connceting rod manufactunng facility located in Canada and 1ts
camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom This disposal resulted 1n a $6 mullion net loss (no income tax impact), which 15 included in “Leoss from
discontinued operations, net of tax * dunng the year ended December 31, 2013

Dunng September 2013, the Company completed the divestiture of 1ts fuel pump business This dispoesal resulted 1n a $7 million net gain (inclusive of a $2
muthion tax benefit), which 15 included 1n * Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ” dunng the year December 31, 2013 As certain employees at the
fuel pump manufactunng facility participated 1n the Company’s US Welfare Benefit Plan, the Company had this plan re-measured due to its curtaiiment
mmplications The temmination of those employees and the related reduction 1o the average remaming future service penod to the full eligibility date of the
remaining active plan participants in the US Welfare Benefit Plan triggered a $19 nmilien OPEB curtailment gain which 1s included 1n "Loss on sale of
discontinued operations" dunng the year ended December 31,2013

Operating results related to discontinued operations are as follows

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)

Net sales b 119§ 220
:(_i;srofpmducts sold (119 (2227%
Gross profit — 2)
:S_éllmg, general and adnunistrative expenses (6) @ﬂ
Adjustment of assets to fair value — M
Otherincome expense), net 1 ()]
Operating loss (no income tax impact} (3) (19)
5..-025-(-);1 sale of discontinued opemn—(;:s (net of tax benefit of $2 million forth:-year ended December 3 1,2013) i ﬁ(4::‘)__‘ S :]
Loss from discontinued operahons‘ net of tax 3 (52) S (19)

7  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Commodity Price Risk

The Company’s preduction processes are dependent upon the supply of certain raw matenals that are exposed to pnce fluctuations on the open market The
pnmary purposc of the Company’s commodity price forward contract activity 1s to manage the volatihity associated wath forceasted purchases The Company
monitors its commodity prnice nsk exposures regularly to maximize the overall effectiveness of 1ts commodity forward contracts Principal raw matenals
hedged include natural gas, copper, nickel, tin, zine, high-grade aluminum and aluminum alloy Forward contracts are used to mitigate commodity pnce nsk
associated with raw matenals, generally related to purchases forecast for up to fifteen months in the future

[nformation regarding the Company’s outstanding commodity price hedge contracts 1s as follows

December 31
2014 013
(Millions of Dollars}
Combined notional value o $ 36 % 51_}
Combined notional value designated as hedging instruments 36 51
llfﬁm;flzfgdm:;ét;@oss) recorded 1n ‘Accumulated other Ec-)glpz_ehensne loss® (1) (lﬂ

Substantially all of the commodity pnice hedge contracts mature within one year

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company manufactures and sells 1ts products in North America, South Amenca, Asia, Europe and Affnca As a result, the Company’s financial results
could be significantly affected by facters such as changes in foreign cumency exchange raies or weak economic conditions 1n foreign markets in which the
Company manufactures and sells its products The Company’s operating results are primanly exposed to changes 1n exchange rates between the US dollar
and European currencies
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The Company generally tnes to use natural hedges wathin 1ts foreign cumency activities, mcluding the matching of revenues and costs, to minimuze foreign
cumency nsk Where natural hedges are not tn place, the Company considers managing certatn aspects of 1ts foreign currency activities and larger
transactions through the use of foreign currency options or forward contracts Principal currencies hedged have histotically included the euro, British pound
and Polish zloty Foreign cutrency torwards are also used in conjunction with the Company’s commodity hedging program In order to obtain cntical terms
match for commodity exposure, the Company engages the use of foreign exchange contracts

Information regarding the Company’s outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts 1s as follows

December 31
2014 2013
(Milhons of Dollars)
;?9.%{’1!1?‘1 notional value . ) - 8 12 E
Combined notional value designated as hedging instruments — 12
Unrealized net (loss) recorded in “Accomulated other comprehensive loss” e ]

The Company does not hold any foreign cumrency price hedge contracts as of December 31,2014

Dunng 2013, foreign currency contracts not designated as hedging instruments were entered into by the Company in order to offset fluctuations 1n
consolidated carnings caused by changes in currency rates used to translate carnings at foreign subsidianes into US dollars over 2013 These contracts were
not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes and were marked to market through the income statement

Interest Rate Risk

The Company, dunng 2008, entered into a series of five-year interest rate swap agreements with a total notonal value of $1,190 million to hedge the
vanability of interest payments associated with 1ts varable-rate term loans As of December 31,2013, all of these five-year interest rate swap agreements had
expired

Other

The Company presents its denvative positions and any related matenal collateral under master netting agreements on a net basis For denvatives designated
as cash flow hedges, changes in the time value are excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness Unrealized gains and losses associated with
ineffective hedges, detenmined using the hypothetical denvative methed, are recognized in “Other {expensc) income, net” Denvative gains and losscs
included 1 “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” for effective hedges are reclassified into operations upon recognition of the hedged transaction
Denvative gans and losses associated with undesignated hedges are recogmized 1n “Other {expense) income, net™ for outstanding hedges and “Cost of
products sold™ or "Other (expense) income, net” upon hedge matunty

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial nstraments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit nsk, consist pnmanty of accounts receivable and cash investments
The Company’s customer base includes virtually every significant global Light and commercial vehicle manufacturer and @ large number of distnbutors,
installers and retaiters of automotive aftermarket parts The Company’s credit evaluation process and the geographical dispersion of sales transactions help to
mutigate credit nsk concentration No individual customer accounted for more than 6% of the Company’s direct sales duning 2014 The Company has two
Motorparts customer that accounts for 18% of the Company s net accounts recervable balance as of December 34,2014 The Company requires placement of
cash in financial institutions evaluated as highly creditworthy
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The fellowing table discloses the fair values and balance sheet locations of the Company’s denvative instruments all of which were designated as cash flow

hedging instruments

Asset Derivatives

Liability Perlvatives

Balance Sheet Balance Sheet

December 31, December 31,

Location December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 Location 2014 M2
(Milons of Dellars)
| Coinmodity contracts O:E‘:;ﬁﬁ?:;m 1 1 Oi?:;,ﬁ:esm 2) (2)
Foreign currency contracts Other current
liabiltties — — _— (n
,’ $ T 1 $ @ 3 (3) |

The following tables disclose the cffect of the Company’s denvative instruments on the conschdated statcment of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2014, all of which were designated as hedging instruments

Amount of
Gain (Loss) Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Location of Gain {Loss) Amount of (Loss) Recognized in Income on Amount of Galn Recognized in
OClon Reclassfied Reclassified Derivatives Income on Derivatives
Derivatives from AOCI into from AOCI ato (Ineffective Portion and (Ineffective Portion and
Derivatives Destgnated as (Effective Income (Effective Income (Effective Amount Excltuded from Amount Excluded from
Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Portion} Effectiv eness Testing) Effectiveness Testing)
(Millons of Dollars)
.
)Commodny contracts Other expense, net
i 3 — Cost of products sold 3 — b I
Foreign currency
contracts —_ Cost of products sold (1) —
! $ — $ (1) $ 1|

The following tables disclose the effect of the Company’s denvative instruments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended

December31, 2013

Amount of
Gain (Loss)
Recognized Location of Gain Amount of
OClon {Loss) Reclassified {Loss) Reclassified
Dermvatives from AOQClnto from AOCI into
(Effective Income (Effective Income (Effective
Dervatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Portion)
(Millions of Dellars)
ﬁnterest rate swap contracts $ 1 Interest expense, net 5 (9} ]
Commodity contracts (¥a] Cost of producis sold (5)
‘Foreign currency contracts )] Cost of products sold — —l
3 7} $ (14)

Dernvatives ot Designated as Hedging Instruments

Location of Loss
Recognized m
Income on
Denvatives

Amount of Loss
Recognized in
Income on
Derivatives

Foreign currency contracts

(Millions of Dollars)

Interest expense, net
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The following tables disclose the effect of the Company’s denvative instruments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31,2012

Amount of
Gain (Loss)
Recognized Lecation of Gan Amount of Gamn
in OCl on {Loss) Reclassified {Loss) Reclassified
Derivatives from AOCIinto from AQCI into
{Effective Income {Effective Income (Effective
Dern atives Designated as Hedging lnstruments Portion) Portion) Portion)
{Mulltons 9f I?olla rs)
Interest rate swap contracts 5§ ) Interest expense, net 3 (38) _]
Commodity contracts 7 Cost of preducts sold {10}
Foreign currency contracts o {2) Costofproductssold 1 “]
s i $ (47)
Location of Loss Amount of Loss
Recognized in Recopgnized in
Icome on Income on
Dervatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Derivatives Derivutives
(Millons of Dollars)
Foreign currency contracts B N L Interest expense, net $ _ (10) ]

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“FASB ASC 8207), clanfies that fair value 15 an exit price, representing the amount that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability 1n an orderly transaction between market participants As such, fair value 1s a market-based
measurement that should be determined based upon assumptions that market participants would use 1n pnicing an asset or hability As a basis for considenng
such assumptions, FASB ASC 820 estabhishes a three-tier tair value hierarchy, which pnontizes the inputs used 1n measunng fair value as follows

Level 1 Observabie inputs such as quoted poces in active markets,
Level 2 Inputs, other than quoted pnces 1n active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly, and
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which there 1s little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop 1ts own assumptions

An asset’s or habihity’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy 15 based on the lowest level of any mput that 1s significant to the fair
value measurement Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minmmize the use of unobservable 1nputs

Assets and Liabtlities measured at fair value are based on one ormore of the following three valuation techniques noted in FASB ASC 820

A Muarket approach Pnces and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving tdentical or comparable assets or
liabtlities

B Cost approach Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost)

C Income approach Techniques to convert fiuture amounts to a single present amount based upon market expectations {including present
value technigues, option-pricing and excess eamings models)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Assets and Labihities remeasured and disclosed at fair value on a recumng basis at December 31,2014 and 2013 are set forth 1n the tabie below

Asset Valuatien
(Liability ) Level 2 Technique
{Milltons of Dollars)

December 31, 2014 — ]
Commodity contracts % H s (1)) C
; paie i . PR Sot o
! . _ ]
December 31,2013
Eg_m;nggltg:ontracls . $ ( § ) c ]
Foreign currency contracts (1} (L C

The Company calculates the fair value of 1ts commodity contracts and foreign currency contracts using quoted commodity forward rates and quoted currency
forward rates, respectively, to calculate forward values, and then discounts the forward values The discount rates for all denvative contracts are based on
quoted bank depostt rates

The following table presents the Company's defined benefit plan assets measured at fair valuc on a recumng basis as of December 31,2014

Valuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Techmgue
{Mulhons of Dollars)
1.8, Plans, T
Cash 3 44 8 44 § — 8 — A
ri;l_;;::tme_gtiwﬁh registered investment companies }
Equity sccuntics 314 314 — — A
r“ Fixed income secunties 166 166 — — A ]
Real estate and other 25 25 —_— — A
i-E:qnl_z_:_ty securnties 231 231 — — A ]
Debt secunties
{ Corporate and other 21 - = __. B
Govemment 20 16 4 — A
'Hedge funds - 9l — — 91 AC |
3 912 % 796 § 25 % 91
:ﬁ)ﬁ.s Plans: _ |
Insurance contracts 3 41 8 — % — 41 B
12[35”;{;3&; with ;c'glstered investment companies :]
Fixed income sccuntics _ 10 10 — — A
T Eayseme ~ IS R
Corporate bonds . 2 — 2 — B
. R B $ 54 3% 13 2§ 41 |
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NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Conhnued

The following table summanzes the activity forthe U S plan assets classified in level 3

Fareign
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Reahzed/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
Japuary 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Inte {Out) of Rate December 31,
2014 Gans (Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movements 2814
(Millons of Dollars)
Assers 1
Hedge funds and other $ 85 § 6 § 47 % @7 $ — 3 — % 91
The following table summanzes the activity for the non-US plan assets classified in level 3
Foreagn
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
‘ January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, [nto (Qut) of Rate December 31,
| 2014 Cans {Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movements 2014
| {Millions of Dollars)
Assets . e e e e e e e . |
Insurance contracts 3 44 8 2 3 6 3 5y $ — 3 @ 3 41
The following table presents the Company’s defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value on a recumng basis as of December 31, 2013
Vatuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Techmque
) {Milhons of Dollars)
US Plans: - N
. Cash 3 33 0§ 33 0§ — 3 — A
Jnvestments wnth registered mvestment compantes }
_ Equuy secunttes ‘ - 347 347 — — A
. Fixed 1ncome secunties 135 135 — —— A }
Real estate and other 23 23 — — A
o e o e coni i, e e i oo e e e e g e e = s oo st = o 21
iEquity secunties 242 242 — — A —}
Debt securities L o e ~ B o )
: Corporate and other 22 — 22 — B ‘3
Govemnment 22 14 8 — A
Hedge tunds 85 = — &S AC |
| b 969 § 794 % 30 % 85
i Non-U.S. Plans }
‘ Insurance contracts 5 4 8 — 3 — % 44 B
| Investments with registered mvestment companies S ]
! Fixed income secunties 7 7 — — A
. Bautyseeunties 2 - e A
Corporate bonds 2 — 2 —_ B
——— o $ 55 % 9 8 2§ 44 ]

71




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The following tabie summanzes the activity forthe U S plan assets classified in level 3

Foreign
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Into {Out) of Rate December 31,
2013 Galns (Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movements 2013

{Mihons of Dollars)

!Assets :]
Hedge funds and other 8 14 3 11 s 83 3 (23) s — % — 5 85

The following table summanzes the activaty for the non-U § plan assets classified in level 3

Foreign
Net Purchases, Currency
Balance at Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlernents, Sales, Into (Ost) Rate December 31,
2013 Gains (Loss) Net Net of Level 3 Movements 2013
(Melions of Dollars)
LAisets
Insurance contracts £ 42 3 1 3 65 5 ®) 3 — 8 P 3 44

US Plan

As of December 31, 2014, plan assets were compnsed of 60% equity investments, 23% fixed income investments, and 1 7% 1n other investments which
include hedge funds Approximately 76% ofthe US plan assets were invested 1n actively managed investment funds The Company's investment strategy
includes a target asset allacation of 50% equity investments, 25% fixed income investments and 25% in other investment types including hedge funds

Investments with registered investment companies, common and prefemed stocks, and govemment debt secunties are valued at the closing pnce reported on
the active market on which the funds are trmded Corporate debt secunties are valued by third-party pneing sources Hedge funds and collective trusts are
valued at net asset value per share

Non-US Plans

The msurance contracts guarantee a minimum rate of retum The Company has no input into the 1nvestment stmtegy of the assets underlying the contracts,
but they are typically heavily invested 1n active bond markets and are highly regulated by local law

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurnng basis at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are set torth in the table below

Asset Valuation
{Lixbulity} Level 3 (Loss) Technique
(Milhons of Dollars)
December 31,2014 1
Goodwll $ 37 % 37§ (120) C
Property, plant and equipment 38 38 (19) C j
[nvestments in non-consollda_ted affiliates 10 10 (3) C

)
L _ _ o]
December 31,2013

Property, plant and equipment

3 55§ s s ® ¢ ]

One of the Company’s reporting umits with goodwil! of $157 million recorded an imparment charge of $120 million which reduced the implied fair vatue of
goodwill to $37 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 The impairment charge was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fair value” The
estumated fair values were detemuned based upon consideration of vanous valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at
rates commensurate with the nsks involved, guideline transaction multiples, and multiples of current and future camings
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Property, plant and equipment with a camrying value of $57 milbon were wntten down to their fair value of 338 million, resulting 1n an impairment charge of
$19 nullion, which was recorded within “ Adjustment of assets to fair value” for the year ended December 31, 2014

In1 estments in non<onsohdated affiliates with a carrying value of $15 mithon were wnitten down to their fair value of $10 mullien, resulung 1n a $5 mliion
impaument for the year ended December 31, 2014 The Company's investment 1n non-consolidated affiluates 15 discussed further in Note 12 firvestment i
Non-consolidared Affiliates

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of $63 million were wntten down to their fair value of $55 mullion, resulting 1 an impaiment charge of
$8 mullion, which was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fur value’ for the year ended December 31,2013

9 INVENTORIES

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost 1s determened by the first-in, first-out (* FIFO™) method at December 31,2014 and 2013 [nventones
are reduced by an allowance for excess and obsolete inventones based on management’s review of on-hand inventonies compared to histortcal and estimated
future sales and usage

Net inventornies consist of the following

Decomber 31 December 31
2014 013
(Millions of Dollars)

Raw matenals $ 232 % 207
Workemprosess T T T o]
Fimshed products L . T 934 819
e - - - 1337 1186
ln:::;llor;";aru;;(;n;ﬁowancc B '{fif)) - (118)
S T 5 1215 § 1,068 |

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

As a result of fresh-start reporting, PP&E that were purchased prior te January 1, 2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future
use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropnate PP&E purchased since that time are recorded at cost Depreciation expense for the years ended
December3|1, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $285 million, $247 million and $236 million, respectively

PP&E consist of the following

December 31 December 31
Useful Life 2614 2013
(Mulhions of Dollars)
Land L i — 5 215 % 219
Buildingsand buidmg mmprovements . W0-3yas 77 S0 _49s]
l\hdg_c"_-hmeﬁryr and equipment e o 3-12years 7 -2j8§é - 2,662
o o ~ o 3,558 3376 |
Accumulated deprecsation _ L (1,398) {1,338)
. S 2160 § 2,038 |
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The Company leases PPXE used in 1ts operations Future muimimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with imtial or remainimg terms of more

than one year are as follows

Millions of Dollars

; 2015 s 41

2016 40
oo 2017 3]

2018 20
' m 2019 17}
Thereafter 44
P 5 193]

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $§70 mullion, $63 mullion and $55 million,
respechively, exclusive of propenty taxes, msurance and other occupancy costs generally payable by the Company

11 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31,2014 and 2013, goodwall and other indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of the following

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Gross Net Gross Net
Carrving Accumulated Carrymng Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Impairment Amount Amount Impairment Amount
(Mulhons of Dollars)
G_g(_)d_\.\illl ) 1391 S (690) §$ 701 $ 1362 3 {570) 3§ 792__[
Trademarks and brand names 425 (198) 227 423 (198) 225
1 $ 1,816 § {BR8) § 928 $ 1785 % (768) § 1,017 ]
At December 31,2014 and 2013, definite-lived intangible assets consist of the following
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Grass Net Grass Net
Carrving Accumulated Carrving Carrving Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amaortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
) (Mullisns of Dollars)
‘Developed technology s 116 S (73)_s 43 3 116 s 63 s 53]
Customer relationships 598 (287) 311 555 (252) 303
[ $ 714 S (360} S 354§ 671 S (315) § 356 |

The Company’s net goodwill balances by reporting segment as of December 31,2014 and 2013 are as follows

December 31 December 31

2014 2013
(Millions of Dullars)
Powertrain L3 490 5 487
Motopats _ - - m_ 21 305 ]
5 701 % 792
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The Company’s net trademarks and brand names balances by reporting segment as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(Mihoas of Dollars)
Motopars T s s
Powertrain e 4 3
o e 3 227 8 225 I

The following 1s a roltforward of the Company's goodwill and other intangible assets (net) for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013

Total
Goodwill
and
Trademarks Indefinite- Definite-
and Lived Lived
Goodwill Brand Nzmes Intangibles Intangibles
{Mllions of Dollars)
BaloncoatBalanceatJanuay v2003 S 787 5 232 S ipio 5 408 ]
Acquisition and purchase accounting ad_]u§tments . i 8 — 8 ) 3)
. Dwposions . — L. Ay @
___ Amortization expense o o — — —_ 47
Balanceat December3t 2003 72 s Lo1T 356 ]
[rrlpalrments . L (120) i —_ (120) -
[___ Acquisttion and purshase accounting adjustments I SN M N
Disposiions _ i - ) — . — —_ (1
______Amortization expense — — o (49)_!
Forergn currency _ 3) (1) 4 4)
Balance at December 31, 2014 e o 3 701§ 227  § 928 8§ 354 |
Goodwll

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, goodwill, and any other intangible asset having an indefinite useful life, must
be reviewed for impaiment annually, or more frequently 1f events and circumstances anse that suggest the asset may be imparred The Company conducts 1ts
review for goodwill impairments on October | of each year Goodwill impaimment testing 1s performed au the reporting unit level The fair value of each
reporting unit 1s determined and compared to the camying value If the carrying value exceeds the faic value, then possible goodwill impairment may exast
and further evaluation 15 requared  Indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impaimment by companng the fair value to the carrying value If the
canying value exceeds the fair value, the assct 1s adjusted to fair value

As part of its annuoal goodwill impairment test, the Company noted impairment indicators existed in one reporting unit within the Motorparts segment
Among other factors, this reporting umit expenenced lower than expected profits and cash flows resulung from decreases in volumes and pncing pressure
from customers towards the end of 2014 As a result of these impairment indicators, the Company concluded that there was also a potential impairment of its
long-hved assets and definite-hved mtangible assets  These impairment tests were performed before the goodwill impairment test, and an impaiment loss
related to long-lived assets of $7 millien was recognized prior to goodwll being tested for impairment  The Company then tested goodwill for impairment
and determuned the camrying value ot one reporting umit, within the Motorparts segment, exceeded 1ts fair value Accordingly, as part of a second step of the
goodwill impairment test, the Company made a preliminary conclusion that the carrying amount of the reporting umits’ goodwill exceeded the tmplied fair
valug of that goodwill and an 1mpaiment loss of $120 milhion was recogmized for the year ended December 31, 2014 Due to the complexity of the second
step of the goodwill impaiment test, the Company expects to finalize its assessment duning the first quarter of 2015 Any resulting difference 1n the amount
of the impaimment will be adjusted at that time
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Effective September 1, 2012, the Company re-segmented 1ts business Given the business realignments that occumed due to this re-segmentation and the fact
that some reporting units containing geodwill under the former segmentation were being divided within the new Company structure thus requinng the
Company to determine the relative fair value of these divided reporting units 1n order to allocate goodwill, the Company deemed it prudent to perform an
intenm goodwill impairment test 1n accordance with FASB ASC 350 As a result of this intenm testing, one divided reporting unit that recesved a relative fair
value goodwill allocation of $3 mullion had a carrying value in excess of fair value, thus requinng the Company to recognize a full impairment charge of $3
mullion 1n the third quarter of 2012

[n the seccond quarter of 2012, the Company determuned that goodwill impairment ndicators existed m the Company’s fiiction reporting unit, including
lower than expected profits and cash flows due to continued lower aftermarket volumes, further product muix shifts and pressure on margins In response to
these trends, the Company’s board of directors approved a restructuning plan to reduce or ehminate capacity at several high cost facilities and transfer
production to lower cost locatiens The friction reporting unit goodwill was tested for impaiment 1n accordance with the FASB ASC 350 dunng the second
quarter ot 2012 The fair value of fiiction reporting unit did not suppon the recorded goodwill and accordingly the Company recognized a full impairment
charge of $91 mllion in the second quarter of 2012

Grven the complexity of the calculation, the Company had not finalized “Step 2 of its annual goodwill impairment assessment for the year ended December
31, 2011 pnor to filing its annual report on Form 10-K. The goodwill impairment charge recognized dunng the founth quarter of 2011 was $259 million
Dunng the second quarter ot 2012, the Company completed this assessment, and recorded an additienal $1 million goodwill impairment charge

The Company has nine reporting umts that have goodwill The following table categonzes the Company’s goodwill by reporting unit as of October 1, 2014
according to the level of excess between the reporting unst’s fair value and carrying value giving effect to the 2014 impaiment charges

Fair Value
Exceeds
Carrying Value Goodwill
{Milions of Dollars)
ReportmgUnns1-4  »15% S 131]
Reporting Umits 5 -9 >30% 570

| $ 701 |

In order to align with 1ts regional focus, as ef December 31, 2014, the Motorparts segment moved from a product.centered reporting structure to a regional
reporting structure The analysis above, reflects the regional reporting units of the Motomarts segment

In May 2014, the Company completed the purchase ofthe Affinia chassis business This business serves leading U S aftermarket customers with pnvate label
chassis product lines and will allow the Company to broaden 1ts product offering, provide operational synergies and better service customers globally The
purchase price was $14% mullion, net of acquired cash The Company allocated the purchase price 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations The Company utihized a thard party to assist in the fair value determination of certain components of the purchase price allocation, namely
fixed assets and intangible assets The Company recorded $51 mullion of defintte-lived intangible assets (customer relationships) and $27 mulhon of
indefinite-lived intangible assets (pnmanly goodwill) associated with this acquisihon The goodwill established as part of the Affima chassis business
acquisition was included in the Company's respective reporting unit as part of the annual impairment test discussed above and subsequently included 1n the
estimated 1mpairment charge recorded 1n the fourth quarterof 2014

Also dunng 2014, the Company recorded $6 mullion of goedwill, $2 mullion of brand names and $1 milhon of customer relationship 1n connection with 1ts
January 2014 acquisition ot the DZV beanngs business The acquisition of the DZV bearings business did not have a matenat impact on the Company's
financial statements or hiquidity

Other Intangible Assets

The Company performs 115 annual trademarks and brand names impairment analysis as of October 1, or more frequently if impairment ndicators exist, in
accerdance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other This impairment analysis compares the far
values of these assets to the related camryng values, and impairment charges are recorded forany excess of carrying values over fair values The fair values are
based upon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropnate for these
intangible assets

All of the Company's trademarks and brand names passed the October 1, 2014 and 2013 ympairment analysis
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

In connection with the September 1, 2012 goodwill impairment test discussed above, the Company also performed its trademarks and brand names
impairment analysis This impairment analysis compares the fair values of these assets 10 the related camying values, and wmpairment charges are recorded for
any excess of carrying values over fair values These fair values are based upon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings
discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropnate for these intangibie assets Pnmanly all of the Company's trademarks and brand names are
associated with 1ts aftermarket sales and are further broken down by product line Based upon this annual analysis, the Company recognized a $33 million
impairment charge n the therd quarter 0f 2012 Prior to the September 1, 2012 analysis, the Company noted impairment indicators and performed an interim
trademarks and brand names impairment analysts Based upon this analysis, the Company recognized a $13 mullion impairment charge 1n the sccond quarter
af2012

The Company recorded amortization expense of $49 miihon, $47 million and $49 mullion associated with definute-lived intangible assets duting the years
ended December31, 2014, 2013 and 2¢12, respecturvely The Company utilizes the straight line method of amortization, recognized over the estimated useful
lives of the assets The Company’s developed technology intangible assets have usetul lives of between 10 and 15 years The Company’s customer
relationships intangible assets have useful hives of between 5 and 24 years

The Company’s estimated future amortization expense for its defimte-hved intangible assets 15 as follows

» PR,
i

{ e Miltions of Dollnrsi

2015 § S0
: 016 49|
2017 49
f
X 2018 a0}
2019 4o
Thereafter 1 262
3 354

12 INVESTMENT IN NON-CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

The Company maintains imvestments 1n scveral nonconsohdated affiliates, which are located in China, France, Germany, Korea, Turkey, India and the
United States With the exception of the deconsolidated business discussed below, the Company generally equates control to ownership percentage whereby
investments that are more than 50% owned are consohdated

As part of the regulatory approval related to the acquisition of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business, the Company commutted
to divest, or procure the divestiture of the commercial vehicle brake pads business relating to the ongnal equipment/onginal equipment services
(“OEM/OES™) market 1n the European Economic Area (“EEA™), based at the manufacturing plant 1n Manenheide, Germany and Light vehicle brake pads
business relating to the OEM/OES market 1n the EEA, based at the manufactunng plant in Noyon, France (collectively, the “Divestment Business”™)
Furthermore, to the extent possible, the Company commutted to keep the Divestment Business separate from the business(es) 1t 1s retaining, and unless
explicitly permtted commutted to ensure (1) management and staff have no mmvolvement in the Divestment Business, (1) certain key personnel of the
Divestment Business have no involvement in any business retained by the Company and do not report to any individual outside the Dhvestment Business As
such, the Company deconsohdated 1ts subsidianes or grovp of assets which are subject to regulatory commuiments and recorded an investment in
unconsolidated subsidiary, which will be accounted for as an equity method investment until disposition As the bidding process progressed and exclusive
negotiations began for the sale of the Divestment Business, 1t became evident that an impaiment existed for the Divestment Business as of December 31,
2014 The Divestment Business was wntten down to 1ts fair value resulting 1n an impaiment charge of $5 milhion, which was recorded within “Adjustment of
assets to fair value™ for the year ended December 31,2014

The Company does not hold a controlling interest 1n an entity based on exposure to economic risks and potential rewards (vanable interests) for which 1t 1s

the pnimary beneficiary Further, the Company’s affiliations are businesses established and maintained 1n connection with ils operating strategy and are not
speclal purpose entities
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The fotlowing represents the Company's aggregate nvestments and direct ownership in these affiliates

December 31
2014 2013
{Millions of Dollars)
Investments 1n non-consolidated affiliates o 3 269 % 253 }
Drrect ownership per::«;ﬁ;;g“cm; - e T momrmmmm e 2% to 100% 2% t0m50;/:-}

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 323, Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures the Company discloses summanzed financial information of its
non-consolidated affiliates

The following table represents amounts reflected in the Company’s financial statements related to non-consolidated affiliates

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Multions of Dollars)
Equity earnings of non-consolidated affilates £ 48§ 34 % 34 3
Cash dividends received from non-consolidated affiliates 25 33 31

The following tables present summanzed aggregated financial intormation of the Company’s non-consolidated affiliates

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
gatem;;fg of Operations - E
Sales $ 906 § 918 § 682
Grossprofit 192 185 151 ]
Income from continuing operations 128 120 91
Net mcome 112 105 ~ 79
December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(Millions of Dollars)

Balance Sheets
Current assets e T w3 ]
Noncurrent assets 443 398
Curentligbites T o C 181 T80 |
Noncurrent llabmes 47 38

The Company holds a 50% non-controlling interest 1 a jomt venture located in Turkey (“Turkey JV™) The Turkey JV was established in 1995 for the
purpose of manufactunng and marketing autometive parts, including pistons, piston nngs, piston pins, and cylinder liners to ongmal equipment and
aftermarket customers The Company purchases/sells inventory from/to the Turkey JV Purchases from the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31,2014,
2013 and 2012 were $180 mtllion, $152 nullion and $150 nullion, respectively Sales to the Turkey IV for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 were $45 million, $44 milion and $45 mullion, respectively The Company had net accounts payable balances with the Turkey JV of $5 million and $6
million as of December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively
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13 ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following

December 31

244 2013
{Millions of Dollars)

Acened compeosation 3 177 s 169]
Accrued rebates 149 125
Restmuceunng lbaties T T s T T
Non-tncome tax payable 52 41
Atsged defeetveproduets . T T W T30
Accrued professtonal services 28 21
coraed produst retums - - — 24 2]
Accrued 1ncome taxes 24 L7
Aeersed warmnty_ s

3 546 % 454

14 DEBT

On Apnl 15,2014, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation entered into a new tranche B tenn loan facility (the “New Tranche B Facility™) and a new tranche C
term loan facility (the “New Tranche C Facility,” and together with the New Tranche B Facility, the “New Term Facilities™), which were ammanged by
Citigroup Global Markets Inc and Credit Swisse Secunties (USA) LLC (the "Term Armangers"), and assumed all of the obligations of Federal-Mogul
Cormporation with respect to the Replacement Revolving Facility under the Credit Agreement (both defined below) The New Term Facilities were entered
nto and the Replacement Revelving Facility was assumed, by Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation pursuant to an amendment dated as of Apnl 15 2014 to
the previously existing Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 27, 2007 among Federal-Mogul Corporation, the lenders party thereto,
the Term Arrangers, Citibank, N A, as Revolving Admunisiranve Agent, Ciibank, N A, as Tranche B Tenn Administrative Agent, Credit Suisse AG as

Tranche C Term Admumistrative Agent, Ciugroup Global Markets Inc, Credit Swisse Secunities (USA) LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, N A, as Joint Lead
Amangers and Joint Bookrunners with respect to the Revolving Facility and Wells Fargo Bank, N A, as sole Documentation Agent with respect to the
Revolving Facility (as amended, the "Credit Agreement™}

Immediately following the closing ot the New Term Facilities, Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation contributed all of the net proceeds from the New
Facilities to Federal-Mogul Corporation, and Federal-Mogul Corporation repaid 1ts existing outstanding indebtedness as a borrower under the tranche B and
tranche C term loan facilities

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic No 408, Extinguishments of Liabilities the Company recogmzed a $24 milhien non-<ash loss on the extinguishment of
debt attnbutable to the wnte-off of the unamortized fair value adjustment and unamortized debt 1ssuance costs which 1s recorded in the line item * Loss on
Debt Extinguishment” in the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statemnents ot Operations

The New Term Facilities, among other things, (1) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche B Facility of $700 million with a matunty date
of Apni 15, 2018, (1) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche C Facility of $1 9 bilhion with a matunty date of Apnl 15 2021, (1)
increases the interest rates apphicable to the New Facihities as descnbed below, (1v) provides that for all outstanding letters of credit there 15 a corresponding
decrease 1n borrowings available under the Replacement Revolving Facility, (v) provides that in the event that as of a particular determunation date more
than $700 million aggregate principal amount of existing term loans and certain related refinancing indebtedness will become due within 91 days of such
determination date, the Replacement Revolving Facility will mature on such determunation date, (vi) provides for additional incremental indebtedness,
secured on a part passu basis, of an unlinuted amount of additional indebtedness 1f the Company meets a financial covenant incurrence test, and (vu) amends
certain other restrictive covenants Pursuant to the New Term Facilities, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation assumed all of the obligations of Federal-
Mogul Corporation with respect to the Replacement Revolving Facility under the Credit Agreement
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Advances under the New Tranche B Facility gencrally bear interest at a variable rate per annum equal to {1) the Altemate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 00% or
{u) the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 00%, subject, in each case, to a fioor of 1 G60% Advances under the New Tranche C Facihty generally bear
interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 75% or (u} the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 75%,
subject, in each case, to a minimum rate of | 00% plus the applicable margin

Due to the refinancing of the Company's term loans, the backstop commitment letter provided to the Company on December 6, 2013 from High Ruiver
Limuted Partnership, an affiliate ot Mr Carl C Icahn and the Company’s largest stockholder, was terminated

On December 6, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment (the * Replacement Revolving Facility™) of its Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of December 27, 2007 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement™), among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc , as Admimistrative
Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Comoration and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents, to amend 1ts existing revolving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credit facility {the “Replacement Revolving Facility™) The
Replacement Revelving Facility, among other things, (1) ncreased the aggregate commuitments available under the Replacement Revolving Facility from
$540 mllion to $550 mullion, (11) extended the matunty date of the Replacement Revelving Facility 10 December 6, 2018, subject to certain limited
exceptions descnbed below, and (1u) amended the Company’s borrowing base to provide the Company with addinonal hquidity

Advances under the Replacement Revolving Facility generally bear interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Aliernate Base Rate (as detined 1n the
Credit Agreement) plus an adjustable margin of 0 50% to 1 00% based on the average monthly availability under the Replacement Revolving Facility or
{11) Adjusted LIBOR Rate {as defined 1n the Credit Agreement) plus a margin of 1 50% te 2 00% based on the average monthly availability under the
Replacement Revolving Facility An unused commtment fee 0£0 375% also 1s payable under the terms of the Replacement Rev olving Factlity

In connection with the New Term Facilhities, the Company incurred onginal issue discount of 39 million and debt 1ssuance costs of $6 nullion n connection
with the New Tranche C Facility and onginal 1ssue discount ot $2 million and debt 1ssuance costs of 36 muillion 1n connection with the New Tranche B
Facility The discount and debt i1ssuance costs arc being amortized to intercst cxpense over the terms of the loans of 84 months and 48 months, respectively
As noted above the unamortized fair value adjusiment established when applying the provisions of fresh-stant reporting to the Company's Credit agreement
was wntten off upon the closing of the New Term Facilities

[nterest expense associated wath the amortization of the onginal 1ssue discount, debt 1ssuance costs and fair value adjustment recognized 1n the Company's
consclidated statements of operations, consists of the following

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Millions of Dellars}
Amortization of farr value adjustment 3 7 $ 22 8 23
Amortization of debt 1ssuance fees 3 - —
"Amortization of oniginal 1ssue discount | — ——-}
$ i 8 22§ 23
Debt consists of the following December 31
2014 2013
{Millions of Dollars)
y:'fg_r'_r_rntloar_ls under credit agreement L . T T i }
Tranche B term loan 3 698 3% 1,597
[ TancheCremloan o 1,895 _930]
Debt discount {10) (30)
Other debv, primily o sraens® — 521
2,690 2,599
Tess shorierm debt, ineiading cument maluntics oF long-iemm debi 137) (1699)]
Total long-tennizipcbt T 5 2563 8 905
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* The Company assumed $10 million of preexisting debt associated wath its January 2014 acquisitton of the DZV beanngs business

The obligations of the Company under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by substantally all of the domestic subsidianes and certain foreign subsidianes
of the Company, and are secured by substantially all personal property and certain real property of the Company and such guarantors, subject to certain
limitations The liens granted to secure these obligations and certain cash management and hedging obhigations have first pnonty

The Credit Agreement contamins certain affirmative and negative covenants and events of default, including, subject to certain exceptions, restnctions on
incurnng additional indebtedness, mandatory prepayment provisions associated with specified asset sales and dispositions, and limitations on 1)
investments, 1) certain acquisitions, mergers or consohidations, 1) sate and leaseback transactions, 1v) certain transactions with affiliates, and v) dividends
and other payments in respect of capital stock The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants as ot December 31,2014 and 2013 Per the terms of
the Credit Agreement, $50 mullion of the Tranche C proceeds were deposited 1n a Term Letter of Credit Account as of December 31,2013

The Replacement Revolving Facility has an available borrowing base of $516 million and $550 nullion as of December 31 2014 and 2013, respectively
The Company had $34 mullion and $39 muillion of letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively pertaining to the term loan
credit facility To the extent letters of credit associated with the Replacement Revolving Factlity are 1ssued, there 15 a comesponding decrease in borrowings
avatlable under this facihity

Estimated fair values ofthe Company’s term loans under the Credit Agreement were

Estimated
Fair Farwr Value in Excess
Value (Deficit) of Carrying Valuation
(Level 1) Value Technique
{Millions of Dollars)
December31,2014 |
Termm Loans $ 2571 8% (12) A
g i e e
]
[ PSS i — - S —_—
December?{l,ZOIS o ~
Term Loans B - 5 2520 § 15 A ]

Fair market values are developed by the use of estimates obtained from brokers and other appropnate valuation technigues based on information available as
of December 31,2014 and 2013 The fair value estimates do not necessanly reflect the values the Company could realize 1n the cument markets Refer to Note
8, Farr Value Measurements, for defininons of input levels and valuation techmques

The Company has the following contractual debt obligations outstanding at December 31,2014

" Mullions of Dollars |

o . w15 s 127] .
2016 18
o _ 200729
2018 696
e 009 19]
Thereafter 1,801
) ~ Total s 2700}

The werghted average cash interest rates for debt were approximately 4 7% and 2 3% as of December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively Interest paid on debt 1n
2014,2013 and 2012 was $111 mallion, $77 nullion and 3106 million, respectively
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15 PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans (“Pension Benefits") and postretirement health care and hfe insurance benefits (“Other
Postemploymenm Benefits” or “OPEB™) for certain employees and retirees around the world Using appropnate actwanal methods and assumptions, the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans and postemployment benefits other than pensions are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715,

Compensation — Retwvement Benefits

The measurement date for all defined benefit plans is December 31 The following provides a reconcibiation of the plans benelfit obligations, plan assets,

funded status and recogmition 1n the consolidated balance sheets

Pension Benefi

14

Other Postemploy ment

Umited States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
{Miltions of Dollars)

LChange in benefit obligatton T o o __]
" Benefit obligation, begimning of year $ 1184 $ 1298 $ 450 S 474 S 335 § 395
;__gc;:ce cost 3 g 12 12 — _—:—-A]

Interest cost 52 47 16 14 5 11
L___EE‘EEP}E contnbutions — — J— — — “_D
Benefits paid (96) (64) (28) (28) (26) {28)
:@i@f’ﬂ@’i‘fﬁ received —— — — — 1 3 ]
Plan amendments — — — — 8 -
i P—J&allmcnts o e — (1) (1} — (m
Scttiements 3) - — — — —
[ Actuanal losses (gans) and changes m actuanal assumptions 151 (o0 112 25) 36 @]
Net transfers {out) in — — 73 (an — (1)
‘ Currency trapslation = — 59 5 (y @]
Benefit obligation, end of year § 1291 § 1,184 § 575 8§ 450 S 368 S 335
L. |
Change 1n plan assets
r——. " Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 3 909 % 778§ 55 § 55 § — 3 —J
Actual retumn on plan assets 43 138 3 2 — —
' Emph[mgnyu(-:meﬂc;mmbmmns . — — — — — I—]
Company contnbutions 56 60 30 24 25 24
i Benefits paid (96) {64) (28) (28) (26) (28)]
Expenses —_ (3) — — — —_
g Medicare subsidies received —— — — — 1 3 J
Curtency translation — — (6} 2 — —
'Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ %12 8 905 § 54 % 55 % — 3 — ]
_ Funded status of the plan $ (79 $ @275 5 (521) § (395 $  (368) $  (335)]
Lf\jn@ms?r'e;é;z;eq i the consolidated balance sheets ﬂ::_ _ J
" Current tiabilities - s G S  @ys  an s a3 s @6 s 28
. Noncurment habilities. N G76) @iy 0e (8 @4 @on)
Net amount recognized $ (379) 3 275y § {321y 8 (395) % 368) § {335)
joTT T T T T T T T T T T _J
“Amounts rccogm—zc:i 1n accumulated other c“gn;p}chctlg;vc loss. T - T
inclusive of tax impacts e . e e
[ Netocwamalloss 8 49§ 242§ 151 8 8L 5 95 5 6]
“Prior service cost {credit) — — 2 3 {1%) 28)
. Tol o 5 409 5 242 5 153 S 84 5 81 3 35 1
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation as of December 3 |

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
United States Plans Non-US Plans Benefits
2014 2013 014 2013 2014 2013
Discountrate T . 3%%  45S%  1T7% _ _ 34% 384K 445%]
Rate of compensation increase — — 316% 317% e —

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net penodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
Umted States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2014 2013 2014 213 2014 2013
Discount rate 4.55% 3 70% 349% 299% 445%  360%]
Expected retum on plan assets 695% 745% 4 18% 4 62% — —
Rateofcompensation morease " T U TRy 33y,

The Company evaluates 11s discount rate assumption annually as of December 31 for each of its rettrement-related benefit plans based upon the yield of high
quality, fixed-income debt instruments, the matunties of which correspond to expected benefit payment dates

The Company’s expected return on assets s established annually through analysis of anticipated future long-tenm mvestment performance for the plan based
upon the asset allocation strategy While the study gives appropriate consideration to recent fund performance and histoncal retums, the assumption 1s
prmanly a long-term prospective rate

The US investiment strategy nutigates nsk by wcorporating diversification across appropriate asset classes to meet the plan’s objectives It 1s intended to
reduce nsk, provide long-term financial stability for the plan and maintain funded levels that meet long-term plan obhigations while preserving sufficient
hiquidity for near-term benefit payments Risk assumed 1s considered appropriate tor the return anticipated and consistent wath the diversification of plan
assets The Company’s investment strategy includes a target asset allocation of 50% equity investments, 25% fixed income investments and 25% 1n other
investment types including hedge funds Approximately 76% ofthe US plan assets were invested in actively managed investment funds

The majonty of the assets of the non-U S plans are invested through insurance contracts The insurance contracts guarantee a munimum rate of return The
Company has no input into the investment strategy of the assets underlying the contracts, but they are typically heavily invested 1n active bond markets and
are highly regulated by local law The target asset allocation for the non-U S pension plans 1s 80% insurance contracts, 15% debt investments and 5% equity
investments

Refer to Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements,” for more detail sumounding the fair value of each major category of plan assets, including the inputs and
valuation techniques used to develop the fair value measurements of the plans' assets, at December 31,2014 and 2013

Information for defined benefit plans with projected benefit obligations 1n excess of plan assets

Other
Pension Benefits Postemployment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2014 2013 2014 013 2014 2013
{Millions of Dollars)
Projected benefit obligation $ 1291 $§ 1,084 § 574 5 448 § 368§ 335]
Fair value of plan assets 12 909 53 52 -z
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Information for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

Pension Benefits

Umited States Plans Noo-US Plans
2014 2013 2014 2013
{Milhions of Dallars)
Projecied benefit obligation 51291 5 Li84 s 555§ 44d]
Accumulated benefit obligation 1,291 1,184 514 409
Fair value of plan assets ) 912 909 42 49 E

The accumulated benefit obligation forall pension plans s $1,809 miilion and $1,598 million as of December 31,2014 and 2013 respectively

Components of net penodic benefit cost {credit) for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits Other Postemplovment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 a4 2013 2012
(Milhions of Dollars)

'Service cost B o $ 3 3 4 s 21 8 12 3 12§ 9 s s Ty wﬁbrj
Interest cost 52 47 53 16 14 16 i5 i 14
e T — N N S N N
Amortization of actuanal losses 4 14 35 5 8 — 3 6 2
‘Amortization of prior service credit — — — — — 1 ) @ (s}
Settlement loss (gain) 3) -— (1) 1 1 —_ —_ —_ _—
Cottailmentgaw T T gy T T LT a9y 6]

Net penodic cost (credit) $ 6) $ 7 5 55 % 32 % 32 %8 24 5% 13§ (1) § @8

Other Postemplovment Benefits - US Welfare Benefit Plan

In May 2013, the Company ceased operations at one of 1ts US manufactunng locations As this location participated 1n the Company'’s US Welfare Benefit
Plan, the Company had this plan re-measured due to 1ts curtailment implications The resulting reduction 1n the average remaining future service period to
the full eligibality date of the remaining active plan participants in the Company’s U S Weltare Benefit Plan triggered the recognition of'a $19 million OPEB
curtallment gain, which was recognized mn the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013

In July 2012, as a result of contract negotiations witly a union at one of the Company’s US manufactunng locations, the benefits under the US Welfare
Benefit Plan were eliminated tor the location’s active participants Since this plan change reduced benefits attnibutable to employee service already tendered,
1t was treated as a negative plan amendment, which created a $13 milhon prior service credit 1n accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI") The
corresponding reduction 1n the average remaining future service pertod to the full eligibility date also tnggered the recognition of a$51 million OPEB
curtailment gain which was recognized 1n the consolidated statements of operations dunng the third quarter of 2012

Amounts in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss™ expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year

Pension Benefits Other
Postemployment
Umited States Non-U § Plans Benefits
{Millions of Dollars)
Amortization of actuamal losses s 10°s azs s |
Amortization of prior service credit — — (&)
Total 3 10§ 12 3 1
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The assumed health care and drug cost trend rates used to measure next year's postemployment healthcare benefits are as follows

Other
Postemployment
Benefits
2014 2013

Health care cost trend rate_____ - 725% 6 88%)
(jﬂ—llmate h;;lth care cost trend—r—a—t; T o 5 Owd%w 5 06%
iYear ultumate h health th care cost trend mte reached = » 2022 2018 E
Dugcosttrendate - 725%  781%
Ultimate drug cost trend rate o 5 00% 550
Year ultimate dug cost trend rate reached o _ 2022 200 émi

The assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant 1mpact on the amounts reported for Other Postemployment Benefits plans The following table
illustrates the sensitivity to a change tn the assumed health care cost trend rate

Total Service and

Interest Cost APBO
(Millions of Dollars)
100 basts pemt (“bp") wncrease i health care costtrendate ™ § 77 s 32 }
100 bp decrease 1n health care cost trend rate n 28)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change 1n certain assumptions for projected benefit oblhigations (“PBO”), associated expense and other
comprehensive loss (*OCL”) The changes m these assumptions have no impact on the Company’s funding requirements

P Benefit
chuion Tenents Other Postemployment

United Seates Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits

Change Change Change Change

m 2015 Change o m 2015 Change mn Change Change

pension m accumulated pension m accumulated n 2015 in

expense PBO OCL expense PBO OCL expense PRBO

(Ml!lmm of dollars)

25bp decrease n discountrate () B 36 % (36) % 1 3 20 S (20) 5 — § 9 §
25 bp increase i discount rate —_— 34) 34 Q)] (20) 20 — €3]
25 bp decrease 1n return on assets 1

25 bp increase 1n retum on assets

B - I = =S =R
rate (2) — — — — — — —

Projected benefit payments from the plans arc estimated as follows

Pension Benefits Other
Postemployment
United States Non-U 5 Plans Benefits
i (vhlliops of Dollars)
L wis s s 268 0 27]
2016 84 25 26
R[S N - N
2018 81 26 26
O - S £ A 1
Years 2020 - 2022 392 139 121

The Company expects to contnbute approximately $108 million to 1ts pension ptansin 2015
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Defined Contribution Penston Plans

The Company also maintains certain defined contnbution pension plans for eligible employees Effective January 1, 2013, the Company amended 1ts U S
defined contnbunon plan to allow for an enhanced company match and company provided age-based contributions for eligible U § salaned and non-union
hourly employces The total cxpenses attnbutable to the Company’s defined contnbution savings plan were $45 mliion, $42 miliion and $23 million for the
years ended December 31, 2014,2013 and 2012 respectively

The amounts contnbuted to defined contribution pension plans include contnbutions to multi-employer plans in France, Italy and the United States of $1

million dunng each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 None of the muluemployer plans 1n which the Company participates are
individually significant

Other Benefits

The Company accounts for benefits to former or nactive employees paid after employment but before retirement pursuant to FASB ASC Topic 712,
Compensation — Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits The hiabilines for such US and European postemployment benefits were $25 millhion and $29
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

16 INCOME TAXES

Under the hiability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are deterrined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilittes and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be 1n eftect when the differences are expected to reverse

The components ot (loss) income trom continuing operations betore income taxes consist of the tollowing

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Milions of Dollars)
:bomesnc $ (64) § 28 8 (IOJ_}J
[ntemational (41) 129 (L7
i Totl $ (105) § 157 § (120)]
Significant components of the (expense) benefit tor income taxes are as tollows
Year Ended
December 31
2014 2013 2012
{Millons of Dollars)
‘Current T |
Federal, state and local $ @ s 3) s @
! [nternational {32) (55) @7
Total cutrent {36) (58) (49)
Deferred _—i
Federal, state and local —_— 3) 32
rL__ Intemational T - _w;:__ _j__b_‘ (2-0—)—-_ 5 461
o ’ltotwrnl deterred L (20) 2 78
o - _ s 56) S (56) § 29 |
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The reconciliation of iIncome taxes computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate to income tax (expense) benefit s

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013

2012

{Millions of Dallars)

Incomc 1ax (expcm,c) beneﬁl at Unttcd States statutory rmate s 37 Mﬁﬁ B _ (55) b :::“___:—

Tax effect from

L Guodwall lmpamnerlt U L (42) - . E}E]
U S income in¢lusions from forcign substdtancs (7 (5) 27
:;mxlw*lon-consolldntéci fgna;gr:a.ﬁillales . ) __M M#_A : ) 15 T T T AIB
Tax holidays, incentives and minimum tax 2 14 9
___Fomignmtevananceaad enacted ratechange 24 L 13
State income laxes 4) (3) (1)
{A Uncertain tax posntno;;;r;a;as—g;sgsgt_egiguw - - | T { L.) 33’5_}
Valuatlon al]owances (105) (15) 327
"~ Gher — e T T T g
Income tax (expense) benefit ) (56) $ 56) § 29

The following table summanzes the Company’s total (provisien) benefit for income taxes by component

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dnlllrs)
—l;l_gome tax (expense) benefit % (56) § _ (56) § _2_9__]
Allocated 10 equuty
o Postcmploymeniheneﬁts e o 108 (83) D)
___ Denvauves — @ 18
[ __ Foreign cun'encﬁrz;:_lgl;ﬁon ] B . an Y —“_(_2)
Valuation allowances (34) 77 28
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Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and habilities are as follows

December 31
014 2013
(Mllions of Dollars)

;5cfemed tax assets ) B }
Net operating loss cammytorwards 5 865 3 783

5_ Pos{gmphlgyment benefits, lnEludmgﬁpcnsmns T 368 2m
Reorganization costs 1 27

. mveatory 63 48 |
Other temporary differences 78 98

: Tax credits T 129 140 |
Total deferred tax assets 1,544 1387

! Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets o (1,314) . {1,15 lﬂ
Net deferred tax assets 230 236

o 1

Deferred tax liabilities

— —— e ——

| Investment 1n U S subsidianes (307) (307)
Intangible assets (156) {166)
____ Fixedassets - o [ELy (19)]
Total deferred tax habilities (494) (492)
$ (264) § {256)
Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are recorded 1n the consclidated balance sheets as follows
December 31
2014 2013

{Muhons of Dollars)

'Assets L ]
Prepaid expen;cs and other current assets $ 44 3 40
?:___ Other noncurrent assets 81 STJ
Liabilities
[ hj.‘ggg-tet;nf E:mén of deferred income taxes - ~ (389) 383)]
$ (264) $ (256)

The Company continues to maintamn a valuation allowance related to its net deferred tax assets in multiple junsdictions As of December 31, 2014, the
Company had valuation allowances of $999 million related to tax loss and credit carryforwards The cumrent and tuture provision for income laxes may be
significantly impacted by changes to valuation allowances in certain countnes These allowances will be maintained until 1t 15 more hkely than not that the
deferred tax assets will be realized The future provision for income taxes will include no tax benefit with respect to losses incurred and no tax expense with
respect to income generaled in these countries untl the respective valuation allowance 15 eliminated Dunng the curmrent year the Company recorded 39
mtllion of valuanion allowances on deferred tax assets that the Company believes are not more hkely than not to be realized 1n the foreseeable future

AtDecember 31, 2014, the Company had a deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ot 31,024 nullion for tax loss camyforwards and tax credits,

imcluding 3629 million in the United States with expiration dates from 2015 through 2034, 5181 milhion 1n the United Kingdom with no expiration date,
and $214 milhon in other junsdictions with vanous expiration dates
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The Company has also concluded that there 1s a more than remote possibility that existing valuation allowances of up to $148 mallion as of December 31,
2014 could be released within the next 12 months Ifreleases of such valuation allowances occur, they may have a significant impact on results of operations
in the quarter 11 which 1t 1s deemed appropnate to release the reserve Income taxes paid, net of income tax refunds received, were $42 mullion, $38 million
and $56 milhon tor the ycars ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

The Company <id not record taxes on us undistnbuted eamings of $902 milhion at December 31, 2014 since these eamings are considered by the Company
to be permanently reinvested Ifat some future date these eamings cease to be permanently reinvested, the Company may be subject to United States tncome
taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Determining the unrecogmzed defermred tax liability on the potential distnbution of these camings 1s
not practicable as such liability 1fany, 1s dependent on circumstances exisiing when remiltance occurs

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $332 million of cash and cash equivalents, of which $138 mullion was held by foreign subsidiznes In
accordance with FASB ASC 740-30-25-17 through 19, the Company asserts that these funds are indefinitely reinvested due to operational and investing
needs of the foreign locations Furthermore, the Company will accrue any applicable 1axes in the period when the Company no longer intends to indefinitely
reinvest these funds The Company would expect that the impact on cash taxes would be immatenal due to the availability of net operation loss
camryforwards and related valuation allowances, eamings considered previously taxed, and applicable tax treaties

At December 31,2014,2013 and 2012, the Company had total unrecogmzed tax benefits af $50 mllion, $78 million and $69 million, respectively Of these
totals, $44 mullion, 347 mllion and $39 milhien, respectively, represent the amounts of unrecogmzed tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the
effective income tax rates The total unrecognized tax benefits differ from the amounts which would affect the effective 1ax rates primanly due to the impact
of valuatien allowances

A summary of the changes tn the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2014,2013 and 2012 are shown below

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
Change 1n unrecognized tax benefits ' e ]
Balance at January | $ 7% % 69 % 375
;_:m: o :Aggll@:;aj baseéé}g}}?gguns related to the cument year - ) - T 7 Ty ) :1—1
Addinons for tax positions of prnor years 10 6 10
"__ _ _Decreases lor tax positions of pror years o @ D)
Decreases torislamte of limitations expiration (L) (1) T (13)
1 ’ u;—m;séttlemetit;_—““‘ oo T T B T e wg25) T WM(}OO)
Impact of currency transtation 5) (1) (L)
[ Balanceat December3i S 50 8 78 S 69 |

The Company classifies tax-related penalties and net interest as income tax expense As of December 3!, 2014,2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $12
million, $23 million and $15 mullion, respectively, in liabilities for tax-related net interest and penalties on its consolidated balance sheet Dunng the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded tax income (expense} related to a net increase {decrease) 1n its liability for interest and
penalties of $11 rmlbon, $(8) milhon and $(2) million, respectively

The Company operates 1n multiple junsdictions throughout the world The Company 15 no longer subject to US federal tax examinations for years before
2011 or state and local for years before 2008, with limited exceptions Furthermore, the Company s no longer subject to income tax examinations in major
foreign tax junsdictions for years pnorto 2005 The income tax returns of foreign subsidianes in vanous tax junsdictions are currently under examination

The Company believes that 1t 1s reasonably possible that 1ts unrecognized tax benefits 1n multiple junsdictions, which pnmanly relate o transfer prnicing,
corporate reorgamization and vanous other matters, may decrease by approximately $3 mullion 1n the next 12 months due to audit settlements or statute
cxpirations, of which approximately $2 million, if recognized, could impact the effective tax rate

On July 11,2013, Federal-Mogul Corporation became part of the Icahn Enterprises affiliated group of corporations as defined tn Sectton 1504 of the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which American Entertainment Properties Corp
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{* AEP™) is the common parent The Company subsequently entered into a Tax Aliocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant
to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax ttems The Company will join AEP in the filing
of AEP’s federal consolidated retum and certain state consolidated retums In those junsdictions where the Company 1s filing consolidated returmns with AEP,
the Company will pay to AEP any tax 1t would have owed had 1t continued to file scparately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group ts able to reduce
1ts tax liability as a result ef including the Company i1n 1ts censolidated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the
Company will carryforward for its own use¢ under the Tax Allocaton Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax
Benefits”) While a member of the AEP affiliated group the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits
Moreover, 1t the Company should ever become deconsolidated trom AEP, AEP will retmburse the Company for any tax hability 1n post-consolidation years
the Company would not have paid had 1t actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-
consolidation cannot exceed the cumulative reductions n tax to the AEP group resulting from its use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate retum
methodology will be used 1n determining income taxes

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Envirenmental Matters

The Company 1s a defendant 1n lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admunistrative orders 1ssucd or demand letters recerved, in vanous junsdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“*CERCLA™) or other similar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible parties may be hable to pay for remediating contamination resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of property they cumrently own or operate, or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notificd by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vanous provincial and stale agencies that 1t may be a potentially responsible parly (“PRP™)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subsequent remedial activities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costhest to remediate are often cument or former commercial waste disposal tacihities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential joint and several hability which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining
to these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these uites has generally been small The Company believes its exposure for liability at these
sites 18 himited

On a global basis, the Company has also 1dentified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing
environmentzl contamunation, In some cases as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state cnvironmental laws The Company 1s actively
secking to resolve these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantfy based on the complexity of the
issues, the Company has accrued amounts corresponding to its best estimate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the
basis of available information from site tnvestigations and best professional judgment of consulants

Total environmental liabilities, determuined on an undiscounted basis are included 1n the consolidated balance sheets as follows

December 31, December 31,
2014 3
{Millhons of Dollars)
Other current liabilities $ 6 $ 5
‘Other acerued habihities (noncurrent} 9 9 ]
$ 15 8 14

Management believes that recorded environmental habilities will be adequate 1o cover the Company's estimated hability for its exposure 1n respect to such
matters In the event that such habthties were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded by the Company, the Company s results of eperations and
financial condition could be matenally affccted At December 31, 2014, management estimates that reasonably pessible matenal additional losses above and
beyond management’s best estimate of required remediation costs as recorded approximate $40 million
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Asset Retiremnent Obligations

The Company records asset retirement obligations { ARO") in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obliganons The
Company's pnmary ARO activities relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at its facilities The Company records an AROQ at fair value upon
mmtial recognition when the amount can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectation that an operating site may be closed or sold ARO fair
values are determined based on the Company’s determination of what a third party would charge to perform the remediation activities, generally using a
present value technique

For those sites that the Company 1dentifies 1n the future for closure or sale, or for which 1t otherwise believes 1t has a reasonable basis to assign probabilities
to a range of potential setilement dates, the Company will review these sites for both ARQ and impairment issues

The Company has wdentified sites with contractual obligations and several sites that are closed or expected to be closed and sotd In connection with these
sites, the Company maintains ARQO liabihities in the consolidated balance sheets as follows

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
{Mulions of Dallars}
Other current Liabilittes 3 3 8 4
Oerscoved habies pongumenty T T T g g
3 24 s 26

The following 1s a rollforward of the Company's ARO lability for the two years ended December 31, 2014 (in milhons of dollars)

Balance at Jamuary 1,2013°_ — ~ © T T 3 297
Liabiltties incurred B 1
[ Lubihessetled/adyustments Y
Balance at December 31,2013 26
T T — ) - =
Liabilimes settled/adjustments {1
S ()
Balance at December 31,2014 $ 24

The Company has conditional asset retirement obligations {*CARQ™), pnmarly related to removal costs of hazardous matenals in buildings, for which it
believes reasonable cost estumates cannot be made at this time because the Company does not believe 1t has a reasonable basis to assign probabihities to a
range ot potential setilement dates for these reurernent obhigations Accordingly, the Company 1s currently unable to determine amounts to accrue for CARO
at such sites

Affiliate Pension Obligations

In July 2013 the Company completed a common stock nghts offering The purchases of shares of common stock 1n the nghts offenng increased the indirect
control of Mr Carl C Icahn to approximately 80 73% of the voung power As a result of the more than 80% ownership interest 1n the Company by Mr
Icahn's affiliates, the Company 1s subject to the pension habilities of all entities 1n which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80%
Ome such entity, ACF Industnes LL.C ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the minimurn funding requirements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2014 Ifthe ACF plans were voluntanly termunated, they would be
undertunded by approximately $82 midlion as of December 31, 2014 These results are based on the most recent information provided by the plans’actuanes
These liabilities could increase or decrease depending on a number of factors, mncluding future changes in benetuts, investment retums, and the assumptions
used to calculate the liability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be liable for any falure of ACF to make ongoing pension
conirtbutions or to pay the unfunded ltabilities upon a temunation of the pension plans of ACF In addition other entities now or in the future within the
controlled group 1n which the Company 15 included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
tiable tor any failure ot such entities to make ongoing pension contnbutions or to pay the unfunded liabihities upon termination of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of liens
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m favor of the pension plan orthe Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (“PBGC™) against the asscts of each member of the contmolled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requures 1t to notify the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1t the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certain extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the cecurrence of such reportable events

[cahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and IEH FM Heldings LLC have undertaken to indemnify Federal-Mogul for any and all hability imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation thereunder (“ERISA’) resulting from the
Company being considered a member of a controlied group within the meaning of ERISA § 4001(a){14) of which Amencan Entertainment Properties
Corporation 15 a member, except with respect to hiabihity 1n respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), maintained by the Company
Icahn Enterpnses Heldings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to mamtain any specific net worth and there can be no guarantee [cahn
Enterpnses Holdings L P and 1IEH FM Holdings LLC will be able to fund 1ts indemnification abligattons to the Company

Other Matters

On Apnl 25, 2014, a group of plaintiffs brought an action agamst Federal-Mogul Products, Inc (“F-M Products™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, alleging injunes and damages associated with the discharge of chlonnated hydrocarbons by the former owner of a facihity located in Kentucky
Since 1998, when F-M Products acquired the facility, 1t has been cooperating with the apphicable regulatory agencies on remediating the pnior discharges
pursuant to an order entered into by the facility’s former owner The Company 1s unable to estimate any reasonably possible range of loss for reasons
mcluding that the plammuffs did not claim any amount of damages 1n their complaint F-M Products intends to vigorously defend this hitigation

The Company 15 invelved 1n other legal actions and claims, directly and through its subsidianes Management does not believe that the outcomes of these
other actions or claims are hkely to have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s conselidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows
18 CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS BY COMPONENT (NET OF TAX)

The following represents the Company’s changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss ("AOCL") by component tor the year ended December 31 2014

Foreign Gams and
Currency Losses en Post-
Translation Cash Flow employment
Adjustments Hedges Benefits Total
{Mullions of Dollars)
‘Balance at January 1,2014 $ (249) § (16) 3 (361) § (626)]
| Other comprehensive loss betore reclassifications (233) —— (314) (547)]
Amounts reclassified from AOCL — — 10 10
[ Income taxes — (1) 2 21 }
Other comprehensive loss (233) (1) {282) 516)
- — ]
Balance at December 31,2014 3 {482) § (7 3 (643) § (1,142)
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19 RECLASSIFICATIONS OUT OF ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ("AOCL")

Items not reclassified 1n theiwr entirety out of AOCL to net income for the yecar ended December 31, 2014 arc as follows

Affected Line ftem i the

Year Ended December 31 Statement Where Net Income
1014 2013 is Presented
Lossesoncash flowhedges "~ T T T T T
Commodity contracts T 5 1§ (5) Cost ot products sold 7 -
| Fomgncumencycomwmcts () _— Cosatproducissold ]
_ [ntcfcst ratc swap contracts —_ ) Irltellest_gx_ggr_lfc,_nf_t e
=S 1) e ]
Income taxes 1 ()] ml;;c—m;w-tax {expense) benefit T
I Netotax o 1 (15) o - B ]

Postemgloyment_ber@jﬁ(;

e ]

Cost (;Fproducts sold and selling, general and admimistrative

_Amortization of actuanal losses (12) 29) expﬂensas_QEG&Ai) o ] N
f_ Amoruzation of pnor service credits . s 9 Costofproducts sold and SG&A e _:]
Recognition of unamortized losses _ i (4) Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax L
t..Cunalmentgan _  _ ___ _ _ -~ 19 Lossfiomdiscontnued opemtions, act of tax ]
Curtailment gamn — 19 OPEB curtailment gain
_Towt o 14 o ]
Income taxes i (22) 9  Income tax {expense) benefit
U Netotwx T 29) 23 ]
Totl reclassificaions (28) 3 8 - ]

20 WARRANTS

On December 27, 2007, the Company 1ssued 6,951,871 warrants to purchase 6,951,871 common shares of the Company at an exercise price equal to $45 815,
excrcisable through December 27,2014 All the warrants expired as ot December 31, 2014
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21 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Apprecianon Rights

A summary of the Company's stock appreciation rights (“SARs’ ) activity on an annual basis for the yeass ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 15 as
follows

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Apgregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
SARs Price Life Value
{Tho usands) (Years) {Millions)
Qutstanding at January ,2012 - ~ $ 1388 § 1996 ~ T
Granted T 809 17 64 T
I Forfeited e - T VN T X S
Qutstanding at December 31,2012 1,886 % 1921 34 % —
[ Granted ] (182) 1748 T
Forfeited (445) 19 30
‘Outstanding at December 31,2013 T 289 s 1943 24 s 1]
Exercised 57 1725 -
O Forfened ) __“ (406) 956 ]
Qutstanding at December 31,2014 796 § 19 51 14 % —
? |
Exercisable at December 31,2014 03§ 19 76 14 8 —

In February 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company granted approximately 809,000, ! 043,000 and 437,000 SARs, respectively, to certain employees The SARs
granted 10 February 2012 (#2012 SARs"}and 1n February 2011 (“2011 SARs™) vested 25 0% on grant date and 25 0% on each of the next three anniversanes
ofthe grant date The SARs granted 1n February 2010 (#2010 SARs™) vest 33 3% on each ofthe three anmiversanes of the grant date All SARs have a term of
five years from date of grant The SARs are payable in cash or at the election of the Company, tn stock As the Company anticipates paying out SARs
exercises in the form of cash, the SARs are being treated as hability awards for accounting purposes The Company recognized SARs income of 34 milhon for
the year ended December 31, 2014, SARs expense of $5 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, and SARs income of $4 mullion for the year ended
December31 2012 The SARs fair values were estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the following assumptions

December 31, 2014 Dcecember 31, 2013
2012 SARs 2011 SARs 2010 SARs 2012 SARs 2011 SARs 2010 SARs
:l?._xj_r!:zs_e price S 1764 % 2103 3 1716 8§ 1764 % 21 03 b 17‘Lﬁ¢_j
Expected volatility 39% 39% 39% 48% 48% 48%
E_;_cpecled dividend yield ~=% —% — —% —% —%]
Expected forteitures —% —% —% —% —% —%
Risk-{ree rate over the expected life 028% 0 14% 003% 029%  0l4% 0 10%]
Expected life {in years) 11 06 01 17 11 06
Fair value (1 mullions) $ 06 s 02 s _— % 26 s 23S 05|
Fair value of vested portion (in mmlhions) $ 04 $ 02 3 —  $ i1 M 17 3 05

Expected volanlity 1s based on the average of five-ycar histoncal volatility and implicd volatility for a group of comparable auto industry companics as of
the measurement date Risk-free rate 15 deterrmined based upon U S Treasury rates over the esiimated expected lives Expected dividend yield 15 zero as the
Company has not paid dividends to holders of its common stock n the recent past nor does 1t expect to do so 1n the future Expected forfeltures are zero as
the Company has no histencal experience with SARs, the impact of forfeitures ts recognized by the Company upon occurmence Expected hife 1s the average
of the ume until the award 1s tully vested and the end of the term
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22 INCOME (L.OSS) PER COMMON SHARE

The following 15 a reconctliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted income (loss) per common share

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 1012

(In \hllmn: of Dollnrs Except Per Share Amounts)
AmountsanobugbletoFedeplMogl T T T ]
Net (loss) income Erom continuing operauo;xs L (168) § 03 3 T (98)
Lr.;s_s t;o;n—d_t‘scen{u_fued opecam;ts" net of tax _~: ) :-__j _:_ ~: _____nj ;.:_ m:vﬁmﬁ_ B - @zy—'rw o (1‘9) ]
Net {loss) income $ (168y § 41 3 (117)
o . ]
Welghted avemge shares outstnndmg‘ basnc (m milliong) 1500 123 4 989
[ncrcmental sharesﬁovt{ asaumed conversion ofdefem':d comp;n;atronm;t;ul:(m m:lh;];f '_ -: - ;_m:” T T I T s “]
Welghted avemge shares ou!standmg, dliuted (m lellons) ) 1500 1234 B 994

]

Net (loss) income per share attnbutable to Federal-Mogul - bastc and diluted

Net (loss) income from continuing operatlons o N 5 (112y % 0 7'5:_ s ((_)E—E]J
Loss from d}scontmued operations, netoftax — 042) {0 19)
Net (luss) lacome a1 013 {118) |

The Company had losses for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2012 As a result, diluted loss per share 1s the same as basic 1n those penods, as any
potentuially dilutive secunities would reduce the loss per share

Wamants to purchase 6,951,871 common shares, which expired December 27 2014 were not included in the computation of diluted eamings per share
betause the exercise price was greater than the average market price of the Company’s common shares dunng the years ended Decernber 31, 2014,2013 and
2012 Opuions to purchase $4,000,000 commen shares, which expired on June 29, 2012, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share
because the exercise price was greater than the average market pnce of the Company’s common shares dunng the year ended December 31,2012

As required by FASB ASC Topic 710, Compensatton, there are 500,000 commeon shares 1ssued tn connection with a deferred compensation agreement that
are excluded from the basic eamings per share calculation for the year ended December 31, 2014

23 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 6, 20135, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets ot the TRW engmne components business The business was acquired
through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of approximately $313 mullion, funded prmimanly from the available
Replacement Revolver Facility and subject to certain customary closing and post<closing adjustments The purchase of TRW’s engine valve business adds a
completely new product line to the Company's portfolio, strengthens the Company's position as a leading developer and supplier of core components for
engines, and enhances the Company's ability to support 1ts customers to improve fuel cconomy and reduce emissions

The assets acquired and Irabilitics assumed wall be recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 803, Business
Combinations The prehminary allocation of the purchase price will occur in the first quarter of 2015 There were no revenues or eamings related 1o TRW
included tn the Company's consolidated statements of operations

On February 24, 20135, the Company announced that 1t intends to faunch a registered nghts offenng on or about March 6, 2015 In the nghts offenng, each
hotder of the Company’s commeon stock as ot the close of business on the record date of March 6, 2015 will be 1ssued, at no charge, onc transferable
subscription nght for each whele share of commen stock owned by that stockholder on the record date (the “basic subscniption privilege’ } The nghts
offenng will also include an over-subscnption pnvilege, which will entitle stockholders who exercise all of their subscnption nghts in the basic subsenption
pnvilege the nght to purchase additional shares of commen steck in the nghts offening, subject to availability and pro rata allocation of shares among nghts
holders exercising such over-subscnption pnvilege

The Company wall offer a number of shares of its common stock in the nghts offenng, inclusive of the over-subscnption pnvilege, representing
approximately $250 million of gross proceeds The Company plans to use the proceeds from the nghts offering to strengthen its balance sheet

24 OPERATIONS BY REPORTING SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments [he Powertrain segment focuses on ongmal equipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industnal applicauons The Motorparts segment sells and distnbutes a broad portfolie of products 1n the global aftermarket, while also
serving ongnal equipment manufacturers with products including braking, chassis, wipers and other vehicle components This erganizational model allows
for a strong product line focus benefitting both onginal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive
to customers’ needs for supenor products and to promote greater identification with Federal-Mogul premium brands Additionally, this organizational model
enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for organic or acquisttion growth, profit improvement, resource utilization and business model
optimization 1n hine with the unique requirements ot the two different customer bases

The Company evaluates reporting segment pertormance principdlly on a non-GAAP Operational EBITDA basis Management believes that Operational
EBITDA provides supplemental information for management and investors to evaluate the operating performance of 1ts business Management uses and
believes that investors benefit from refemng to Operational EBITDA 1n assessing the Company s operaung results, as well as in planning, forecasting and
analyzing tuture penieds as this financial measure approximates the cash flow associated with the operational eamings of the Company Additionally,
Operanonal EBITDA presents measures of cerporate performance exclusive of capital structure and the method by which asscts were acquired and financed




Accordingly, Operational EBITDA s defined as eamings from continuing operations before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain
items such as restructunng and impawrment charges, Chapter 11 and U K. Administration telated reorgamzation expenses, gains or losses on the sales of
businesses, the non-service cost components of the US based funded pension plan, OPEB curtatlment gains or losses, the income statement impacts
associated with stock appreciation nghis, loss on extinguishment of debt and costs associated with acquisitions, legal separation and headquarters relocation

Net sales
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
{Mullioas of Dollars)

{Powertratn ] - — s 4430 s 4173 s 3926
Motormparts 3,192 2935 2.85%
Tater-segment chmimations T T T s a7 @35

Total 3 7317 % 6786 % 6,444

Cost of products seld

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
{Millions of Doltars)

Bowertm 7T T T 5 Gan s Gese) S BA0)

Motorparts (2,668) (2,432) 2,390
nter-segment shmmanons 3o T 3m T a3 ]
Total Reporting Segment (6,260) (3,766) (5,525)
fgirpomle — — (_f):ﬂ
Total Company 3 {6,260} 3 {5,766) § (5531)
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Gross profit
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollan)

Powenr-;n-ﬁ R D I T A S
Motorparts T s e 52.4‘ o 503 ”:t63

" ol RepammgSegmen T ey o o]
Corporatc L o ) e —_ — {6}
i Total Company T T $ 1,057 S 1020 § 913 |

Operational EBITDA and the reconciliation to net income {loss) were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Milliens of Dellars)
Powenan S 49§ 378 s 289
Motorpans e 195 213 200
 TowlOpemhonal EBITDA - 624 591 489 |
Item;mr;:quued to reconcile 6&;:;;15;:1{%“[_3_11:6;;\ t; net income (loss) o _ T
E;_:___ Depre-é;afg_o:r_{gr;:l amortization . T _334) T __(2195\-_) : -_______‘:@8_5‘)
Adjustmenl of assets to fair value (144) ® (187)
| _leerstexpensemct (20 o9 2]
Restructunng expense, net o (86) (40) T (26)
:; ‘.. B Loss})h_débt extmgulshment _i *:__# A i_:‘f_ T _‘_:_ T WM_ﬁﬁ#ht@‘l) — _‘,_:_—:]
Acqutsmon related costs (16) (5) —
. _ Legal sepamuion costs _ o e _ D) =
Headquarters relocatlon costs (6) — —_
’_—_‘ j_“: Non-service cost cumponcnls aswclated wnh US based funded pension plans 6 e E_ﬁ_)— T Tﬁﬂ
Stock appreciation nghts 4 (5) 4
Q:: wIm)lscc.)nlimu;:d Bpnegauox;si H::m mn__: _ 7____-' o o — R ) __mﬂg—)‘w]
OPEB curtmlment gain e e - L 7-1?____ 51
o Imcomewx{expensebenefit T " T T g8 _ee__ T 29
_ Other o e 1 — 3)
Net (-i:)_:.s) income s (161) §$ 49 5 (L10)]

Total assets, capital expenditures, and depreciaton and amortization information by reporting segment 1s as set forth in the tables below Goodwl! was
assigned to reporting segments and reporting units based on individual reporting unit fair values over values attnbuted to specific intangible and tangible
asscts Reporting units are components of the Company’s reporting scgments (which arc also its operating segments) and gencrully ahgn with speoific
product groups for which segment managers regularly review operating results
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Total Asscty

Capital Expenditures

Depreciztion and
Amortizatron

December 31

Year Eaded December 31

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(Mallions of Dollars)

Powertrain $ 3485 § 3373 S 268 § 276 § 278 S 196 $ 178 S 165 |
Motorparts 3,355 3,055 130 86 86 114 100 99
[ Total Reporting Segment 6840 6428 398 362 364 310 278 264 |
Corporate 227 754 20 13 16 24 16 21
Igmlhnﬁdﬁggmmﬁ&s o ) — — — 5% 7 — 2 4]

Total Company $ 7067 § 7,8 § 418 § 380 § 387 8§ 334 § 296 § 289
The following table shows geographic information

Net Sales Net PPE
Year Ended December 31 December 31
014 2013 2012 2014 2013
{Millions of Dollars)

United States __ $ 2667 8 2516 $ 2479 $ 607 § 559 |
Germany 1494 1326 1,160 423 425
China T T e 361 288 234 158 ]
France 398 390 365 55 82
Mextco — 375 341 312 143 135]
Ttaly 290 286 263 69 73
‘Belgium 272 312 286 16 26 |
United Kingdom 242 233 235 77 30
india - 203 198 229 134 135
Other 930 823 827 402 365
! N * T8 7317 S 6786 S 6444 § 2,160 $ 2,038 |
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25 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents selected unaudited quarterly opemung results of the Company for 2014 znd 2013, and the audited results of the Company for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

First Second Third Fourth Year

(Amounts 1n mullions, cxccpt per share amounts and stock prices)

]

Vearended DecemberL, 2014

T Netsates T T T T s 79 s 1872 s 18710S 1794 S 7317
... Grssprofit . N 2 £ S~ AR LSS . MU 7,01
Net (loss) income atinbutable to Federal-Mogul 40 (5) (18) (185) (168)
U il - : 2 e - L R §he UL et RN b
i Net (loss) income per common share attibutable to Federal-Mogul -
‘  bamcanddiluted Q27 @0y @1z = (23 _ (112)
Weighted avg shares outstanding ~ basic (1n mgll_;)Es—) o se0 _Isop 1500 1500 1500
Weighted avg shares outstanding — diluted (in mullions) 1500 1500 1500 1500 1500
e T e s e e e - - - T T e _"]
Sockpnee o T ~ -
L. Hgn - S 2297 8 20si s 208 5 163 |
Low B $ LS_EZ _$ 1619 % 1487 § 14 14
B P e —
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First Second Third Fourth Year
{(Amounts tn millions, except per share amounts and stack prices)

_Year endei December 3,201 3“%‘

Net sales S 1659 5 1744 S 1690 S 1694 § 6786
Gross profit ~ 249 278 255 238 1,020 |
IAmounts attributable to Federal-Mogul - B o
pmounts it » Federl-pogul
__ Net {loss) income from continuing operations 3 17 8 6l % i1 s (16) % 93
+___ Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (31} 5y 7 (3) 2]
Net (loss) income attnbutable to Federal-Mogul* ) (34) % 56 % 38 5 1% 3 41

L m . L e

Net {loss) income per common share attobutable to chcr;rMogul -basic
and difuted

! __El—;;iloss) mcome from contmuing operntions 3 017§ 062 $ ():i;HAMSHFH(P 1y 80 T§_]
}_{)_SS from dlsconuguedﬂo_p_eﬂrunt}_o_r_lgl_neﬂt_of't_a”x__ . ©51) {0 05) 005 002) (042}
Net (loss) income attraibutable to Federal-Mogul* $ 034) 3 0357 3 026 3 {©13}y 3% 033 |

'Wﬁexﬁghtpﬁd avg ;;;msfulst;lall!g:- basic (in miilions) L 989 989 1450 1500 1_2;’,2“]

W_elghted avg shares outstan_deg —diluted (in millions) 98 9 989 1453. _ 1500 123_4

o ]

Stock pnce

i High $ 988 § 1039 § 1733 § 2115 ]

Low 5 598 § 484 % 992 % 1497

f ]

Dividend per share — — — —_
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ITEMY9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None

ITEM9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Acontrol system, no matter how well concerved and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system
are met Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative
to their costs Because of the inherent limitations 1n all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control 1ssues and
imstances of fraud, 1f any, withun the Company have been detected

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to previde reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed 1n the
Company’s penodic Exchange Act reports 15 recorded, processed, summanzed and reported within the me penods specified 1n the SEC’s rules and forms,
and that such information 1s accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropnate to allow umely decisions regarding requured disclosure

Management's Report on Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

The Company's management 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting, as defined 1n Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15() As of December 31, 2014, an assessment was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company s management,
including the Co-Chief Executive Officers and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures over financial reperting based upon the framework 1n Intemal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) 1ssued by the Commuttee of
Sponsoring Orgamizations {the ‘COSO 2013 Framework”) of the Treadway Commmission Based upon that evaluation, the Co-Chief Executive Officers and the
Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31,2014 at the reasonable assurance
level previously descnbed

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company included within this Form 10-K Management’s Report on Intemal Control over
Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2014 The Company’s independent registesed public accocunting firm also attested to, and reported on, the
Company’s Intemal Control over Financial Reporting Management's report and the independent registered public accounting firm'’s repord are included in
ltem 8 of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There has been no change 1n the Company’s internal control over financial reporting dunng the quarter ended December 31, 2014 that has matenally affected

or 1s reasonably likely to matenally affect the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The information required by Item 10 regarding our directors and other corporate govemance matters 15 incorporated by reference to the Company'’s proxy
statement for the 2014 annual meeting of stockholders under the captions “Election of Directors”, “Corporate Governance™ and “Secunty Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ™ The information required by ltem 10 reganding the Company’s executive officers 1s set forth below The
information required by Item 10 regarding compliance with section 16(a) of the Secunties and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 15 incorporated by
reference to the Company's proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders under the caption “Section 16(a) Bencficial Ownership Reporting

Comphance ™

Daniel A Nimivagg
Age 50

Rainer Jueckstock
Ape 55

Scott Pepin
Age 47

Brett D Pynnonen
Age 46

Mr Ninivagg: has served as a director of the Company since March 2010 and as cochief Executive Officer and Chiet Executive
Officer of Motorparts segment since February 2014 Mr Ninivagg: was President of Icahn Enterpnises L P, a diversified holding
company engaged 1n a vanety of businesses, including investment, automotive, energy. gamung, railcor. food packaging, metals,
real estate and home fashion, from Apnl 2010 to February 2014 and its Chief Executive Officer from August 2010 1o February
2014 From January 2011 to May 2012, Mr Nimvagg served as the Intenm President and Intenm Chief Executive Officer of
Tropicana Entertainment Inc  a company that 1s pnmanly engaged m the business of owning and operating casinos and resorts

From 2003 until July 2009, Mr Nimivagg: served in a vanety of executive positions at Lear Comoration, a global supplier of
automotive seating and electrical power management systems and components, most recently as Executive Vice President and
Chief Administratve Officer from 2006 to 2009 Lear Corporation filed for bankruptey in July 2009 and emerged in November
2009 Mr Nimivagg: served as Of Counsel to the law firm of Winston & Strawn LLP from July 2009 to March 2010 Mr Ninivagg:
has been a director of Hertz Global Toldings, Inc, a rental car company, since September 2014, Icahn Enterpnses, since March
2012, and Tropicana Entertainment Inc  since January 2011 Mr Nimivagg) was previcusly a director of CVR Refining, LP, an
independent downstream energy limited partnership, from January 2013 to September 2014, Amencan Railcar Industnes, Inc, a
railcar manufacturing company, from June 2013 to February 2014, CVR Energy, Inc, a diversified holding company pnmanly
engaged 1n the petroleum refiming and nitrogen ferulizer manufactuning industnes, from May 2012 to February 2014, CVR
Partners LP, a mtrogen fertihizer company, from May 2012 to February 2014, PSC Metals Inc, a metal recychng company, from

Apnl 2012 to February 2014, WestPoint Home LLC, a home textiles manufacturer, from February 2012 to February 2014, Viskase
Companies, Inc, a meat casing company, from June 2011 to February 2014, XO Holdings, a competitive provider of telecom
services, trom August 2010 to February 2014, Motorcla Mobility Holdings, Inc , a provider of mobile communication devices,
video and data delivery solutions from December 2010 to May 2002, and CIT Group Inc, a bank holding company, from
December 2009 to May 2011 Icahn Enterpnses, Amencan Railcar Industnes, CVR Reftning, CVR Energy, CVR Partners, PSC
Metals, WestPoint Home, Viskase Companies, XO Holdings and Tropicana Entertainment are each indirectly controlled by Carl
C Icahn Mr [cahn previously had interests in Lear Motorela Mobility and CIT Group through the ownership of secuntics

Mr Ninivagg received a B A 1n History from Columbia University 1n 1986, a Masters of Business Adminustration from the
University of Chicago 1n 1988 and a J D from Stanford Law School in 1991

Mr Jueckstock has served as cochief executive officer and a director of the Company and chief executive officer for the
Powertrain Segment since Apnl 2012 Mr Jueckstock joined the Company 1in 1990, and has served as sentor vice president,
Powertrain Energy, senior vice president, powertrain operations senior vice president, pestons, nngs and hiners, vice president,
nngs and liners, eperations director, piston nngs, Europe, and managing director of the Fnedberg, Germany, operation He also
was sales director for nngs and liners, Europe, finance controller in Burscheid, Germany, and finance manager 1n Dresden,
Germany Since February 2013 Mr Jueckstock also serves on the board of directors o PLEXUS Corp

Mr Pepin has served as semior vice president, Global Human Resources since Apnl 2012 Previously, Mr Pepin was vice
president, labor relations, and director of human resources, North Amenca and Global Powertrain Energy Mr Pepin jowned the
company 1n 1994 and had held several positions of increasing responsibility He was also formerly senior director, Kellogg North
Amenca buman resources and organizational development Pepin eamed 2 bachelor of ants degree 1n English and psychology
trom the University of Western Ontano, London, Ontano, Canada, and a bachelor of commerce degree in business admimistration
and a master’s degree 1n busimess administration, both from The Umivemsity of Windsor, Ontane, Canada

Mr Pynnonen has served as semor vice president, general counsel, secretary and chief compliance officer since November 2010
Mr Pynnonen joined the Company as associate geneml counsel and assistant secretary n 2007 Prior to joining the Company,
Mr Pynnonen was vice president, general counsel and secretary for Covansys Comporation Pnor to that, Mr Pynnonen was an
attorney for the law firm of Butzel Long 1n Detroit, M1
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Jerdme Rouquet Mr Rouquet has served as senor vice president, finance, Motorpans, and controller and chiefaccounting officer of the Company

Age 47 since Decernber 2013 Previously, he was intenm Chief Financial Officer of the Company from August to December 2013, vice
president, controller and chief accounting officer of the company since August 2010, and chief financial officer, Motorparts
segment since July 2012 Mr Rouquet joined the Company i 1996 and held vanous finance positions of increasing
responsibility at regional and group levels across multiple product hines and business units, ultimately serving as Finance
Director, Vehicle Safety and Protection Mt Rouquet graduated 1n 1990 from the Institut Supencur de Gestion in Panis, France

Rajesh Shah Mr Shah has served as senior vice president and chief financial officer of the company since December 2013 Previously, Mr

Age 63 Shah served as executive vice president and chief financial officer at X-Rite, an industrial technology business Prior to that he
held vartous executive-level positions in finance at companies such as Cadence Innovation, LLC, Remy Intemational, Inc,
Collins & Airkman, UT Automotive, Vanty Corporation, and Kelsey Hayes Group Mr Shah 1s a chartered accountant 1n both
[ndia and Canada He eamed a bachelors degree from Bembay University, Bombay (Mumbai) India, and a master’s degree from
Bowling Green University, Bowhng Green, Ohio

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to compensation of executive officers and directors of the Company under the captions “Dircctor Compensation”, “Compensation
Commuttee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” 1n the Company’s proxy statement for the 2015 annual
meeting of stockholders 1s incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Annual Report

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information under the captions "Secunty Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ in the Company’s proxy statement for the 2015 annual
meeting of stackholders 1s incorparated herein by reference and made a part of this Annual Report

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE
Tax Allocation Agreement

On July 11, 2013, Federal-Mogul Corporation became part of the Icahn Enterprses affiliated group of corporations as defined 1n Section 1504 of the Intemnal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Propertics Corp (“AEP™) 15 the common parent The Company
subsequently entered into a Tax Allocatron Agreement {the “Tax Allocation Agreement”) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the

Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax 1items The Company will join AEP in the filing of AEP’s federal consohidated retum and certain
state consolidated retums In those yjunsdictions where the Company is filing consolidated retums with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax it would
have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consohdated group 15 able to reduce 1ts tax Liability as a result of including the
Company n 1ts consolidated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company wlil carryforward for 1ts own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the 1tems that caused the tax reductron (the “Excess Tax Benefits ") While a member of the AEP affihated
group the Company will reduce the amounts i would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benetits Moreover 1f the Company should ever become
deconsohidated from AEP, AEP will rexmburse the Company for any tax liability i post-consohdation years the Company would not have paid had 1
actually had the Excess Tax Benetits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-consolidation cannot exceed the cumutative
reductions 1n tax to the AEP group resulting from 1ts use ofthe Excess Tax Benefits Separate retum methadology will be used 1n determining income taxes

Insight Portfolio Group LLC (formally known as leahn Sourcing, LLC}

Icahn Sourcing, LLC (“Icahn Sourcing™) 1s an entsty formed by Mr Icahn 1n order to maximize the potential buying power of a group of entities with which
Mr leahn has a relationship 1n negotiating with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services and tangible and intangible propetty at negotiated rates The
Company was a member of the buying group 1n 2012 Pnor to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay lcabn Sourcing any fees or other amounts with
respect to the buying group arrangement
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In December, 2012, Icahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 it would restructure 1its ownership and change 1ts name to Insight
Portfolio Group LLC (‘Insight Portfoho Group™) In conncction with the restructuning, the Company acquired a minonty cquity interest in insight Portfolio
Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfohio Group’s operating expenses in 2013 In addition to the mmonty equity mnterest held by the Company,
certain subsidianes of [cahn Enterpnses Holdings, mcluding CVR, Tropicana, AR, Viskase PSC Metals and WPH also acquired minerity equity interests in
Insight Portfolio Group and agreed 1o pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group's operating expenses A number of other entities with which Mr Icahn has a
relationship alse acquired equity interests 1n Insight Portfolio Group and alse agreed 1o pay ccriain opcraling cxpensecs

The Company’s payments to Insight Portfolio Group were less than $0 5 million for both of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 The Company
anticipates 1ts 2015 payments to Insight Portfolio Group to be sumilar to the amounts paid tn 2014

Affthate Pension Obligantons

In July 2013 the Company completed a common stock nghts offenng The purchases of shares of common stock in the nghts offening increased the indirect
control of Mr Carl C Icahn to approximately 80 73% of the voting power As 2 result of the more than 80% ownership interest 1n the Company by Mr
Tcahn’s affiliates, the Company 1s subject to the pension hiabilities of all enuties 1n which Mr Icabn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80%
One such entity, ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the mimimum funding requitements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2014 If the ACF plans were voluntanly terminated, they would be
undertunded by approximately $82 mullion as of December 31, 2014 These results are based on the most recent intormation provided by the plans’ actuares
Thesc Liabiliies could increase or decrease, depending on a number of factors including future changes 1n benefits, (nyvestment retums, and the assumptions
used to calculate the hability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be liable for any failure of ACF to make engomg pension
contnbutions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon a termunation of the pension plans of ACF In addition other entities now or in the future wathin the
controlied group in which the Company 15 included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
liable for any failure of such entities to make ongoing pension contnibutions or to pay the unfunded habilitics upon temunation of such plans Further, the
failure 1o pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of hens in favor of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corparation
( PBGC *) against the assets of each member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requuires it to notify the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1f the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certain extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the occurrence of such reportable events

[eahn Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undertaken to indemmfy Federal-Mogul for any and all Liabihity 1mposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employce Returement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation there under (“ERISA™) resulting from the
Company being considered a member of a controlled group within the meaming of ERISA § 4001(a)(14) of which Amencan Entertaimment Properties
Corporation 1s a member, except with respect to habtlity in respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), mantained by the Company
lcahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdmgs LLC are not required to maintain any spectfic net worth and there can be no guarantee lcahn
Enterprises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC will be able to fund 1ts indemnification obltgations te the Company

Additional Infermation
Additional information required by Item 13 1s incotporated herein by reference to the Company's proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of
stockholders under the captions “Director Independence and Controlled Company Status™ and “Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions ™

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to the fees and services of the Company's principal accountant under the caption “Fees of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm” 1n the Company s proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this
Annual Repont
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report

1 Financial Statements
Financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 1¢-K are listed under Part 1L, ltem 8 hereof

2 Financial Statement Schedutes
Schedule [I — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Financial Statements and Schedules Omitted

Schedules other than the schedule histed above are ormitted because they are not required or applicable under instructions

contaimed m Regulation S-X or because the information called tor 1s shown 1n the financial statements and notes thereto
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SCHEDULE [1 — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Column A Column B Cotumn € Colurnn D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Other End of
Descrapton of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Perod
(Millions of Dollars)
S’car ended Dcccmbelii_.?.—ﬂ;lwi_ e __hv_— T r:_ _____ e B J
Valuation allowance for trade receivables 3 11 3 5 3 — & 5y b 8 11
e e e ot s o e O S P Oy AU
. , . m ]
Yearended December 31, 2013 _ -
" Valuation allowance for trade receivables 3 13§ 3 3 — 8 5y v % 1 ﬂ
\Year ended December 31,2012 ]
Valuation allowance far trade receivables 3 13 3 2 3 — 3 2y ™ % 13

n Uncollectible accounts charged offnet of recovenes

111




15(b) Exhibits

The Company will furnish upon request any of the following exhibits upon payment of the Company’s reasonable expenses for fumishing such exhibit

21

22

23

24

31

32

41

42

43

101

102

103
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* 105

*106

* 107

Agreement and Plan ot Merger, dated Apnl 14, 2014, by and among Federal-Mogul Corporation, Federai-Mogul Holdings Corporation,
Federal-Mogul MergerCo Inc and Federal-Mogul Holding Sweden AB (Incorporated by Reference to Exhibiz 2 | to the Company's
Cumrent Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 14,2014 and filed with the Secunties and kxchange Commussion on Apnl 16,2014}

Assct Purchasc Agreement, dated as ot January 21, 2014 berween Aftinia Group Inc and VCS Quest Acquisition LLC (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibat 2 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2614 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commission on January 22, 2014)

Letter Agreement, dated Apnl 29, 2014, by and between Federal-Mogul Chassis LLC and Affinia Group In¢ (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2 1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 29, 2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commissien on
May 2,2014)

Amcnded and Restated Stock and Assct Purchase Agreement dated as of January 7, 2014 by and among Honeywell Intemational Inc,
Platin 966 GmbH and Saxid SAS (Incerporated by reference to Exhibit 2 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K dated July 9,
2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on July 15,2014}

Certificate of Incorporation of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corperation (Incomorated by refercnce to Exhubit 3 1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 14, 2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Comtmssion on Apnl 16,2014)

Bylaws of Federal-Mogul Heldings Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibie 3 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated Apnl 14,2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Comnussion on Apnl 16, 2014)

Federal-Mogul US Asbestos Personal Injury Trust Agreement by and among the Company, the Future Claimants Representative, the
Official Commutee of Asbestos Claimants, the Trustees, Wilmington Trust Company, and the members of the Trust Advisory Commuittee,
dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 | to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December
27,2007 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on January 3, 2008)

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007 by and among the company, Thomwood Associates Limited Partnership and
the Federal-Mogul Asbestos Personal Injury Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 27, 2007 and filed wath the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on January 3, 2008 )

Amendment and Jonder to Federal-Mogul Corporation Registration Rights Agreement among Federal-Mogul Corporation and IEH FM
Holdings LLC {incorporated by reference to Exhubit 4 1 to the Company’s Cumrent Report on Form 8-K dated July 9, 2013 and filed with
the Secunties and Exchange Commssion on July 1 1,2013)

Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement by and among the Company, as Borrower, the Lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as
Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as Syndication Agent dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 11 to the Company's Cument Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commussion on January 3, 2008 )

Federal-Mogul Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan {Incomporated by Reference to Exhtbit 10 | to the Company’s Cumrent Report on
Form 8-K dated May 26, 2010 and filed with the Secunttes and Exchange Commission on June 2,2010) 1

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated May 26, 2010 and tled with the Secunties and Exchange Commission on June 2,2010) t

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Ramner Jueckstock dated as of Apnl 1, 2012 (Incorporated by Reference to
Exhib1t 10 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2012 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 14,2012} ¥

Federal-Mogul 2014 Motorparts Management [ncentive Plan (MIP) ¥
Federal-Mogul 2014 Powertrain Management Incentive Plan (MIP) t

Federal-Mogul 2014 Corporate Management Incentive Plan (MIP) }
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101 INS

101 SCH
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Replacement Revolving Facility dated December 6, 2013, which 15 an amendment of the Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement,
dated as of December 27, 2007, among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N A, as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corperation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents, lo amend 1ts existing revolving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credit facility (Incomporated by Reference to
Exhibit 101 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 6, 2013 and filed with the Sccunties and Exchange
Commussion on December 9,2013)

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Rajesh K. Shah dated as of December 9, 2013 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 15 to the Company’s Annual Report on Formn 10-K for the year ended December 31,2013) 1

Amendment Agreement dated as of Apnl 15, 2014 to the Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007
among Federal-Mogul Comporation, Citicorp USA, Inc and each of the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhubit 101 to
the Company’s Cument Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 14, 2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on Apnl 16,
2014y

Separation Agreement between the Company and Kevin P Freeland, dated February 4, 2014 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 1 to
the Company’s Cumrent Report on Form 8-K dated February 4, 2014 and filed wath the Secunties and Exchange Commission on February
10,2014) +

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Daniel A Nimivagg: dated as of February 5, 2014 (Incorporated by Reference
to Exhibit 102 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 4, 2104 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Comumssion on Febmary 10, 2014)

Federl-Mogul Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan 2014-15 EVA Award Agreement - Powertrain Segment (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013) +

Amended and Restated Share and Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of January 23, 2015 by and between TRW Automotive Inc and
Federal-Mogu! Valvetrmin Gmbh (Incorporated by reference to Exhubit 2 | to the Company’s Current Report on Form &-K filed dated
January 23,2015 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on January 29, 2015)

Tax Allocation Agreement by and among Amencan Entertainment Properties Cotp and Federl Mogul Corporation dated as of July 11,
2013 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 101 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 9, 2013 and filed with the
Secunties and Exchange Commussion on July 11,2013 )

Subsidianes of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Grant Thomton LLP

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chiet Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chief Exccutive Officers and Chief Financial Officer pursuantto 18 US C Section 1350 and Rule 13a-
14(b)

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document




* 101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* 101 DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

* Fuled Herewith

Tt Management contracts and compensatory plans or amrangements

15(c). Separate financial statements of affihates whose securites are pledged as collateral

None
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized

SIGNATURES

FEDERAL-MOCGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By /s/ Rajesh Shah

Rajesh Shah
Sentor Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated February 26,2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the

registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

/s/ Danmiel A Ninivaggi

Daniel A Ninivaggi

/sf Raner Jueckstock
Rainer Jueckstock

/s/ Rajcsh Shah
Rajesh Shah

fs/ Jerdme Rouguet

Jerdme Rouquet

/sf Thomas W Elward
Thomas W Elward

s/ George Feldenkreis
George Feldenkreis

/s/ SungHwan Cho
SungHwan Cho

/s/ Hunter C Gary
Hunter C Gary

/s/ 1 Michael Latsure

J Michael Laisure

{s{ Neal § Subin
Neul § Subin

Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings
Corporation Chief Executive Officer, Motorparts Division,
Director

Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings
Cormporation Chief Executive Officer, Powertrain Division,
Director

Scator Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)

Semor Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting

Officer)

Darector

Director

Dhirector

Director

Durector

Durector
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Exhibit 105

Federal-Mogul 2014 VCS Management Incentive Plan (MI1P}

Goal

This Vehicle Component Solutions (VCS) Management Incentive Plan (this “MIP”) 15 intended to align the actions of participants with the goals of the
Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company”) VCS scgment and reward participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Participants

Individual employees of the Company providing services to VCS are eligible for participation in this MIP as follows (1) employees below the level of Vice
President are selected and confirmed by the Company’s Semor Vice President of Human Resources, and (1) employees at, or above, the level of Vice
President are selected and confirmed by VCS’s Chief Executive Officer, subject to approval and confimnation by the Compensation Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the "Compensation Commuttee™}

Target Bonus.

*Target Bonuses’ for purposes of this MIP shall be expressed as a percentage of the applicable employee s annual base salary rate in effect as of December 31,
2014 {*Annual Base Salary™), which Annual Base Salary 1s calculated as follows 1f the employee 1s paid by the Company on a monthly basis, the Annual
Basc Salary shall be cqual to an amount that 1s the product of such monthly payment rate multiphied by 12, and 1f the employce 15 paid on an cvery-other-
week basis, the Annual Base Salary shall be equal to an amount that 15 the product of such every-other-week payment rate multiphed by 26 For the
avoidance of doubt, except for the employee’s annual base salary rate descnbed above, in no event shall any other amounts or compensation payments paid
or payable to the employee be used for purposes of calculating the Annual Base Salary underthis MIP

No changes may be made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage without the wnitten approval of the Company’s Director of Compensation and Benefits
and/or the Company’s Semior Vice President of Human Resources, except that, in the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, any
changes made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage shall be subject to approval and confimation by the Compensation Commuttee

Proration

Any participant who 1s not employed with the Company in a MIP-ehgible position on or prior to October 1, 2014 shall not be eligible to receive a MIP
payment for 2014, except as may otherwise be approved by the Company's Senior Vice President of Human Resources and, 1n the case of any employee at or
above the level of Vice President, the Compensation Committee Any participant who 1s cligible for a MIP payment but who did not serve in a MIP<cligible
position during the entire year 2014 will be entitled to a pro-rated MIP-payment based on the amount of time such ehigible participant was actively and
continuously employed 1n an ehigible position dunng 2014 If, dunng 2014, a participant 1s promoted or demoted from a job with one Target Bonus level to
another job with a different Target Bonus level, a participant transfers from one operation to another operation with different performance metncs, or a
participant 1s rehired or takes an approved leave of absence from active employment, a separate computation shall be made to take into account the
participant’s time at each level, operation or absence from employment (as applicable), and the sum of the separate computations shall be the participant’s
MIP payout

Commumcations

The Business Unit Human Resource Directors and Human Rescurce Director for Corporate Staffs are responsible for consistency of MIP targets and
communication of the MIP plan to participants

Metrics

2014 MIP metncs are outhined 1n Appendix [ attached hereto




Adjustments

The metnes and their achievement levels are the basis for payout calculations However, each partictpant's individual performance and contnbutions may
also be considered and may alter the final payout In addition, VCS® Chief Executive Officer may reduce the 2014 MIP payment to any Business Unit
Operations Vice President/Director, Finance Director or Plant Manager based on his assessment of the results of an audit or senes of audits of plants or
lacations within VCS

It 15 intended that increases and decreases in participant MIP bonus payouts which result from individual or group performance and contnbutions shall not
result 1n an ncrease in the proposed payout of the maximum bonus pool descnibed below In the event that the MIP bonus payout, otherwise calculated in

accordance with this MIP, would exceed the maximum bonus peol, each of the proposed MIP bonus payouts shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis so that the
aggregate MIP bonus payouts do not exceed the maximum bonus pool

MIP Payout Ranges

The payout range for the 2014 MIP 15 from 0 to 175% of a participant’s Target Bonus For example, 1f an employee’s Target Bonus ts 10% of Annual Base
Salary, he or she may recerve an amount ranging from zero up to 17 5% of Annual Base Salary Payout percentages are rounded to the nearest whole percent
(0 5 and above rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down }

The VCS MIP bonus payment 1s limited to a maximum of 1 75% of an individual’s Target Bonus

Target Achuevement Level

If, for any metnc, the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metnc will be 100%

Minim etric Achievement Level

If, for any metnc, the achievement level does not equal or exceed 85% of the target, the payout for that metric will be zero At 85% achievement, the payout
for such metric will be 50%

Maximum Metric Acluevement Level

The maximum level of achievement eligible for a payout 1s 125% of the target for a metnc At 125% achievement, the MIP payeut leve! 1s 175% for that
metric

The payout curve between the mimmum achievement level and 100% 1s based on Linear interpolation, as 1s the payout curve between 100% and the
maximum achievement level

Threshold Achigverment Requirement

In the event VCS does not achieve at least 30% ofits EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA metnic will have zero payout

Maximum Bonus Pool and Adjustments:

The maxumum bonus pool under this MIP wall equal the sum of the Target Bonuses for the participants, assurmng the payout level for all metrics 1s equal to
175%

In no event shall the sum of total payouts under this MIP excced the maximum bonus pool

Computation and Pavout Timing

Payments under this MIP will be made only with respect to the Company’s 2014 fiscal year and only after completion of the annual audit of Federal-Mogul’s
2014 conschdated financial statements and filing of Federal-Mogul’s Form 10-K for the year ending December 31,2014, but 1n no event later than March 15,
2015 Management shall provide to the Compensation Committee, by February 1, 2015, the Company’s 201 4 unaudited consolhidated financial results, other
information required to calculate performance against the applicable metrics, management’s calculation of the metnc achievement levels against goals and
management’s recommendations tor MIP payouts consistent with such financial performance and other intormation No payout shall be made unless and
until the Commuttee 1n 1ts sole and absclute discretion, has approved the final achievement levels and




payouts, the completion of the audit of the 2014 consolidated financial statements and filing of the Company’s Form 10-K MIP participants must be actively
employed on the day of payout to be eligible for a payment In all countnes, ocat tax laws apply, and payments will be reduced by amounts required to be
withheld for taxes at the time payments are made MIP payments witl not be considered compensation for purposes of calculating the nghts of any participant
under any of the Company's employee benefit plans or programs, unless required by applicable law MIP payments will be counted as compensation eligible
for 401(k) plan contributions to the extent applicable

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors-

All incentive plan designs, awards and payouts, 1f any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Committee The Compensation Comnuttee has the sole
and absoiute discretion, after consultation with management of VCS, to make adjustments to any of the 2014 MIP metncs set forth in Appendix

Discretion

VCS’ Chief Executive Officer may alter, postpone or disallow individual payments as he deems appropnate for any employee (other than himself), within the
plan's payout range of zero to 175% of Target, except that, in the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, pnor approval by the
Compensation Comnuttee 1s required VCS’ Chuef Executive Officer may make other changes to this MIP with the pnor approval of the Compensation
Commuittee

General Provisions

a) Withholding of Taxes, The Company shall withhold the amount of taxes which, 1n the determination of the Company, 1s required to be withheld under
applicable law with respect to any amount due or paid under this MIP All amounts payable under this MIP are intended to be cxempt from the requirements
of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and this MIP and all bonus awards made hereunder shall be construed 1n a manner
consistent with such intent

b) Expenses The Company is responsible for all cxpenses and ¢osts incumed 1 connection with the adoption and administration of this MIP

¢) Active Emplovment Active employment means actively engaged in the employ of the Company (orits subsidianes) with respect to VCS Employees who
are subject to severance notice penod or on “'garden leave” status pending termunation are not constdered to be 1n active employment

d) Voluntary Termunation  Unliess VCS’ Chief Executive Officer exercises discretion in accordance with the “Discretion” provision above, in the event a
participant glects to terminate employment for any reason or elects to retire from the Company, in each case, before payment under this MIP 1s made, all nghts
with respect to such participant under this MIP shall cease and be immediately forfeited, and no benefits shall vest or be accrued or due under this MIP for
such participant

¢) Involuntary Termuination If a participant 1s involuntanly terminated for reasons other than “for cause”, dies or becomes permanently disabled pnor to the
payout date, VCS’ Chief Executive Officer may determine, 1n his sole discretion, whether such participant {or 1f termination 1s due to death, such participant’s
legal representatives) may be pard a prorated portion of his/her calculated bonus under this MIP, provided, that, in the case of any employee at or above the
level of Vice President, any such pro-rated payment shall require the pnor approval of the Compensation Commttee The pro-ration will be calculated based
on the formula (x times an amount that is the product of the participant’s Target Bonus tumes the final calculated payout percentage for such participant)
where x equals a fraction where the numerator 15 the number of calendar days the employee 15 employed in 2014 and the denomnator s 365 Any such
payment will be made at the same tume and n the same maaner active participants are paid In the event any such termination 1s made by the Company for
reasons other than “for cause,” payment of any such prorated MIP bonus payment shall be subject to the employee signing and not revoking the Federal-
Mogul Cormporation severance plan agreement and release within 30 days of such temuination

f) No Continued Employment Neither the establishment of this MIP, participatton m this MIP, nor any payment hereunder shall be deemed to constitute an
express or implied contract of employment of any participant for any penod of time or 1n any way abnidge the nghts of the Company to determine the terms
and condittons of employment or to termnate the employment of any employee with or without cause at any trme

g} Other Plans Nothing contained herewn shall imut the Company’s power to make regular or discretionary payments to its employees, whether or not they
are participants 1n this MIP Notwithstanding anything heren to the contrary, no payment shall be made under this MIP to any participant 1f and to the extent
that such payment, whether alone or when taken together with other




payments from the Company to such pariicipant, would result in such participant receiving compensation from the Company 1n excess of any compensation
limut contained 1n any wniten employment agreement between the Company and such participant

h )y Non-Assignability No nghts of the participants under this MIP shall be transferable or assignable, either voluntanly or involuntanly by way of
encumbrance, pledge, attachment, levy or charge of any nature (except as may be required by local, state, or federal law)

Nothing 1n this MIP shall require the Company to segregate or set aside any funds or other property for the purpose of paying any pottion of an award
hereunder No participant, beneficiary or other person shall have any nght, title or mnterest in any amount awarded under this MIP pnor to the payment of
such award to him or her Any nghts of a participant (or any person clainung through the paricipant) under thas MIP shall be solely those of an unsecured
general creditor of the Company The vahdity, interpretation, constructtion and performance of this MIP shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without giving effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof




Exhibit 10 6
Fedem|-Mogul 2014 Powertrmn Management Incentive Pla
Goal-

This Powertrain Management Incentive Plan (this * MIP") 1sntended to align the actions of participants with the goals of the Federal-Mogul Comporation {the
“Company”) Powertrain segment (“Powertrain”™) and reward participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Participants'

Individual employees of the Company providing services to Powertrain are eligible for participation 1n this MIP as follows (1) employees below the level of
Vice President are sclected and confimned by the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources, and (1) employecs at, or above, the level of Vice

President are selected and confirmed by Powertrain’s Chief Executive Officer, subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Commuttee of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Commtiee ™)

Target Bonus:

“Target Bonuses™ for purposes of this MIP shall be expressed as a percentage of the applicable employee’s annual base salary rate mn effect as of December 31,
2014 (* Annual Base Salary’ }, which Annual Base Salary 1s calculated as follows 1f the employee 1s pard by the Company on a menthly basis, the Annual
Base Salary shall be equal to an amount that 1s the product of such monthly payment mte multiplied by 12, and 1f the employee 15 paid on an every-other-
week basis, the Annual Base Salary shall be equal to an amount that 1s the product ot such cvery-other-week payment rate multiplied by 26 For the
avoidance of doubt, except for the employee’s annual base salary rate descnibed above, 11 no event shall any other amounts or compensation payments paid
or payable to the employee be used for purposes of caleulating the Annual Base Salary under this MIP

No changes may be made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage without the wntien approval of the Company’s Director of Compensation and Benefits
and/or the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources, except that, in the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, any
changes made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage shall be subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Commuttee

Proration

Any participant who 1s not employed with the Company 1n a MIP-eligible position on or prior to October 1, 2014 shall not be eligible to receive a MIP
payment for 2014, except as may otherwise be approved by the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources and, 1n the case of any employee at or
above the level of Vice President, the Compensation Commuittee Any participant who 1s eligible for a MIP payment but who did not serve 1n a MIP<ligible
position dunng the entire year 2014 will be entitled to a pro-rated MIP-payment based on the amount of time such eligible participant was actively and
continucusly employed in an ehigible position dunng 2014 [f, dunng 2014, a participant ts promoted or demoted from a job with one Target Bonus level to
another job with a different Target Bonus level, a participant transfers from one operation to another operation with different performance metrics, ora
participant 1s rehired or takes an approved leave of absence from active employment, a separate computation shall be made to take into account the
participant’s time at each level, operation or absence from employment (as applicable), and the sum ot the separate computations shall be the participant’s
MIP payout

Communications*

The Business Unit Human Resource Directors and Human Resource Director for Corporate Staffs are responsible for consistency of MIP targets and
communication of the MIP plan to participants

Metrics
2014 MIP metncs are outlined 1n Appendix I attached hereto
Adrustments

The metrics and their achievement levels are the basis for payout calculations However, each participant’s individual performance and contnbutions may
also be considered and may alter the final payout [n addition, Powentrain’s Chief Executive Officer may




reduce the 2014 MIP payment to any Business Unit Operations Vice President/Director, Finance Darector or Plant Manager based on lus assessment of the
results of an audit or senes of audits of plants or locations within Powertrain

It 15 intended that tncreases and decreases in partuicipant MIP bonus payouts which result from individual or group performance and contnbutions shall not
result in an increase in the proposed payout of the maximum bonus pocl described below In the event that the MIP bonus payout, otherwise calculated 1n

accordance with this MIP, would exceed the maximum bonus pool, each of the proposed MIP bonus payouts shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis so that the
aggregate MIP bonus payouts do not exceed the maximum bonus pool

MIP Pavout Ranges

The payout range for the 2014 MIP 15 from 0 to 175% of a participant s Target Bonus For example, 1f an empleyee’s Target Bonus 15 10% of Annual Base
Salary, he or she may receive an amount ranging from zero up to 17 5% of Annual Base Salary Payout percentages are rounded to the nearest whole percent
(0 5 and above rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down )

The Powertrain MIP bonus payment 1s limited to a maximum of } 75% of an individual’s Target Bonus

Target Ach tLevel

If, for any metnic, the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout forthat metric will be 100%

Mimmum Metric Achievement Level:

If, for any metnic, the achievement level does not equal or exceed 85% of the target, the payout for that metnc wall be zero At 85% achievement, the payout
for such metnc will be 50%

Maximum Metric Achievement Level

The maximum level of achievement ehigible for a payout 1s 125% of the target for a metnc At 125% achievement, the MIP payout level 1s 175% for that
metnce

The payout curve between the minimum achievement level and 100% 1s based on linear interpolation, as is the payout curve between 100% and the
maximum achievement level

I'hreshold Achievement Requirement

In the event Powertrain does not achieve at least 85% of 1ts EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA metncs for all Powertrain product lines and the
Restructunng metnc will have zero payout

Maximum Bonus Peol and Adyustments,

The maximum bonus pool under this MIP will equal the sum of the Target Bonuses for the participants, assuming the payout level for all metnes 1s equal to
175%

In ne event shall the sum of total payouts under this MIP exceed the maximum bonus pool

Computaion and Payout Timing:

Payments under this MIP will be madc only with respect to the Company’s 2014 fiscal year, and oaly after completion of the annual audit of Federal-Mogul's

2014 conschdated financial statements and filng of Federal-Mogul's Form 10-K for the yearending December 31,2014, but 1n ne event later than March 15,
2015 Management shall provide to the Compensation Commuitee, by February 1, 2015 the Company’s 2014 unaudited consohdated financial results, other
information required to calculate performance against the applicable metnes, management’s calculation of the metne achievement levels against goals and
management’s recommendations for MIP payouts consistent with such financial performance and other information No payout shall be made unless and
until the Commuttee, 1n 1ts sele and zbsolute discretion, has approved the final achievement levels and payouts, the completion of the audit of the 2014
consolidated financial statements and filing of the Company’s Form 10-K MIP participants must be actively employed on the day of payout to be ehgible for
a payment In all countnes, local tax laws apply, and payments will be reduced by amounts required to be withheld for taxes at the time payments are made

MIP payments will not be considered compensation for purposes of calculating the nghts of any participant under any of the Company’s employee




benefit plans or programs, unless required by applicable law MIP payments will be counted as compensation eligible for 401(k) plan contnbutions to the
extent apphicable

mpensation Committee of the Board ctors

All incentive plan designs, awards and payouts, if any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Commtiee The Compensation Commuttee has the sole
and absolute discretion, after consultation with management of Powertrain to make adjustments to any of the 2014 MIP metrics set forth 1n Appendix [

Discretion

Powertrain’s Chief Executive Officer may alter, postpone or disallow individual payments as he deems appropnate for any employee (other than himself),
within the plan's payout range of zero to 175% of Target, except that, 1n the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, pnor approval by
the Compensation Commuttce 15 required Powertrain’s Chiet Executive Officer may make other changes to this MIP with the pnior approval ot the
Compensation Commuttee

General Proyisions

a) Withholding of Taxes The Company shall withhold the amount of taxes which, in the determination of the Company, 15 required to be withheld under
applicable law with respect to any amount due or pard underthis MIP All amounts payable under this MIP are intended to be exempt from the requirements
ot Section 409A of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and thus MIP and all bonus awards made hereunder shall be construed in a manner
consistent with such intent

b) Expenses The Company 1s responsible for all expenses and costs incurred 1o connection with the adoption and admimistration of this MIP

¢)Acuve Employiment Active employment means actively engaged in the erploy of the Company (or its subsidiaries) with respect to Powertrain
Employccs who arc subject to scverance notice penod or on “garden leave” status pending termination are not considered to be 1n active employment

d) Voluptary Termunation Unless Powentrain’s Chief Executive Officer exercises discretion 1n accordance with the “Thscretion * provision abeve, in the event
a parficipant elects to terminate employment for any reason or elects to retire from the Company, 11 each case, before payment under this MIP 1s made, all
nghts with respect to such participant under this MIP shall cease and be immediately forfeited, and no benefits shall vest or be accrued or due under this MIP
for such participant

¢) Involuntary Temmination If a participant 1s involuntanily terminated for reasons other than “for cause™, dies or becomes permanently disabled priorto the
payout date, Powertrain’s Chiet Executive Officer may determine, in his sole discretion, whether such participant (or if termination 1s due to death, such
participant’s legal representatives) may be paid a prorated portion of histher calculated bonus under this MIP, provided, that, 1n the case of any employee at
or above the level of Vice President, any such pro-rated payment shall require the prior approval of the Compensation Commuttee The pro-ration will be
calculated based on the formula (x times an amount that 1s the product of the participant’s Target Bonus times the final calculated payout percentage for such
participant) where x equals a fraction where the numerator 1s the number of calendar days the employee 1s employed 1n 2014 and the denomunator 15 365 Any
such payment will be made at the same time and in the same manner active participants are paid In the event any such termination 1s made by the Company
for reasons other than “for cause,” payment of any such prorated MIP bontus payment shall be subject to the employee signing and not revoking the Federal-
Mogul Corporation severance plan agreement and release within 30 days of such temmination

t) No Continued Employment. Neither the establishment of this MIP, participation 1n this MIP, nor any payment hereunder shall be deemed to constitute an
express or implied contract of employment of any pamicipant for any penod of time or in any way abndge the nghts of the Company to determune the terms
and conditions of employment or to termunate the employment of any employee with or without cause at any time

£) Other Plang Nothing contained herein shall lumit the Company's power to make regular or discretionary payments to 1ts employees, whether or not they
arc paricipants in this MIP Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no payment shall be made under this MIP to any participant 1f and to the extent
that such payment, whether alone or when taken together with other payments from the Company to such participant, would result 1n such participam

recewving compensation from the Company in excess of any compensation limut contained n any wnitten employment agreement between the Company and
such participant




h )Nen-Assignability Ne nghis of the pamicipants under this MIP shall be transfemble or assignable, euther voluntanly or involuntanly by way of
encumbrance pledge, attachment, levy or charge of any nature (except as may be required by local, state, or federal law)

Nothing i this MIP shall require the Company to segregate ot set aside any funds or other property for the purpose of paying any portion of an award
hereunder No participant, beneficlary or other person shall have any nght, title or interest in any amount awarded under this MIP pnor to the payment of
such award to him or her Any nghts of a participant {or any person claiming through ihe paricipant) under this MIP shall be solfely those of an unsecured
general creditor of the Company The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this MIP shall be govemed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without giving effect to the conflicts of laws pnnciples thereof




Exhibit 107
Federal-Mogul Corporate 20 anagement [neenfive Pla

Goal

This Federal-Mogu! Corporate (F-M Corporate) Management Incentive Plan (this “MIP”) is intended to align the actions of participants with the goals of the
Federal-Mogul Cerporation {the “Company™y and reward participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Participants

Individual employees of the Company providing services to F-M Corporate are eligible for parucipation in this MIP as follows (1) employees below the level
of Vice President are sclected and confirmed by the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources and {11} employees at, or above, the level of Vice
President are selected and confirmed by F-M Comorate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers, subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Commtttee
ofthe Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Commuttee™)

Target Bonus,

“Target Bonuses™ for purposes ofthis MIP shall be expressed as a percentage of the applicable employee’s annual base salary rate 1n effect as of December 31,
2014 (“Annual Base Salary ), which Annual Base Salary 1s calculated as follows if the employee 1s paid by the Company on a monthly basis, the Annual
Base Salary shall be equal to an amount that is the product of such monthly payment rate multiplied by 12, and if the employee 1s patd on an every-other-
week basis, the Annual Base Salary shall be cqual to an amount that 1s the product of such every-other-week payment rate multiplicd by 26 For the
aveirdance of doubt, except for the employee’s annual base salary rate descnbed above, 1In no event shall any other amounts or compensation payments pad
or payable to the employee be used for purposes of calculating the Annual Base Salary underthis MIP

No changes may be made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage without the written approval of the Company's Director of Compensation and Benefits
and/or the Company's Senior Vice President of Human Resources except that n the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President any
changes made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage shall be subject to approval and confimation by the Compensation Commttee

Proration

Any participant who 15 net employed wath the Company in a MIP-ehgible position on or prior to October 1, 2014 shall not be ehigible to receive a MIP
payment for 2014, except as may otherwise be approved by the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources and, 1n the case of any employee at or
above the level of Vice President, the Compensation Comnuitee Any participant who 15 eligible for a MIP payment but who did not serve in a MIP-cligible
position dunng the entire year 2014 will be entitled to a pro.rated MIP-payment based on the amount of time such eligible participant was actively and
continuously employed 1n an eligible position dunng 2014 If, dunng 2014, a participant 15 promoted or demoted from a job with one Target Bonus level to
another job with a different Target Bonus level, a participant transfers from one operation to another operation with different performance metncs, or a
participant 1s rehired or takes an approved leave of absence from active employment, a separate computation shall be made to take nto account the
participant’s tume at each level, operation or absence from employment {as applicable), and the sum of the separate computations shall be the participant’s
MIP payout

Communicahjons,

The Human Resource Director for Corporate Staffs 1s responsible for consistency of MIP targets and communication of the MIP plan to participants
Metrics:

2014 MIP metncs are cuthined 1n Append:x 1 attached hercto

Adjustments

The metnes and thewr achievement levels are the basis for payout calculations However, each participant's individual pertormance and contnbutions may
also be considered and may alter the final payout In addition F-M Cormorate’s Co-Chief Executive Officer




may reduce the 2014 MIP payment to any Business Umt Operations Vice President/Director or Finance Director, based on their assessment of the results ofan
audit or sertes of audits of locations within F-M Corporate

It 1s intended that increases and decreases in participant MIP bonus payouts which result from individual or group performance and contnbutions shall not
result 1n an increase 1n the proposed payout of the maximum bonus pool descnbed below In the event that the MIP bonus payout, otherwise calculated 1n

accordance with this MIP, woutd exceed the maximum bonus pool, each of the proposed MIP bonus payouts shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis so that the
aggregate MIP bonus payouts do not exceed the maximum bonus pool

MIP Payout Ranges

The payout range for the 2014 MIP 1s from 0 to 175% of a participant’s Target Bonus For example, if an employee's Target Bonus 1s 10% of Annual Base
Salary, he or she may recerve an amount ranging from zero up te 17 3% of Annual Base Salary Payout percentages are rounded to the nearest whole percent
{0 5 and above rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down )

The F-M Cormporate MIP bonus payment 1s limited to a maximum of 175% of an individual’s Target Bonus

Target Achievement Level

If, for any metnc, the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metric will be 100%

Minimum Metric Achievement Level

If, for any metnic, the achievement level does net equal or exceed 85% of the target, the payout for that metnc will be zero At 85% achievement, the payout
for such metric will be 50%

Maximum Metric Achievement Level.

The maximum level of achievement eligible for a payout 1s 125% of the target for a metnic At 125% achievement, the MIP payout level 13 175% for that
metnc

The payout curve between the mimimum achievement level and t00% 1s based on linear interpolation, as 1s the payout curve between 100% and the
maxumum achievement level

Threshold Achievement Requirement

In the event Powertrain does not achieve at least 85% of 1ts EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA metncs for all Powertrain product lines and the
Restructunng metnc wall have zero payout

In the event VCS does not achieve at least 90% of 1ts EBITDA rarget for 2014, the EBITDA metnes for all VCS product limes and the Restructuring metric
will have zero payout

Maximum Bonus Pool and Adjustments

The maximum bonus pool under this MIP will equal the sum of the Target Bonuses for the participants, assumng the payout level for all metncs is equal to
175%

In no event shall the sum of total payouts under this MIP exceed the maximum bonus pool

Computation apd Pavout Timing

Payments under this MIP will be made only wath respect to the Company’s 2014 fiscal year, and only after completion ofthe annual audit of Federal-Mogul’s
2014 consohdated financial statements and fibng of Federal-Mogul’s Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2014, but in no event later than March 15,
2015 Management shall provide to the Compensation Commuttee, by February 1, 2015, the Company’s 2014 unaudited consolidated financial results, other
information required to calculate performance against the applicable metncs, management's calculation of the metrnic achievement levels against goals and
management’s recommendations tor MIP payouts consistent with such financial performance and other information Ne payout shall be made unless and
untii the Commttee 1n 1is sole and absolute discretion, has approved the final achievement levels and




payouts, the completion of the audit of the 2014 consolhidated financial statements and filing of the Company’s Form 10-K. MIP participants must be actively
employed on the day of payout to be eligible for a payment In all countnes, local tax laws apply, and payments will be reduced by amounts required to be
withheld for taxes at the time payments are made MIP payments will not be considered compensation for pumposes of calculating the nights of any participant
under any of the Company’s employee benefit plans or programs, unless required by apphicable law MIP payments will be counted as compensation eligible
for 401(k) plan contnbutions to the extent applicable

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

All incentive plan designs, awards and payouts, if any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Commuittee The Compensation Commuttee has the sole
and absolute discretion, after consultation with management of F-M Corporate, to make adjustments to any of the 2014 MIP metrics set forth i Appendix [

Discretion

F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers may alter, postpone or disallow individual payments as he deems appropnate for any employee (other than
mmself), within the plan's payout range of zero to 175% of Target, except that, 1n the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, prior
approval by the Compensation Commuttee 1s required F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers may make other changes to this MIP with the prior
approval of the Compensation Committee

General Provisions

a) Withholding of Taxes  The Company shall withhold the amount of taxes which, in the determination of the Company, 1s required to be withheld under
applicable law wth respect to any amount due or paid under this MIP All amounts payable under thig MIP are intended to be cxempt from the requirements
of Section 409A of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and this MIP and all bonus awards made hereunder shall be construed in a manner
consistent with such intent

b) Expenses The Company 1s responsible for all expenses and costs incurred 1n connection with the adoption and admunistration of this MIP

¢)Active Emplovment Active employment means actively engaged 1n the employ of the Company (or 1ts subsidianes) with respect to Federal-Mogul
Employees who are subject to severance notice penod or on “garden leave” status pending termination are not considered to be 1n active employment

d) Veluntary Temmnation Unless F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers exercise discretion tn accordance wath the “Discretion™ provision above, 1n
the event a participant elects to terrmnate employment for any reason or elects to retire from the Company, 1n each case, before payment under this MIP 1s
made, all nghts with respect to such participant under this MIP shall cease and be immediately forferted, and no benefits shall vest or be accrued or due under
this MIP for such participant

e) Involuntary Temunation Ifa participant 1s involuntanly termunated for reasons other than “for cause”, dies or becomes permanently disabled prior to the
payout date, F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers may determnine, in thetr sole discretion, whether such participant (or 1f termenation 1s due to death,
such participant’s legal representatives) may be paid a prorated portion of his/her calculated bonus under this MIP, provided, that, in the case of any
cmployce at or above the level of Vice President, any such pro-ratcd payment shall require the pnor approval of the Compensation Committee The pro-ration
will be calculated based on the formula (x times an amount that 1s the product of the participant’s Target Bonus numes the final calculated payout percentage
for such participant) where x equals a fraction where the numerator s the number of calendar days the employee 1s employed 1n 2014 and the denominator 1s
365 Any such payment will be made at the same time and 1n the same manner active participants are paid In the event any such termunation is made by the
Company tor reasons other than “for cause,” payment of any such prorated MIP bonus payment shall be subject to the employee signing and not revoking the
Federul-Mogu! Corporation severance plan agreement and release within 30 days of such termination

f) No Continued Employment _Neither the establishment of this MIF, participatton i this MIP, nor any payment hereunder shall be deemed to constitute an
express or implied contract of employment of any paricipant for any penod of time or 1n any way abrnidge the nghts of the Company to determune the terms
and conditions of cmployment or to termunate the employment of any employec with or without cause at any time

g) Other Plans Nothing contained herein shall limit the Company’s power to make regular or discretionary payments to 1ts employees, whether or not they
are participants 1n this MIP Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no payment shall be made under this MIP to any participant 1f and to the extent
that such payment, whether alone or when taken together with other




payments from the Company to such participant, would result 1n such participant receiving compensation from the Company in excess of any compensation
himut contaned 1 any wrntten employment agreement between the Company and such participant

h) Non-Assignability No nghts of the participants under this MIP shall be transferable or assignable, enther voluntanly or involuntanly by way of
encumbrance, pledge, attachment, levy or charge of any nature {(except as may be required by local, state, or federal law)

Nathing in this MIP shall requrre the Company to segregate or set aside any funds or other property for the purpose of paying any portion of an award
hercunder No participant, beneficiary or other person shall have any nght, ntle or mterest 1n any amount awarded under this MIP pnor to the payment of
such award to him or her Any nghts of a participant (or any person claiming through the participant) under this MIP shall be solely those ot an unsecured
general crediter of the Company The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this MIP shall be govemed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without giving effect to the conflicts of laws pnnciples thereof




Exhibit 21
FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES

The direct and indirect operating subsidianes of the Company and their respective States or other junsdictions of incorperation as of December 31, 2014 are
as follows

Percentage of Yoting Stock
Owned Directly and Indirectly

b
Name of Subsidiaries LCountry w__al{Mom

Federal Mogu!l Argentina SA Argentina 96 3%
Federal-Mogu! Plasticos Puntanos, $ A Argentina 96 3%
Federal-Mogul Pty Ltd Austrahia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Automotive Pty Ltd Australia 100 0%
FM Motorparts Pty Ltd Australia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul § A Belgium 100 0%
Federal-Mogul EMEA Distribution Services, BVBA Belgium 100 4%
Federal-Mogul Global Aftermarket EMEA BVBA Belgium 100 0%
Coventry Assurance, Ltd Bermuda 100 9%
Federal Mogul Componentes de Motores Ltda Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Sorocaba - Sistemas Automoetvoes Lida

Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Industria de Autopecas Lida Brazl 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sistemas Automotrvos Ltda Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Participacoes e Investimentos LTDA Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Canada Lumited Canada 100 0%
Federal-Mogul {Changshu) Automotive Parts Co , L China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul {Chongqmg) Friction Matenals Co  Led China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (Dalian) Co , Ltd China 160 0%
Federal-Mogul (Shanghal) Amomotve Parts Co  Ltd China 160 0%
Federal-Mogul ARN (Anqing) Powder Metallurgy Co , Lid China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Dongsuh (Qingdac) Pistons Co , Ltd China 75 5%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Co Ltd China 106 0%
Federal-Mogul (China} Co , Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Deva {Qugdao) Autemotive Parts Co , Lid Chuna 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Qingdao Pistons Co Ltd Chma 61 5%
Federal-Mogul Sealing System (Nanchang) Co, Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghar Bearings Co , Ltd China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghai Compound Martenal Co , Ltd China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Zhengsheng (Changsha) Piston Ring Co  LTD China 935 0%
Federal Mogul de Costa Rica, Sociedad Anonima Costa Rica 100 0%
Sapav Marketng Ltd Cyprus 100 0%
Sibirica Energy Lumited Cyprus 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Producis A S Czech Rep 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket Egypt LTD Egypt 100 0%
Atchers Jubette Adam SAS France 100 0%
Federal Mogul Aftermarket France SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Financial Services SAS France 100 0%
Fedcral-Mogul Friction Products SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Igmition Products 5AS France 160 0%
Federal Mogul Operations France SAS France 160 0%
Federal Mogul Piston Rings SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sealing System SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Scrvices Sarl France 108 0%
Federal-Mogul Systems Protection SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul SAS France 100 0%

Fonciere de Liberanon SAS France 100 0%




Saxid SAS

Federal-Mogul Aftermarket GmbH
Federal-Mogul Automotive GmbH & Co KG
Federal-Mogul Automouve Verwaltungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Betrichsgrundstiicke Burscheid GmbH
Federal-Mogul Bremsbelag GmbH

Federal-Mogul Burscheid Beteaigungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Burscheid GmbH

Federal-Mogul Deva GmbH

Federal-Mogul Friction GmbH

Federal-Mogul Fricuion Matenials Germany GmbH
Federal-Mogul Friction Products GmbH
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Internattonal GmbH
Federal-Mogul Friedberg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Hemnsberg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Helding Deutschland GmbH
Federal-Mogul Igninon GmbH

Federal-Mogul Immobilien GmbH

Federal-Magul Nurenberg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Powertrain Russia GmbH
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Bretten GmbH
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems GmbH
Federnl-Mogu! [P Eurepe Gmbh & Co KG
Federal-Mogul TP Piston Rings GmbH
Federal-Mogul Valvetrain GmbH

Federal-Mogul Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH
Federal-Mogu! Verwaltungs und Beteihgungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Wiesbaden Gmb#H

Goetze Wohnungsbau GmbH

Plaun 966 GmbH

Weyburn-Bartel GmbH

Federal-Mogul de Guatemala, § A

Curzon Insurance Limied

Federal-Mogul (T&N) Hong Keng Limued
Federal-Mogul World Trade (Asia) Limated
Federal-Mogul Hungary Kft

Federal Mogul Wipers Hungary Kft
Federal-Mogul Ignition Products India Limited
Federal-Mogul Beaning [ndia Linmted
Federal-Mugul Goetre {India) Limited
Federal-Mogul PTSB [ndta Private Lumuted
Federal-Mogul TPR {India} Limed
Federal-Mogul VSP {Ind1a) Limned
Federal-Mogul Italy St

Saxidsrcl

Fuderal Mogul Japan K K

Federal-Mogul Asia Investments Holding koren, Lid
KFM Bearing Co , Ltd

KFM Innevative Technology Company Limited
Federal-Mogul Luxembourg 8 a r |
Federal-Mogul Holdings Ltd

Federal-Mogul Holding Mexico S A deCV
Federal-Mogul de Matamoros S A deCV
Federal-Mogul de Mexico, S A de CV
Federal-Mogul Distribucion de Mextco S de RL de CV
Federal-Mogul Lighting, SA de CV
Federal-Mogul SA de CV

Federal-Mogul SP Mexico 8 deRL deCV

France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany

Guatemala

Guernsey
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hungary

Hungary

India
India
India
India
India
India
Italy
ltaly
Japan
Korea
Koren
Korea
Luxembourg
Mautitius Is
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico

Mexico

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 4%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
66 7%
66 6%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 9%
100 0%
100 0%
100 9%
63 9%
75 0%
100 0%
62 7%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
10D 9%
99 4%
E0D 0%
100 0%
98 3%
100 0%




Federal-Mogul Valve Train § de RL de CV

MoCord Payen de Mexico S de RL

Producios de Frenos Automotrices de Calidad S A de CV
Raimsa SA deCV

Servicios Admintstratives Industriales, § A

Servicio de Compaonenics Automotrices, SA deCA
Subensambles Internacionales, § A de 8V

T&N de Mextco Sde R L

Federal-Mogul Systems Protection Morocco SARL AU
Cooperattef Federal-Mogul Dutch Investments B A
Federal-Mogul Investments B V

Federal-Mogul Motorparts Holding B vV
Federal-Mogul Matorparts Minonty Helding BV
Federal-Mogul VCS Holding BV

Federal-Mogul Motorparts Philippines, Inc
Federal-Mogul Bumiet Spolka Akeyjna

Federal-Mogul Gorzyce § A

Federal-Mogul Friction Products Plolesh sl
Federal-Mogul Frichon Services sr |

Federal-Mogul Dimitrovgrad LLC

Federal-Mogul Naberezhyne Chelny LLC
Federal-Mogul Powertrain Vostok 000
Federal-Mogul VC5 OGO

Torgevy Dom DZV CISC

Trend LLC

Federal-Mogul Motorparts (Singapore) Pte Ltd
Federal-Mogul Singapore Investments Pte Lid
Federal Mogul {Proprietary} Limited

Federal Mogul Aftermarket Southern Africa (Pty) Limated
Federal Mogul of Seuth Africa (Pty) Ltd

Federal Mogul Powertram Systems S A (Proprictary Lumited)
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket Espana, SA
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Barcelona S L
Federal-Mogul Frniction Products SA

Federal-Mogul Fretion Spain 8 L

Federal-Mogul Ibetica, S L

F-M Holding Daras AB

Federal-Mogul Goteborg AB

Federal-Mogul Holding Sweden AB

Federal-Mogul GmbH

Federal-Magul Motorparts Taswan Co , Limited
Federal-Mogul (Thatland) Ltd

Federal-Mogul Motorparts { Thailand) Limited
A E Group Machines Limited

AE Internatienal Lunited

AE Limuted

Federal-Mogu! Aftermarket UK Limated
Federal-Mogul Asia Investments Limited
Federal-Mogul Bradford Limited

Lydmet Limuted

Federal-Mogu! Employee Trust Adminisranon Limrted
Federal-Mogul Engineening Limited
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Limited
Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Payen International Limited

Federal-Mogul Sintered Products Limited
Federal-Mogul Technology Lunited
Federat-Mogul Vulvetrain Limited

Mexico
Mexico
Mexica
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Morocco
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Philippines
Poland
Poland
Romania
Romanta
Russin
Russia
Russia
Russia
Russia
Russia
Singapore
Singapore
South Africa
South Afrca
South Afrca
South Africa
Spain
Span
Spamn
Spain
Spain
Sweden
Sweden
Sweden
Switzerland
Tawan

Thailand
Thailand
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
140 0%
100 0%
1006 0%
95 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
50 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 6%
100 0%
100 4%
100 0%
100 0%
51 0%
100 0%
109 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
180 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%




Ferodo Limited

F-M Motorparts Limited

F-M Trademarks Limited

Leeds Piston Ring & Engineermg Co Lid
Suntranon Limuted

FDML Holdings Limited
Federal-Mogul UK [avestments Lunited
Federal-Mogul Limited

Piston Rings (UK) Lid

Saxidl Lemited

T&N Shelf Twenty-Si1x Limited
Wellworthy Limued

Federal-Mogul Finance 1, LLC

Carter Automotive Company, Ine
Federal-Maogul Corpotatton
Federal-Mogul Finance 2 LLC
Federat-Mogul Global LLC
Federal-Mogul [gnien Company
Federal-Magul Piston Rings Inc
Federal-Mogul Powertrain [P, LLC
Federal-Mogul Rusk Advisory Senvees LLC
Federal-Mogul Transaction LLC
Federal-Mogul Moworparts Corporatien
Federal-Mogul Valve Train International LLC
Ferodo Amerca Inc

F-M Moterparts TSC, Inc

Felt Products Mfg Co

FM International, LLC

Gasket Holdings Inc

Muzzy-Lyon Aute Parts Inc

T&N Industrics [nc

Federal-Mogul Chassis LLC
Federal-Mogul Pawertrain, Inc
Federal-Mogul World Wide, Inc
Speyside Real Estate, Inc
Federal-Mogul Products, Inc
Federal-Mogul de Venezuela CA
Federal-Mogul {Vietnam) Ltd

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delawsre
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Detaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Michigan
US-Michigan
US-Michigan
US-Missourn:

Venezuela
Vietnam

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
i00 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
LO0 0%
100 0%
100 0%
106 0%
100 0%
1006 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
104 0%




CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have i1ssued our reports dated February 26, 2015, with respect to the consohdated financial statements, schedule, and intemal control gver financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Federal-Mogul Heldings Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2014 We hereby consent to
the incorporation by reference of said reports in the Registration Statements of Federal-Mogu! Holdings Corporation on Form S-8 (File No 333- 168508) and
Form S-3 (File No 333-187424)

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield, Michigan
February 26,2015




Exhibit 31 1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuvant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunties Exchange Actof 1934

[, Daniel A Ninivagg: the Co-Chief Executive Otficer of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation {the “Company”), certify that

6 Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 1¢-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation,

7 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or ot to state a matertal fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not musleading with respect to the penod covered by this
reportt,

8 Bascd on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included 1n this report, furly present 1n all matenal respects the

financal condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report,

9 The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and mamntaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e) and 15d-15(e)} and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
1 5(f)) for the registrant and have

a

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure contrels and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal tnformation relating te the registrant, including its consolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly duning the perod in which this mpont 15 being prepared,

Designed such internal control over financial reperting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under gur
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reltability of tinancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements tor
extemal purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report cur conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the penod covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

Disclosed in thus report any change 1n the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that eccurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or 1s reasonably likely to
matenally affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, and

10 The registrant’s other certtfying officer and I have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s audstors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equuivalent functions)

a

All signuficant deficiencics and matenal weaknesses in the destgn or operation of internal control over financial reporting which arc
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and repon financial 1nformation, and

Any fraud whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
contre! over financial reporting

Date February 26,2015

By /s/ Damel A Nimivagg:
Danicl A Ninmivagg:

Co-Chief Executrve Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation
Chicf Exccutive Officer Motorparts Division




Exhibit 31 2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

[, Ramer Jucckstock the Co-Chief Exccutive Officer of Federal-Mogu! Holdings Corporation (the “Company™), certtfy that

1 Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation,

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1n hght of the circumnstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the penod covered by this
repott,

3 Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included tn this report, farrly present in all matenal respects the

financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 1n this report,

\
|
|
\
4 The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintamning disclosure controls and procedures {as defined 1n |
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{(e) and | 5d-15{e)) and 1atetnal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(t) and 15d- l
15(f)) for the registrant and have

|
a Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, '
to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, tncluding 1ts consolidated subsidianes, 15 made known to us by others within |

those entities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared

b Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal controf over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generlly accepted accounting principles,

o

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure contrels and procedures and presented in this report our cenclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the penod covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

d DMisclosed in this report any change n the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred dunng the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenalily affected, or 15 reasonably likely to
matenally affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporiing, and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions)

a All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of tnternal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financial information, and

b Any fraud whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporting

Date Fecbruary 26,2015

By /s/ Rawnet Jueckstock

Ramncer lueckstock

Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation Chief
Executive Officer, Powertrain Division




Exhibit 313

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a} of the Secunties Exchange Actof 1934

I, Rajesh Shah, the Chief Financial Officer of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (the “Company™}, certify that

2

I'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corpormation

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statemnents made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the pernod covered by this

repoent,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included 10 this report, fairly present in all matenal respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented in this report,

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1are responsible for estabhishing and mamtaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have

a

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or cansed such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidianes, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared

Designed such wntemal contro! over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s internal control ever financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s tourth fiscal quarter in the case ot an annual report) that has matenally affected oris reasonably likely to
matenally affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial reperting, and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and T have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors (or pesons performing the equivalent functions)

a

All sigmificant deficieneies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably hkely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financiat information, and

Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 1n the registrant’s intemal
control over financiai reporting

Date February 26,2015

By fs/Rajesh Shah

Rajesh Shah
Semior Vice President and
Chicf Financial Officer




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 United States Code § 1350 and
Rule 13a-14(b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

The Undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge the annual report on Form 10-K of Mederal-Mogu! Holdings Corporation {the “Company”) filed with
the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on the date hereof fulty complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunties Exchange Act of
1934 and that the information contained 11 such annual report fawrly presents, 1 all matenal respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company

A signed onginal of this wniten statement, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adepting the signatures that appear in typed form

within the electrome version of this wntten statement, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furmshed 10 the
Secunities and Exchange Comnussion or 1ts staff upon request

Date February 26,2015

By {sf Danuel A Nunuvaggy

Daniel A Ninivagg
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation
Chiet Executive Officer, Motorparts Division

By /s/ Rawner Jueckstock

Rainer Jueckstock
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation
Chief Executive Officer, Powertrain Division

By {s/ Rajesh Shah
Rajesh Shah
Senior Vice Prestdent and
Chief Financial Officer




